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NATURAL GAS AND OIL PRODUCTION

AOHINT

e / Revenues {milfions) $514.8
; . “Earnings (millions} $142.5
Production
Natural gas (Bcf) 62.8
Qil (million barrels) 2.4
Proved reserves
Natural gas {Bcf} 523.7

Qil {million barrels) 30.6
Corporate earnings contribution® 44%

o . CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS
AND CONTRAGCTING

Revenues {millions) $1,761.5
Earnings (millions) $77.0
Sales {millions)
Aggregates (tons} 369
Asphalt (tons) 7.1

Ready-mix concrete {cubic yards) 4.1
Recoverable aggregate

reserves (billion tons) 1.2
Corporate earnings contribution” 24%

! CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

Revenues (miliions) $1,103.2
Earnings (millions) $43.8
Corporate earnings contribution* 14%
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EARNINGS BEFORE DISCONTINUED

{ OPERATIONS BY INDUSTRY FOCUS

{ ® 54% Energy
: 24% Construction Materials
; o 22% Utility Resources and Other

EARNINGS
(rmilfions)

ELECTRIC AND NATUR

Revenues (miilions)
Electric 7
Natural gas distribut

Earnings {millions)
Electric .
Natural gas distribution-

Electric sates (milfion kWi,
Retail '
Sales for resale _

Natural gas distribution
Sales
Transportation

$324YNGS3IY ALITLLN

* Basad on consolidated earnings belore

discontinued operations.

NOTES:

« The Other category includes revenues of
3100 mitlion, a loss before discontinued operations
of $4.3 million, and earnings of $104.9 millian,
including discontinued operations.

= Consolidated revenues reflect intersegment
efiminations of $315.1 million.



Building a Strong America®

a strong
Infrastructure
S the heart of

our economy.

It is the natural gas, oil and electricity that power

business, industry and our daily lives. it is the pipes
and wires that connect our homes, factories, offices
and stores to bring them to life. It is the transportation
network of roads, highways and airports that keeps
our economy moving. Infrastructure is our business.

Were tuliding a strong America.
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We are a member of the S&P MidCap 400
index, providing value-added natural resource
products and related services that are essential
to energy and transportation infrastructure.
We operate in three core lines of business:
energy, construction materials and utility
resources. MDU Resources includes natural gas
and oil production, natural gas pipelines and
energy services, construction materials and
contracting, construction services, and electric
and natural gas utilities. |

1 Natural Gas and Qii Production
* Pipeline and Energy Services
® Constructicn Materials and Contracting
4 Electric
> Natural Gas Distribution
# Construction Services Offices

2 Construction Services Authorized
States of Operations

ACHIEVEMENTS

2007 Fortune 1,000 List

= No. 519 based on total revenues

s No. 4 in Mining and Crude Qi Production group for total
return to shareholders annually for 1996-2006

Forbes Platinum 400 List of

Best Big Companies in America

= Eighth consecutive year ‘

« Companies compared against peers on 12-month
and five-year basis for sharehoider returns, sales and
earnings-per-share growth, debt-to-capital ratios

Mergent Dividend Achiever

= Honor based on more than 10 consecutive years of
dividend increases — MDU Resources has increased
dividends 17 consecutive years

Platts Top 250 Global Energy Companies List
= Based on outstanding financial performance using asset
worth, revenues, profits and return on invested capital

EE! Index of Investor-Owned Electric Utilities Award

» No. 1 for total shareholder return on the Edison Electric
Institute index of small-cap U.S. shareholder-owned electric
utilities for five-year period ending September 30, 2007

» 212 percent total shareholder return for five-year period
ending September 30, 2007
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Highlights N
g Washxgton, DC
12 Increase/Decrease
Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 Amount Percent
(in milfions, where applicable)
- Operating revenues $4,2479 $4,004.6 $243.3

Operating income $ 5511 $ 523.0 $ 341 7
Earnings on comman stock:

Earnings before discontinued operations . $ 3224 3 3071 $ 150 5

Discontinued operations, net of tax 109.3 8.0 101.3 -

Earnings on common stock $ 4314 $ 3151 $116.3 37
Earnings per common share - basic:

Earnings before discontinued operations $ 177 $ 170 3 07 4

Discontinued operations, net of tax .60 .05 .55

Earnings per common share ~ basic $ 237 $ 175 & .62 35
Earnings per common share — diluted:

Earnings before discontinued operations 3 176 3 169 5 07 4

Discontinued operations, net of tax .60 .05 .55 -

Earnings per common share — diluted $ 2.36 $ 174 $ .62 36
Dividends per common share $ .5600 $ 5234 $.0366 7
Weighted average common shares cutstanding — diluted 1829 181.4 1.5 1
Total assets $5,592.4 $4,903.5 $688.9 14
Total equity $2,531.3 $2164.9 $366.4 ¥
Total debt $1,310.2 $1,254.6 $ 55.6 4
Capitalization ratios:

Common equity 66% 63%

Total debt 34 37

100% 100%

Return on average common equity 18.5% 15.6%
Price /earnings ratio 1.7x 14.7x
Book value per common share $ 13.80 $ 1n.8s
Market value as a percent of hook value 200.1% 215.8%
Employees 12,293 11,526

NOTE: Commen stock share amounts reflact the company’'s three-for-twoe commen stock split effacted in July 2006,

Forward-looking statements: This Annual Report contains forward-locking statements within the meaning of section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
Forward-leoking statements should be read with the cautionary statements and important factors included in Part |, Forward-Looking Statements and ltem 1A —

Risk Factors of the company's 2007 Form 10-K. Forward-looking statements are all statements cther than statements of historical fact, including without limitation those
statemen?s that are identified by the words anticipates, estimates, expects, intends, plans, predicts and similar expressions,

2007 was an outstanding year

@ Earned record $431.4 million

o Increased earnings per share by 36 percent

a 10 percent total shareholder return

o Five-year annual total shareholder return of 22 percent; outperformed S&P 500
o Increased common stock dividend for 17th consecutive year

a Completed largest acquisition in company history, nearly doubling number of
natural gas customers
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Long-term investors know that our company
has experienced tremendous success. Each
milestone has been accompanied by a
growing expectaticn — from our shareholders,
from those we serve and from ourselves —

of even greater agccomplishments.

That is part of what makes 2007 particularly
remarkable. Although each of the past few
years has been outstanding in its own
right, our employees’ achievements this
past year were exceptional. We once again
increased the financial value delivered to
shareholders. Operating performance was
strong. We also made a number of
acquisitions that will help us accomplish

even more in the future.

Fifth year of record earnings
2007 was the fifth consecutive year

of record earnings, with earnings of
$431.4 million, or $2.36 per common
share, diluted, Earnings from continuing
operaticns, which exclude the gain from
the sale of our domestic independent
power business and certain related
income, totaled $322.1 million, or
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REVENUES

{bitlions)

$1.76 per share, diluted. We believe
earnings from continuing operations provide
a better comparison of year-to-year
operating performance. Total revenues

for the year reached $4.2 billion.

In August, we increased our quarterly
common stock dividend by 7.4 percent

to 14.5 cents per share, or 58 cents per
share on an annualized basis. This was
the 17th consecutive year of dividend
increases, an accomplishment matched
by fewer than 5 percent of publicly traded
North American businesses. We have
provided investors with 70 consecutive
years of uninterrupted dividend payments,
stretching back to 1937,

We also continued to deliver outstanding
value to investors, with a one-year total
return to sharehglders of 10 percent. Our
total average annual return for the five-year
period ending in 2007 was 22 percent,
which outperformed the S&P 500. In
November, the Edison Electric Institute
presented the company with its Index
Award, which recognizes the best total
shareholder returns among shareholder-
owned electric utilities. Our total return of
212 percent for the five-year period ending
September 30, 2007, led all companies in
EEl's small-cap category.

In july, we completed the sale of our
domestic independent power business
for a gain of $91.5 million, after tax. The
sale took advantage of a strong market
for electric generating facilities. The
funds have been used to help grow our

remaining businesses.

Strong operating performance
As our financial results indicate, we had
strong operating performance in each of
our three lines of business — energy,

construction materials and utility resources.

Our exploration and production business
aggressively expanded its three-pronged
growth strategy, which is built around
developing existing reserves, acquiring
properties with existing production, and
exploration in high-potential areas.

Participation in more than 360 new

wells, principally in our existing Rocky
Maountain areas, pushed natural gas and
oil production to record levels and helped
us retain our position as the largest natural
gas producer in Montana. We believe
there is strong potential for continued
growth, based on our strong reserve
position. We hold approximately 707 billion
cubic feet equivalent of proved reserves.
In addition, in June we estimated probable
and possible reserves of 800 Befe, about
half of which are probable.

Early this year, we purchased natural
gas properties in eastern Texas that will
increase our total reserves by about

14 percent. The purchase includes
significant existing production, which
we plan to increase this year with 25
additional wells. We expect that the
acquisition will increase our projected
2008 production growth in the range
of 12 percent to 16 percent, up from our
original expectation of a 5 percent to

8 percent increase,



MDU Resources
continues its.

Finally, we have had good initial success
with exploration efforts outside our
traditional areas of cperation. Qur first well
in the Paradox Basin in Utah is showing
good results, and we expect production
from our first operated Bakken well in the
first quarter. The Bakken region is one of
the hottest oil plays in the United States.

Our natural gas pipeline and gathering
systems both had record delivery volumes,
and we expanded firm capacity on our
Grasslands Pipeline by about 40 percent.

Our construction materials and contracting
business added five acquisitions during 2007,
solidifying cur position as the fifth-largest
producer of sand and gravel in the United
States and the eighth-largest aggregate
producer. Two of the acquisitions included
aggregate reserves, which are a critical
asset for sustaining production capabilities,

A sharp focus on cost and production
efficiencies helped offset some of the
effects of the depressed housing market
and increasing material costs. In addition,
the business completed the first phase

of a national branding effort that will put its
operations under a single name — Knife
River — and help these operations capitalize
on their combined market strength.

We finalized the purchase of Cascade
Natura! Gas Corp., which serves high-growth
areas in Washington and Oregon. This was
the largest acquisition in our company's
history, and it nearly doubled the number
of natural gas customers we serve.

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. continued to
focus on adding electric generation to
meet growing customer demand. Early this
year, the utility completed construction

of 19.5 megawatts of wind generation
near Baker, Montana. The utility also is
participating in & consortium that plans

to build Big Stone 1), a coal-fueled electric
generating plant that would be located
next to the existing Big Stone | plant in
South Dakota. Both Big Stone plants will
benefit from state-of-the-art air quality
controls that will be installed. Finally, the
utility completed a four-year labor
agreement with unionized employees that

wilt carry into 2011,

MDL RESOURCES GROUP, INC.

Our construction services group delivered
record earnings for the third consecutive
year. The business continues to benefit
from strong demand in the energy
industry, including the replacement of
aging infrastructure such as electric
distribution lines and the installation of
air-quality control equipment at electric
generating pfants. Qur equipment
manufacturing business contributed with
the best year in its history. This business
builds and distributes specialty equipment
used in the power line transmission and
distribution industry.

National issues pose challenges
Our 2007 success was achieved despite
signs of a softening economy. The

nation’s depressed housing market, in
particular, had a significant impact on

our construction materials and contracting
business, along with the rest of that
industry. The bottom of this market may
be at least a year away, so its challenges
will continue for us in 2008.



MDY RESOURCES GROUP, INC.

This underscores the strength of our
diversified business strategy. Our balanced
portfolio of businesses reduces our
exposure to weakness in any one market
segment and helps provide censistency to
our cash flow and earnings. These are
important advantages that single-industry
companies do not enjoy.

Even more important — and certainly with
longer-lasting impact = is the national
debate related to climate change and our
energy future. Reducing greenhouse gas
emissions is a critical priority. At the same
time, we need to find ways to meet
tomorrow’s energy needs. And, perhaps
most challenging, we need to find solutions
that are affordable for all of us.

Qur nation’s public policy must balance
our needs for affordable energy, a vibrant
econormy and a healthy environment.

If we do not keep these in batance, we are
simply trading one problem for ancther,

Responsibility and integrity

Our employees embrace the responsibility
1o operate our businesses in a manner
that minimizes environmental impacts.
The company encourages their efforts
with annual environmental integrity awards
that recognize outstanding achievernents
in environmental stewardship and in

reclamation and habitat enhancement.

There isn’t enough space here to list all of
our environmental efforts, but many of them

Jyear

_""“ I—— 18%
5y —— 27

10 veor — 15
20ye — 6%

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

are discussed in our first sustainability
report, which we recently prepared.
Envirenmentalism is just one part of
sustainability, which actually means
“meeting the needs of the present

without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.”
Thus, our report is a broad discussion of
aur commitment to be responsible members
of the communities in which we operate.

A summary of the sustainability report
begins on page 5 of this annual report.
We also encourage you to read the full
report, which is posted on our company’s
Web site at www.mdu.com. The report
communicates our core values and

the social and economic impact that
MDU Resources has on the markets and
communities we serve. The report also
characterizes certain initiatives and core
competencies within MDU Resources
and our business units that are essential
to our long-term success.

One key principle is woven throughout
the sustainability report — integrity. This
principle is so important to us that “with
integrity” are the first two words of our
vision statement, The vision statement is
our commitment to giving shareholders
superior value; to being the supplier of
choice; and to creating a safe workplace,
But most of all, it is cur promise that how
we achieve these results is even mare
important than the achievement.

03 04 05

DIVIDENDS
{per common share}

We can explain integrity simply: doing the
right thing, even when nobedy is watching
to make sure you do. Unfartunately, it
isn't always so simple to put into practice
in a world of complex laws, regulations and
human nature. To guide employees, we
provide them with an educational program
caled “Leading with Integrity.” It includes
extensive onling training and refresher
courses, as well as mechanisms for
confidentially reporting concerns about
conduct that doesn’t meet our standards.

The year ahead

As you can tell, we are proud of the results
we have delivered in 2007, We thank our
employees for that performance, and we
are confident that they will help make
2008 ancther very good year.

Although the housing market is expected
to remain weak, our past experience is that
these economic cycles tend to be offset

by improvements in our other businesses.
We expect to grow in many areas, including
natural gas and oil production, natural gas
pipeline throughput and aggregate reserves.
The Las Vegas market remains very strong
for our construction services group, which
carried an excellent work backlog into
2008. Finally, we will realize the full-year
benefits of the Cascade acquisition.

We raised the bar again in 2007, and our
expectations are still growing.

A N

Harry ). Pearce
Chairman of the Board

g;_g},;;m

Terry D. Hildestad
President and Chief Executive Officer

February 20, 2008
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In 2008, we produced MDU Resources’ first sustainability report. In all we do, we

strive to provide essential products and services for today, while ensuring that life

and our business can be sustained in the future. Our first report opens the dialogue

about sustainability with everyone who has a stake in what we do.

MDU RESOUH%%%E%BE)CG%?ROUP

The word “sustainability” has become a
popular part of society’s discussions about
the future, although misunderstanding

of the concept is still widespread. It is
most frequently linked to the environment,
but sustainability actually covers a much
broader range of issues.

For a corporaticn, in addition to the
environment, sustainability covers social
and economic responsibilities, risks and,
yes, even opportunities. Experts have
come to explain sustainability this way:
meeting the needs of the present without '
compromising the ability of future

generations to meet their own needs.

In other words, sustainability means we
should manage cur business with a long-
term view, instead of focusing only on the
next fiscal quarter. At MDU Resources,
that’s not a new concept. It comes naturally
for us because, when you boil it down to
the simplest form, we are in the business
of sustaining the lifestyle Americans have
come to expect and demand.

We build and repair the infrastructure our
nation needs — the roads, the power lines,
the electrical wiring and appliances, and
the building foundations. We alsc supply
the energy and fuel our nation needs.

In early 2008, we published our first
corporate sustatnability report. Itis a
beginning — a commitment to an ongoing
dialogue with key stakehotders about our
efforts in the three areas that are critical
to sustainability: social, environmental
and economic. For us, it wilt be a process
of learning and growing, which will
improve future reports.

The full 2007 Sustainability Report is
available on our corporate Web site at
www.mdu.com.

Commitment to environment

Our annual report, which you are now
reading, discusses many financial aspects
of MBU Resources’ business. Our
sustainability report covers economics
and also explains many of our social

and environmental initiatives, policies
and practices,

Much of the work we do at MDU Resources
involves putting natural resaurces to work
for the benefit of our cornmunities and
neighbors. In the environmental section

of our sustainability report, we outline

our corporate environmental policy.

Our related goals are to:

s Minimize waste and maximize resources.

= Support environmental laws and
regulations that are based on sound
science and cost-effective technology.

= Comply with or exceed all applicable
environmental laws, regutations and

permit requirements.

The report describes a number of
practices that help us be environmentally
responsible. For example, you can learn
about our efforts to protect sage grouse
habitat while responsibly developing
natural gas and oil rescurces. Sage grouse
have been identified for potential listing
under the U.5. Endangered Species Act.
In addition to applying best management
practices, we participate in related
research and a partnership of government
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agencies and officials, conservation
groups and industry dedicated to
developing sound, science-based policy
and practices for sage grouse protection
and enhancement.

We also have made a number of
commitments related to reducing
greenhouse gas emissions. Our electric
operations, which are part of
Montana-Dakota Utilities Co., emitted
1.2 million tons of carbon dioxide from
owned electric generating facilities in
2006. Montana-Dakota also owns part
of two other electric generating facilities
that emitted an estimated 1.8 million tons
of carbon dioxide emissions in 2006.

Through a Memorandum of Understanding
between the Edison Electric Institute and
the Department of Energy, Montana-
Dakota has committed to reducing carbon
dioxide emission intensity by 3 percent

to 5 percent by 2010,

Montana-Dakota has been active in
researching options for carbon dioxide

capture, sequestration and beneficial uses.

The company has been a member of the
Plains CO; Reduction Partnership since
its inception in 2003. The partnership
pools resources to examing potential uses
of carbon dioxide within the company’s

service territory.

$1.9
$1.8

$1.2

$.8

03 04 05 06 07

MDU RESOURGES
FOUNDATION DONATIONS
{millions)

£
Montana-Dakota also participates in the

L.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s
Voluntary SF6 Emission Reduction Program.
Sulfur hexafluoride is an inert gas used as
an insulator in electrical equipment. It has
been implicated as a potent greenhouse
gas. Montana-Dakota reduced its emissions
of SF6 from equipment feaks by 31 percent
in 2006.

As part of its efforts to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions while also continuing to
meet the electric needs of its customers,
Montana-Dakota recantly constructed

a wind farm near Baker, Montana.
Construction was completed in early
2008 on the Diamond Willow Wind Farm.
The $40 million project includes 13,
1.5-megawatt wind turbines. Another
10.5 megawatts of wind electric generation
is planned at the site by 2015.

Commitment to people

QOur sustainability report also addresses
social responsibility. We describe our
commitment to our employees, our customers,
our communities and our shareholders.
From charitable contributions to hiring
practices, the report defines our approach
to taking care of pecpls.

We outline our employment philosophies
and policies, as well as commitments we
have made to our employees, First and
foremost, MDU Resources is dedicated to

providing a safe working environmenti and
safe work practices for all employees. The
industries in which we work are physical
and demanding, but we are committed

to a zerp-accident safety culture.

Our corporate Diversity Council focuses
on ensuring an inclusive environment for
all people. Our diversity statement says,
“MDU Resources Group, Inc. is committed
to an inclusive environment that
recognizes, respects and engages the
differences and embraces the strengths

in its employees, customers, suppliers
and communities to accomplish the vision,
mission and values of the corporation.”

As we define it, diversity is social
inclusiveness, where we recognize and
respect the differences of our life
experiences, work experiences, education,
perspectives, cultures, ethnicity, gender,
age and all other aspects of life that make
everyene unique.

We also promote employee development
through a formal mentoring program,
internships, in-house training programs,
training and education tuition assistance,
and a number of cther programs.

Many of our employees devote significant
time and energy in volunteering to help
causes they admire, and MDU Resources
encourages a sense of community spirit,
even providing an annuat award that

OUR COMMITMENTS

ENVIRONMENT
» Minimize waste and maximize
resources

= Support and comply with taws
and regulations

= Mitigate environmental impacts

SOCIAL
» Fair hiring and employment practices

» Safety culture focused on zero accidents

» Support employee development
and growth
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MEGAWATTS OF WIND.‘E EC lC GENERA

BAKER, MONTANA
As part of its efforts to reduce greenhouse gas emissions while

meeting the electric needs of its customers, Montana-Dakota Utilities
Co. consiructed the Diamond Willow Wind Farm. The project includes

13, 1.5-megawatt wind turbines.

includes a charitable donation for the
employee who mast embodies those values.

We also support our communities and
neighbors through the MDU Resources
Foundation, which provides charitable
contributions to {ax-exempt organizations
within the areas where MDU Resources
conducts business. MDU Resources’
business units fund the foundation through
contributions of 0.5 percent to t percent
of their average pretax earnings. The
foundation contributed about $1.9 million
to organizations in our communities in 2007.

A long-term approach

Through ali of our endeavors, we strive

to provide essential products and services
for today, while ensuring that life and our
business can be sustained in the future.
Qur first sustainability report begins

the dialogue with all the people who have
a stake in what we do. We expect to

continue this conversation with you,

ISSION

ded natural resource products and
reiated serwces that exceed customer expectatlons

| Ni_c&u&z&weémw CODE

Our corporation’s Integrity Code provides a summary
of the expected behaviors that guide us to perform
with integrity in all matters. Through our Integrity Code,
we make a commitment to:

nuasuiy We wil cohduct the corporation’s business
legally and ethncal!y with our best skills and Judgment

5 We will always act in the best mterests

of th corporat n and protect its’ assets
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America depends on natural gas and oil to heat homes, generate
electricity and fuel vehicles. Demanﬁd for both natural gas and oil
continues to grow, and prices have femained strong. This has created
a ROBUST BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT for energy companiés like

WBI Holdings, Inc., which operates our natural gas and oil production,

pipeline and energy services companies. Earnings from our energy

i

energy

NATURAL GAS AND OIL PRODUCTION
PIPELINE AND ENERGY SERVICES
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businesses in 2007 totaled $174.0 million, with the pipeline and
energy services operations reporting RECORD RESULTS for the year
and the natural gas and oil business’ earnings down slightly from
the 2006 record. Strong development and exploration activity and

pipeline expansion support continued growth.

1416 3145781425

$110.8
%63.0
30.0 $31.5
$18.2 $22.1 $
$8.9
) X . 07 E 04 H H

FIVE-YEAR EARNINGS GROWTH™

NATURAL GAS AND PIPELINE AND
OIL PRODUCTION EARNINGS ENERGY SERVICES EARNINGS
{millions) {millions)
E
i CORPORATE EARNINGS CONTRIBUTION""
A - ‘' 44% Natural Gas and Qil Production
o : N .
10% 10% " 10% Pipeline and Energy Services
K}

* Compound annual growth rate; belore discontinved operations
** Based on consolidated earnings before discontinued operations

L]
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In 2007, Fidelity Exploration & Production Company produced 77 billion cubic

feet equivalent of natural gas and oil, an overal! increase of 4 percent from 2006.

Fidelity continues to be the largest producer of natural gas in Montana. Fidelity also

expanded its natural gas and oil reserves to 707 Bcfe.

The majority of Fidelity’s production —

74 percent in 2007 — comes from the
Rocky Mountain Regicn. Fidelity continues
to develop its long-held Baker and Bowdoin
fields, and applies technology to maximize
production from existing wells.

tn the coalbed natural gas area of
Maontana and Wyoming, Fidelity expanded
its use of commingling — a drilling method
that accesses multiple coal seams through
a single well, This reduces the number

of wells that need to be drilled, while
accessing the same reserve potential and
reducing costs.

Fidelity increased production and reserves
in the Mid-Continent and Gulf States
Region through the continued development
of its interests in South Texas. Production
in this region comprised 18 percent of totai
production in 2007,

New areas show promise

tn 2007, Fidelity expanded operations into
southeastern Utah with an acreage
acquisilion and subsequent exploratory

drilling in the Paradox Basin. Fidelity's first
well began producing in November, with
promising initial production votumes. The
company plans to drill additional wells in
this area in 2008.

Fidelity also has been active in the Bakken
play in North Dakota, which is receiving

alot of industry interest as a high-potential

production area. Fidelity drilled an initial
operated well in 2007 and is ramping up

its drilling efforts in this emerging play with

its own operated activities and through
participation in nonoperated wells.

Early in 2008, Fidelity completed a

major acquisition with the purchase of

97 Bcfe of proven reserves and additional
reserve potential in East Texas, Fidelity
will operate these assets and expects

to drill additional wells to further develop
the properties.

Opportunities for growth
Fidelity's three-prong growth strategy
provides opportunities 1o manage risk
while growing producticn and reserves.

This approach blends development

of existing assets mainly in the Rocky
Mountain and South Texas areas,
exploration opportunities such as the
Bakken play and the Paradox Basin, and
acquisitions such as the newly acquired

properties in East Texas.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
» Energy marketers
= End-use customers
= Natural gas utilities

PEERS

Berry Petraleum Co., Comstock Resources Inc.,
Encore Acquisition Co., Equitable Resources Inc.,
Questar Corp., St. Mary Lend & Exploration Co.,
Swift Energy Co., Whiting Petroleum Corp.

COMPETITORS
Other natural gas and oil companies, publicly
traded and privately held
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BCFE 2007 PRODUCTION

SOUTHEAST UTAH

Exptoratery drilling in the Paradox Basin in southeastern
Utah is adding reserves and preduction while expanding the
company’s cperations in the Rocky Mountain Region.

WESTERN
NORTH DAKOTA
The Bakken playis
being touted as one ¢ Area of principal production and reserves
of the largest potential

production areas in

the United States. The Fidelity Exploration & Production Company is engaged in natural gas
company has a significant and oil acquisition, exploration, development and production activities
leasehold position in this in the Rocky Mountain and Mid-Continent regions of the United States
emerging area, and in and around the Gulf of Mexico.

PRODUCTION BY REGION

n 74% Rocky Mountain
18% Mid-Continent/Gulf States

BAKER, MONTANA @ B% Offshore

Reserves in the Baker
and Bowdoin fields are
pari of the company’s
total reserves, which
were 74 percent natural
gas and 26 percent oil
at year-end 2007.
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Williston Basin Interstate Pipeline Company, MDU Resources’ regulated natural

gas pipeline, and Bitter Creek Pipelines LLC, its gathering company, achieved

record delivery volumes in 2007. Total throughput — the amount of natural gas

transported — was a record 233 million decatherms, which was a 7 percent increase

over 2006 levels.

ENERGY,

ENERGY

Strong customer demand for storage
services and to move natural gas off
system contributed to record throughput.
The location of the company’s interstate
pipeline system provides producers with
access to the Mid-Continent market,
where prices have been consistently higher
than in the Rocky Mountain Region.

The ¢company’s gathering systems
connect natural gas production fields
to major natural gas transportation
pipelines. Higher Rocky Mountain
natural gas production is increasing
demand for natural gas gathering and
transportation services.

Many projects in 2007

Williston Basin expanded firm

capacity about 40 percent in 2007 on
its Grasslands Pipeline. The project
involved adding and modifying
compression facilities to increase firm
delivery capacity by 41 million cubic feet
per day. The Grasslands Pipefine is

now capable of transporting 138 MMcf
per day on a firm basis, which increases

the interstate pipeline system’s overall
natural gas transportation capability to
more than 650 MMcf per day. Williston
Basin also added several new connections
to its 3,700-mile transmission pipeline
system to receive natural gas from new
supply sources.

To take advantage of increased demand,
Bitter Creek added about 50 miles of
gathering pipelines and six associated
compressor stations. Bitter Creek
extended its system to new producing
areas and reduced field pressures for
producers, yielding increased volumes
of natural gas.

Customers recognized Williston Basin
in 2007 for providing excellent service.
A recent industrywide survey
administered by Mastio & Co. ranked
the company 11th out of 41 pipelines

in overall customer service.

Busy year ahead

Williston Basin and Bitter Creek
expect 2008 to be a busy year, with
customers looking at significant

production expansion opportunities.

A pipeline expansion project into
eastern North Dakota is expected to

be operational in November 2008.

A second pipeline project is being
developed based on demand associated
with the Bakken ptay in western

North Dakota and eastern Montana.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
= Natural gas utifities
= Industrial and commercial gas users
» Natural gas and oil production companies
= Natural gas marketers

PEERS
National Fuel Gas Co., ONEOK Inc.

COMPETITORS

Qther pipeline and gathering companies
serving the region, other energy sources
such as coal
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INCREASE IN PIPELINE THROUG

SHERIDAN, WYOMING

Jay Westre, Keith Siroky and Robb Soltis inspect one
of the gathering company’s many pipeline installations
in the production-rich Powder River Basin of Montana
and Wyoming.

BISMARCK,

NORTH DAKOTA
Delivery volumes and
storage services for the
company’s interstate
pipeline system are
monitored and controlled
by highly skilled
empIoYeles such as
Brandon' Miller and
Sheila Jangufa.

EASTERN MONTANA
Expansion of the
Grasslands Pipeline was
a key project involving the
construction of a new
compressor station in
eastern Montana. Trevor
Nelson was one of many
technicians completing
the work.

= Pipeline gathering systems
=« Energy services affices

¢ Company storage fields

== Pipeline systems

== |nterconnecting pipelines

The pipeline and energy services businesses provide natural gas
transportation, underground storage and gathering services through
regulated and nonregulated pipeline systems primarily in the Rocky
Mountain and northern Great Plains regions of the United States. The
company also provides energy-related management services.

233.2
218.0 |
06 o7
THROUGHPUT
(MMdk)
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CONSTRUGTION MATERIALS
EARNINGS
{mittions)

CORPQORATE EARNINGS CONTRIBUTION""

24% Construction Materials
and Coniracting

* Compound annual growth rate
*" Based on consolidated earnings before
discontinued operations
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Knife River Corporation is the eighth-largest aggregate producer in the

United States. Target market focus and cost-management strategies helped

maintain strong earnings in 2007, despite a downturn in housing markets across

the country that decreased sales volumes in its core product lines.

Knife River is refining its business focus to

coffset the effects of the slowing housing
market by emphasizing its capabilities to
serve the booming energy industry. It is
becoming a significant supplier of
construction materials on prajects such
as wind farms, refinery expansions and
electric generating facility upgrades.

Focus on expansion

Knife River expanded its liquid asphalt
facilities in 2007, adding storage tanks in
Texas and California. With its storage
terminals, Knife River is able to buy asphalt -
oil — a key component of asphalt — from
refineries in the winter, when supply is higher
and prices are lower, This strategy has
helped Knife River manage price volatility
during the construction season and earn
strong margins on oil sold to third parties.

Knife River also expanded its operations in
2007 by acquiring five more companies.
Four of these additions focus principally on
supplying construction materials, Knife
River grew organically by adding a ready-
mix plant to existing operations in Boise,
Idaho, and expanding on its prestress

CONSTRUCHOR’ISW Qﬂsolfi'l%ﬁ‘ém“"“s

- . kb
Nt
i
!
L.

concrete capabilities in Harrisburg,
Oregon. In 2008, Knife River will continue
to concentrate its aggressive acquisition
efforts on adding aggregate reserves

and further strengthening its position in
existing markets.

Another significant effort begun in 2007
was branding of the construction materials
operations under the name and logo of
Knife River. Previously, Knife River
companies operated under more than 40
different names. The branding campaign
unifies Knife River's operations while
building broader customer and industry
recognition of the company’s capabilities.

Knife River completed a six-year project
to install a resource planning system

at all of its operating locations, The effort
consolidates the company's data and
processes on a unified computer system,

2007 was the ninth consecutive year of
safety improvements at Knife River, with a
10 percent reduction in the lost-time accident
rate. The company's employees continue to
put safety at the forefrant of operations.

8l [@'f |

r"‘

In it for the long haul

industry experts project that demand for
infrastructure and public works projects
will continue to be streong. This represents a
sizeable share of Knife River's business —
publicly funded work accounts for about
60 percent of revenue — and will provide
good opportunities to offset some of the
effects of the weak housing market. In
addition, Knife River will work with industry
associations to ensure adequate funding
of the Federal Highway Trust Fund, which
supplies about 45 percent of all highway
spending in the United States.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
« Federal, state and focal governments
= General and commercial contractors
a Residential and commercial developers
= Homebuilders
» General public

PEERS
Granite Censtruction Inc., Martin Marietta Materials
Inc., U.S. Concrete Inc,, Vulcan Materials Co.

COMPETITORS

Other construction matevials companies such

as Cemex, CRH (Otdcastle), Eagle Materials Inc.,
Granite Construction Inc., Holcim Ltd., LaFarge
North America Inc., Martin Marietta Materials Inc.,
Rinker Group Ltd., TX! LLC, Trinity Industries Inc.

At A R b e e R =
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BEAUMONT, TEXAS

Knife River Corporation's valuable supply of aggregate
reserves has helped build 1.5, military installations;
interstate highways; airports; major sports, business
and retail facilities; schools; and subdivisions,

LODI, CALIFORNIA
Knife River continues ® Construction materials focations

to focus on adding State names indicate authorized states of operations
strategically located
aggregate reserves to
its operations within
the markets it serves.

Knife River Corporation mines aggregates and markets crushed stone,
sand, gravel and related construction materials, including ready-mix
concrete, cement, asphalt, liquid asphalt and other value-added products.
It also performs integrated contracting services. Knife River operates in
the central, southern and western United States and Alaska and Hawaii.

SOURCE OF REVENUE

(before eliminations)

& 44% Construction

s 55% Materials

15% Aggregate

With 100 ready-mix 19% Ready Mix
ptanis in 10 states, 12% Asphait
Knife River provides 10% Other
a full complement of

construction materials
and services.

BOISE, \DAHO
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In the United States, energy demand is expected to INCREASE

23 PERCENT by 2030. Growing demand is triggering the need for

R EEARSLINANS T e et Sl T

additional supplies and §infrastructu;re development and

improvements. Our companies are in the business of generating

and supplying electricity and natural gas to customers; as well -
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CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
ELECTRIC AND NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION

CORPORATE EARNINGS CONTRIBUTION™*
t
7 ! 14% Consiruction Services

. / \‘ 9% Electric and Natural Gas Distribution
14%

\.‘_ oo
9%
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as building, repairing and maintaining the infrastructure that
delivers and uses these energy supplies. We have been SUPPLYING

T TR L

POWER TO CUSTOMERS SINCE 1924, and our utility business remains
the cornerstone of our corporation. The companies that make up
this part of our business earned $75.5 million in 2007.

22% m_al Il

m $(5.6)
F 2

PN _

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES ELECTRIC AND NATURAL GAS
EARNINGS DISTRIBUTION EARNINGS
{milfions} (millions)

* Compound annual growth rate, including the
Other category before discontinued operations
** Based on consolidated earnings before
discontinued operations




£

T S AR Oty

4
L

R L R

AR L e
PSEE AT R

T

N
ST

U N P P

i
3!

r

L A P

A A A ke 1

b
Fe

g

e
L

om0

ey C e e

4

NETHE
i

20

MOU RESCURCES GROUP, INC.

MDU Construction Services Group, Inc. had its third consecutive year of record

performance in 2007, with earnings up 57 percent over the previous year’s results.

Higher construction margins and workloads and higher equipment sales and rentals

drove results.

ESO
UTILITY RESO!

MDU Construction Services specializes

in electric line construction; pipeline
construction; utility excavation; inside
electrical wiring, cabling and mechanica)
work; fire protection; and the manufacture
and distribution of specialty equipment.
With significant investments anticipated

in energy infrastructure, refineries and
manufacturing facilities across the country,
the company is primed to benefit.

MDU Construction Services' success is
attributable to its employees — the best in
the industry. Beyond consistently exceeding
customer expectations, employees have

a renewed focus on working as safely as
possible. Year-to-year, MDU Construction
Services reduced lost-time accidents

by 10.2 percent.

Expanding on operations

In 2007, MBU Construction Services grew
in several areas, It acquired Lone Mountain
Excavation and Utilities, LLC, a specialty
excavation and utilities contractor in

Las Vegas. Lone Mountain complements

MDU Construction Services’ existing
operations in the Las Vegas market.

The company expanded its expertise in
refinery work. In addition to turnaround
services, the company now provides
electrical services for refineries.

MDU Construction Services’ existing
operations continue to perform well, too.
A significant project involving upgrading
electric distribution infrastructure for
the city of Anzheim, California, was

a noteworthy success, as was an inside
electrical wiring job at the new Heart
Center under construction at The
Cleveland Clinic Foundation in Ohio.

Manufacturing specialty equipment for
the electric distribution and transmission
industry, and then selling or renting that
equipment, continues to be a profitable
business. MDU Construction Services
expanded its equipment offerings in
2007 with the addition of an innovative
new line of stringing devices for power
lines. Electric companies are expected

to spend nearly $30 biltion on U.5.
electric transmission systems in the next
three years and $14 billion per year on
distribution system investments.

Anticipating steady business
MBU Construction Services has a
record work backlog going into 2008,
with $827 million at the start of the year.
That's 57 percent higher than the

previous year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
= Electric utilities
= Natural gas utilities
» Tetecommunication companies
= Municipalities
» Industrial and commercial electrical contractors
s General contractors

PEERS
Dycom Industries Inc., EMCOR Group Inc.,
Quanta Services Ine.

COMPETITORS
Other construction services, industrial and
commercial electrical contractors



b

~ MDU RESOURCES GROUP, INC. 21

___ 4

" s

—
.t ——
[l R
’ '

MILTON-FREEWATER, OREGON
International Line Builders, Ing. rebuilt a 69-kilovolt
transmission line, It involved replacing, rebuilding

or reframing 126 wood transmission poles and replacing
abcut 5.5 miles of three-phase transmission conductor
and associated hardware,

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
Lene Mouniain
Excavation and Utilities,
LLC - acquired by MDU
Construction Services +# Construction services offices

Group, Inc, in August — State names indicate authorized states of operations
works mainly on projects

along the Strip in Las

Vegas as a speciaity MDU Construction Services Group, Inc. companies offer utilities and
excavation and utilities targe manufacturing, commercial, government and institutional customers
contractor, a diverse array of products and services. The companies specialize in

electric line construction, pipeline construction, utility excavation, inside
electrical wiring, cabling and mechanical work, fire protection and the
manufacture and distribution of specialty equipment.

SOURCE OF REVENUE

37% Inside
e 26% Outside
o 13% Industrial

4% Equipment

CLEVELAND, OHIO
ES), Inc. 15 nstalling the
power distribution system
at Cleveland Clinic’s
new 1 million-square-foot
heart ¢linic.
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Our utility division grew considerably in 2007 through a number of efforts,

including an acquisition, new electric generating facilities, technology advances and

expanded energy-related services. Earnings were $31.7 million, with retail electric

sales volumes 5 percent higher and retail natural gas sales volumes 53 percent

higher than in 2006, including the acquisition of Cascade Natural Gas Corp.

Making significant moves

The purchase of Cascade in 2007 was the
largest acquisition in the corporation’s
history. Cascade’s 246,000 customers in
Oregon and Washington nearly doubled the
number of natural gas customers served
by MDU Resources. Cascade's service
area has averaged 4.1 percent annual

customer growth for the past five years.

Meanwhile, Montana-Dakota Utilities Co.
focused on its increasing need for electric
generation. The utility anticipates owring
at least 116 megawatts of Big Stone Il
which will be built alongside the existing
Big Stone | plant near Big Stone City,
South Dakota. The coal-fired plant, which
is expected to be complete in 2013, will
be built with the best available proven
emission-control technology. In fact, when
complete, the combined sulfur dioxide,
nitrogen oxides and mercury from both
Big Stone | and Big Stone Il will be no
more than current emissions from just
Big Stone I

UTILITY RESOURCES™

Montana-Dakota also completed
construction of 19.5 megawatts of
wind-powered electric generation near
Baker, Montana. Thirteen 1.5-MW wind
turbines were on fing in early 2008.

The utility also built its first electric
transmission substation in 20 years. The
substation, near Baker, Montana, was
necessary to meet growing electricity
demand mainly caused by expanding
oilfield operations in the region.

Great Plains Natural Gas Co. extended its
distribution pipeline to a new 55 million-
gatlon-a-year ethanol plant at Fergus Falls,
Minnesota. Great Plains will begin supplying
natural gas to the plant early in 2008.

An automated meter-reading installation
project at Montana-Dakota passed the
halfway mark in 2007. The technology
improves efficiency by providing
automated reading of customer meters.
The utility also made considerable
progress on a significant contract to install
more efficient heating systems at the
Minot Air Force Base in North Dakota.

Reliable, safe distribution
Employees continued to provide
outstanding, safe service to customers.
Despite the heavy workload to keep
pace with growth and customer needs,
the utilities’ combined safety record
was 49 percent better than the
industry average.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

» Electric » Natural gas
Residential 08,647 Residential 439,727
Commercial 19,212 Commercial 60,347
Industrial/other 2,023  Industrial/other 706
PEERS

Affiant Energy Corp., Black Hills Corp.,
Northwest Natural Gas Co., NSTAR,
OGE Energy Corp., SCANA Corp.,
Southwest Gas Corp., Vectren Corp.

COMPETITORS

Energy providers within and adjacent to existing
service areas, such as electric utilities, natural
gas distribution companies, propane and fuel oil
dealers and rural efectric cooperatives
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MINOT, NORTH DAKOTA

Tim Kretschmar, Glenn Houston, Shane Branson and

Ryan Conklin of Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. work on a P

project that involves installing a high-efficiency natural gas :

heating system in 90 flight tine buildings at Mirot Air Force s
Base in North Dakota. ] -

TOPPENISH,
WASHINGTON
Darrel Wheeler, Jon
Muilvenon, Dave Delp,
Cenrad Castro and
Conrad Castro Jr.

of Cascade Natural @ Electric and natural gas distribution area

Gas Corp. work at the # Electric generating stations

site of a pipeline

installation project to Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. generates, transmits and distributes
serve an expansion of electricity and distributes natural gas in Montana, North Dakota, South
The Legends Casino. Dakota and Wyoming. Cascade Natural Gas Corp. distributes natural

gas in Oregon and Washington. Great Plains Natural Gas Co. distributes
natural gas in western Minnesota and southeastern North Dakota. These
operations also supply related value-added products and services.

SOURCE OF EARNINGS

= 56% Etectric
» 44% Natural Gas Distribution

BAKER, MONTANA
Diamond Willow is
Montana-Dakota Utilities
Co.'s first wind farm.

The wind project —

13 towers with total
generating capacity of
19.5 megawatts — is
owned and operated by
Montana-Dakota. *Including customers of Gascade Natusal Gas Corp., which was acguired in July 2007,
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Board of Directors

Harry ). Pearce, 65{11}
Detroit, Michigan

Chairman of MDU Resaurces
Board of Directors

Retired, formerly chairman
of Hughes Electronics Corp.,
a unit of General Motors
Corp., and former vice
chairman and director of
GM; a director of several
major corporations
EXPERTISE: Multinational

business management,
finance, engineering and law

Richard H. Lewis, 58 {3}
Denver, Colorado

Founder and farmer
chairman, president and
chief executive officer

of Prima Energy Corp.,

a natural gas and oil
exploration and production
company, and chairman of
Entre Pure Industries, Inc.,
a privately held purified
water and ice business;

a board member of Colorade
Qil and Gas Association
and a director of Colorado
State Bank and Trust

EXPERTISE: Natural gas and
oit industry

Numbers indicate age and
years of service ) on the

£

Terry D, Hildestad, 58 (2)
Bismarck, North Dakota

President and Chief
Executive Officer

Formerly chief operating
officer of MDU Resouices
and formerly president and
chief executive officer of
Knife River Corporation

Patricia L. Moss, 54 {5]
Bend, Oregon

President, chief executive
officer and a director of
Cascade Bancorp and Bank
of the Cascades; a director
of several other corpgrations

EXPERTISE: Finance and
huaman resources

MDU Resources Board of Directors

as of December 3i, 2007.

Thomas Everist, 58 (13)
Sioux Falls, South Dakota

President and chairman
of The Everist Cc., a
construction materials
company; & director of
several corporations

EXPERTISE: Business
management, canstruction
and sand, gravel and
aggregate production

John L. Olson, 48 {23}
Sidney, Montana

President and chief
executive officer of

Blue Rock Products Co. and
Blue Rock Distributing Co.,
teverage bottling and
distributing companies, and
chairman of Admiral
Beverage Corp,; a director of
a health insurance company
EXPERTISE: Marketing,
fimance and business
development and franchising

Karen B. Fagg, 54 (3)
Billings, Montana

President and majority
owner of HKM Engineering,
Ing., formerly vice president
of operations for Mountain
States Energy, Inc.;

on the boards of several
organizations

EXPERTISE: Engineering

Sister Thomas Welder,
0.5.8., 67 {20)
Bismarck, North Dakota

President of University
of Mary; a director of
several organizations
EXPERTISE: Business

development and
management

Dennis W. Johnson, 5B [7)
Dickinson, North Dakota

Chairman and chief
executive officer of

TMI Systems Design Corp.,

a custorn institutional
turniture manufacturer; a
former director of Federal
Reserve Bank of Minneapolis

EXPERTISE: Business
management, engineering
and finance

John K. Wilson, 53 {5)
Omaha, Nebraska

President of Durham
Resources, LLC, a privately
held financial management
company, and president of
Durham Foundation; a
director of a mutual fund

EXPERTISE: Finance and
natural gas indusiry

Audit Committee

Dennis W. Johnson, Chairman
Richard H, Lewis

John L. Olson

John K. Wilson

Compensation Committee
Thomas Everist, Chairman
Karen B. Fagg

Patricia L. MoSS

Nominating and
Governance Committee
John L. Olson, Chairman
Karen B, Fagg

Richard H. Lewis

Sister Thomas Welder, 0.5.B,
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Corporate Management

Terry D. Hildestad, 58 (33}  Steven L. Bietz, 49 (27) Mark Del Vecchio, 48 {4) John G. Harp, 55 {32) Bruce T. Imsdahl, 59 (37)
President and President and Vice President of Human President and President and

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Resources, MDU Resources Chief Executive Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
MDU Resources WBI Holdings, Inc. Formerly director of MDU Construction Services  Montana-Dakota Utilities Co.
Serves on the company's Formerly held executive and  compensation and executive ~ Group, Inc. and Great Plains Natural Gas
Board of Directors and as management positions with  programs of MDU Resources  Formerly owned Co.; Chiet Executive Officer,
chairman of the board of WBI Holdings construction services Cascade Natural Gas Corp.
major subsidiary companies; companies that were Formerly held executive and
formerly chief operating acguired by MDU Resources  management positions with
officer of MDU Resources Montana-Dakota

and formerly president and
chief executive officer of
Knife River Corporatien

Cynthia J. Norland, 53 (23}  Vernon A, Raile, 62 (27) Paul K. Sandness, 53 (27) William E. Schneider, 58 (14}
Vice President Executive Vice President, General Counset and President and
of Administration, Treasurer and Chief Financial  Secretary, MDU Resources Chief Executive Officer,
MDU Resources Officer, MDU Resources Serves as general counsel Knife River Corporation
Formerly associate general Serves as the senior financial  and secretary for alt major Serves as chief executive
counsel of MDU Resources officer and member of the company subsidiaries; officer of all construction
boards of directors of all formerly senior attorney and  materials and contracting
major subsidiary companies;,  held other positions of subsidiaries of Knife River;
formerly chief accounting increasing responsibility with  formerly senior vice
officer of MDU Resources MDU Resources president of construction

materiats of Knife River

Other Corporate and Management Changes
Senior Company Officers John K. Castleberry, Bruce T. Imsdahl, president

R - executive vice president and chief executive officer of
Nicole A. Kivisto, 34 {12) of administration, retired Montana-Dakota Utilities Co.

and Great Plains Natural Gas
Co. and chief executive

Controller, MDU Resources July 6, 2007.

Doran N. Schwartz, 38 (3)

A . ’ Cynthia ). Norland was . offi f
Vice Pre_sndem _and Chief nz‘med vice president of gfaf;c(ezgspf::iiﬂzia;ural
Accounting Officer, MDU administration July 16, 2007, |anyary 17, 2008, that he wilt
Resources . . ) retire effective June 5, 2008.
Cindy C. Redding resigned
lohn P. Stumpf, 4B113) a5 vice president of David L. Goodin, on
Vige President of Strategic human resources effective January 22, 2008, was

Planning, MDU Resources Iuly 6, 2007, named president of

. Montana-Dakota Utilities Co.
Mark Del Vecchio was named 514 Great Plains Natural Gas
vice president of human Co., effective March 1, 2008,
resources October 1, 2007, He also continues his
position as president of
Numbers indicate age Cascade Natural Gas Corp.
and years of service () as
of December 31, 2007,
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2
Stockholder Return Comparison

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR TOTAL STOCKHOLDER RETURN
{in dollars)

%100 invested December 31, 2002, in MDU Resources was worth
$272.50 at year-end 2007,

$350

300

250

200

150

100

02 03 04 05 06 07

= MDU Resources
— S&P 500

-~ New Peer Group
== Qld Peer Group

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
MOU Resources  $160.00 $142.64 $164.34 $206.56 $248.07 $272.50

S&P 500 100,00 128.68 14269 14970 173.34 182.86

New Peer Group 100,00 12942 161,86 19617 244.66 272.87

QOid Peer Group 100.00 332.20 16655 21840 263.85 31212

All data is indexed to December 31, 2002, for MDU Resources,
the S&P 500 and the peer groups. Total stockholder return

is calculated using the December 31 price for each year. It is
assumed that all dividends are reinvested in stock at the
frequency paid, and the returns of each component peer issuer
of the group are weighted according to the issuer’s stock market
capitalization at the beginning of the period.

Beginning in 2007, a new peer group was established. The
change was made to better reflect the company's current mix
of businesses and to expand the size of the peer group in order
to reduce the impact of any one cempany on the peer group’s
performance, as well as to address changes that have occurred
at several of the old peer companies. Some of the companies in
the old peer group have been acquired and others have experienced
significant growth in stock market capitaiization, causing a

tack of comparability as returns are weighted based on market
capitalization. The new peer group is comprised of entities
representing the company’s various lines of business. The

representation of peer companies was selected based generally
on each business line’s relative share of the company's total
assets. The graph shows stockholder return performance for both
the old and new peer groups.

New peer group issuers are Alliant Energy Corp.,

Berry Petroleum Co., Black Hills Corp., Comstock Resources Inc,,
Dycom Industries Inc., EMCCR Group Inc., Encore Acquisition Co.,
Equitable Resources Inc., Granite Construction Inc.,

Martin Marietta Materials Inc., National Fuel Gas Co.,

Northwest Natural Gas Co., NSTAR, OGE Energy Corp.,

ONEOX Inc., Quanta Services Inc., Questar Corp., SCANA Corp.,
Southwest Gas Corp., St. Mary Land & Exploration Co.,

Swift Energy Co., U.S. Concrete Inc., Vectren Corp,,

Vulcan Materials Co. and Whiting Petroleum Corp.

Old peer group issuers are Allegheny Energy Inc., Allete Inc.,
Alliant Energy Corp., Black Hills Corp., Comstock Resources Inc.,
Equitable Resources Inc., Martin Marietta Materials Inc.,
Newfield Exploration Co., NICOR inc., OGE Energy Corp.,
ONEQK Inc., Quanta Services Inc., Questar Corp., SCANA Corp,,
Stone Energy Corp., TECO Energy Inc., UG| Corp., Yectren Corp.,
Vulcan Materials Co. and XTO Energy Inc.

When the compensation committee established the old peer
group in 2001, it included 27 companies, a number of which have
since merged into other companies and are excluded from the old
peer group for the entire period shown in the performance graph.
These companies are Florida Rock Industries Inc., Hanson PLC
ADR (delisted), Louis Dreyfus Natural Gas Corp., KeySpan Corp.,
Kinder Morgan Inc., Peoples Energy Corp. and Pogo Producing Co.
In August 2006, the compensation committee selected a new peer
group for 2007 with 30 companies. Four of these have since
merged into other companies and are excluded from the new peer
group for the entire period shown in the performance graph.
These companies are Florida Rock Industries Inc., Hanson PLC
ADR (delisted), Houston Exploration Co. and Infrasource Services
Inc. A fifth peer member, NRG Energy Inc., was removed as the
company decided to sell its domestic independent power

production assets.
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FORM 10-K

Xl ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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DEFINITIONS

The following abbreviations and acronyms used in this Form 10-K are

defined below:

Abbreviation or Acronym
AFUDC

AL)

Alusa

Anadarko

APB

APE Opinion No_ 25
Army Corps

Badger Hills Project
Bbl

Bef

BER

Big Stone Station

Big Stone Station 1)

Bitter Creek

Black Hills Power
BLM
Brascan

Brazilian Transmission Lines

Btu
Carib Power
Cascade

CBNG
CELESC
CEM

CEMIG
Centennial

Centennial Capital

Centennial International

Centenniat Power

Centennial Resources
CERCLA

Clean Air Act

Clean Water Act

CMS

Colorado Federal District Court

Allowance for funds used during
construction

Administrative Law Judge

Tecnica de Engenharia Electrica — Alusa
Anadarko Petroleum Corporation
Accounting Principles Board

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
LS. Army Corps of Engineers

Tongue River-Badger Hills Project

Barrel of oil or ather liquid hydrocarbons
Billion cubic feet

Montana Board ef Environmental Review

450-MW coalfired electric generating
facility located near Big Stone City,
South Dakcta (22.7 percent cwnership)

Proposed coatfire¢ electric generating
facility located near Big Stone City,
South Daketa (the Company anticipates
ownership of at least 116 MW)

Bitter Creek Pipelines, LLC, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of WBI Holdings

Black Hills Power and Light Company
Bureau of Land Management
Brascan Brasil Ltda.

Company’s equity method investment in
companies owning ECTE, ENTE and ERTE

British thermal unit
Carib Power Management LLC

Cascade Natural Gas Corperation, an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of MDU
Energy Capital (acquired July 2, 2007}

Coalbed natural gas
Centrais Elétricas de Santa Catarina S.A.

Colorado Energy Management, LLC, a
former direct wholly owned subsidiary of
Centennial Resources (sold in the third
quarter of 2007)

Companhia Energética de Minas Gerais

Centennial Energy Holdings, Inc., a direct
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

Centennial Holdings Capital LLC, a direct
whally owned subsidiary of Centennial

Centennial Energy Resources
International, Inc., a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of Centennial Resources

Centennial Power, Inc., a former

direct wholly owned subsidiary of
Centennial Resources (sold in the third
quarter of 2007)

Centennial Energy Resources LLC, & direct
whelly cwned subsidiary of Centennial

Comprehensive Envircnmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act

Federal Clean Air Act
Federal Clean Water Act
Cost Managemeant Services, Inc.

U.S. District Court for the District
of Colorado

.

Company
D.C. Appeals Court

dk
DRC
EBSR

ECTE

EIS
EITF
EITF No., 00-21

EITF No. 91-6

ENTE

EPA
ERTE

ESA
Exchange Act

FASB
FERC
Fidelity

FIN

FIN 47

FIN 48

Great Plains

Hartwell

Howell
IBEW
ICWU

Indenture

Innovatum

Item 8

Kennecott

Knife River

K-Pian
kW
kWh

MDU RESOURCES GROUP, INC. FORM 10-K

MDU Resources Group, Inc.

U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of
Columbia Cirguit

Decatherm
Dakota Resource Coungil

Elk Basin Storage Reservoir, one of
Williston Basin's natural gas storage
reservoirs, which is located in Montana
and Wyoming

£mpresa Catarinense de Transmiss3o de
Energia S.A.

Environmental Impact Statement
£merging lssues Task Force

Revenue Arrangements with Multipte
Deliverables

Revenue Recognition of Long-Term Power
Sales Contracts

Empresa Norte de TransmissZo de
Energia 5.A.

U.S. Erwviranmental Protection Agency

Empresa Regional de Transmissao de
Energia 5.A.

Endangered Species Act

Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended

Financial Accounting Standards Board
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

Fidelity Expleration & Production
Company, a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of WBI Heldings

FASB Interpretation No.

Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations - An Interpretation
of FASB Statement No. 143

Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes

Great Plains Natural Gas Co., a public
utility division of the Company

Hartwell Energy Limited Partnership,

a former equity method investment

of the Company (sold in the third quarter
of 2007)

Hewell Petroleum Corporation, & wholly
owned subsidiary of Anadarko

International Brotherhood of
Electrical Workers

International Chemical Workers Union

Indenture dated as of December 15, 2003,
as supplemented, from the Company to
The Bank of New York as Trustee

Innovatum, Inc., a former indirect

wholly owned subsidiary of WBI Holdings
{the stock and Innovatum’s assets have
been sold)

Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data

Kennecott Coal Sales Company

Knife River Corporation, a direct wholly
owned subsidiary of Centennial

Company’s 401{k) Retirement Plan
Kilowatts
Kilowatt-hour
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LWG
MAPP
MBbls

MBI

Mcf
MD&A

Mdk
MDU Brasil

MDU Construction Services

MDU Energy Capital
Midwest 1SO

MMBtu

MMcf

MMcfe

MMdk

MNPUC
Montana-Dakota

Montana DEQ
Montana Federal District Court

Mortgage

MPX

MTPSC

MW

ND Health Department
NDPSGC

NEPA

NHPA

Ninth Circuit

NPRC

oPUC

Order on Rehearing
Oregon DEQ

PCBs
PPA

Prairiefands

Proxy Statement
P5D
RCRA

FORM 10-K

Lower Willamette Group
Mid-Continent Area Power Pool

Thousands of barrels of oil or other
liquid hydrecarbons

Morse Bros., Inc., an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of Knife River

Thousand cubic feet

Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

Thousand decatherms

MDU Brasil Ltda., an indirect wholly
awned subsidiary of Centennial
International

MDU Constructicn Services Group, Inc.,
a direct wholly owned subsidiary of
Centennial

MDU Energy Capital, LLC, a direct whaolly
owned subsidiary of the Company

Midwest Independent Transmission
System Operator, Inc.

Million Btu

Million cubic feet

Million cubic feet equivalent

Million decatherms

Minnesota Public Utilities Commission

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co., a public
utility division of the Company

Montana State Department of
Environmental Quality

U.S. District Court for the District
of Montana

Indenture of Mortgage dated May 1,
1939, as supplemented, amerxled and
restated, from the Company to The Bank
of New York and Douglas J. Macinnes,
successor trustees

MPX Termoceara Ltda. (49 percent
ownership, sold in June 2005)

Montana Public Service Commission
Megawatt

North Dakota Department of Health
North Dakota Public Service Commission
National Environmental Policy Act
National Historic Preservation Act

tJ.S. Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals
Northern Plains Resource Ceuncil
Oregon Public Utilities Commission

Order on Rehearing and Compliance and
Remanding Certain Issues for Hearing

Oregon State Depariment of
Environmental Quality

Polychlorinated biphenyls
Power purchase and sale agreement

Prairielands Energy Marketing, Inc.,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
WB! Holdings

Company's 2008 Proxy Statement
Prevention of Significant Deterioration
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act

SOPUC
SEC

Securities Act Industry Guide 7

SEIS

SFAS

SFAS No.

SFAS No.
SFAS No.

SFAS No.

SFAS No.
SFAS No.
SFAS No.
SFAS No.

SFAS No.

SFAS No.

SFAS No.

SFAS No.

SFAS No.

SFAS No.

Al

109
115

123

123 (revised)
141 (revised)
142
143

144

148

157

158

159

160

Sheridan System

SMCRA

Stock Purchase Plan

Termoceara Generating Facility

TRWUA

WBI Holdings

Westmoreland
Williston Basin

WUTC

Wyoming DEQ

Wyoming Federal District Court

WYPSC

South Dakota Public Utilittes Commission

L.S. Securities and Exchange
Commissicn

Description of Property by Issuvers
Engaged or to be Engaged in Significant
Mining Operations

Supplemental Environmental Impact
Statemnent

Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards

Accounting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regulation

Accounting for Income Taxes

Accounting for Certain Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities

Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation

Share-Based Payment (revised 2004)
Business Combinations (revised 2007)
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obitigations

Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure
— an amendment of SFAS No. 123

Fair Value Measurements

Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans

The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Noncontralling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements — an amendment of
ARB No, 51 (Consolidated Financial
Statements)

A separate electric system owned by
Montana-Dakota

Surface Mining Control and
Reclamation Act

Company's Dividend Reinvestment and
Direct Stock Purchase Plan

220-MW natural gas-fired electric
generating facility in the Brazilian state
of Ceara, owned and gperated by MPX
{the Company’s 49-percent ownership
interest was sold in June 2003)

Tongue River Water Users’ Association

WBI Holdings, inc., a direct wheily owned
subsidiary of Centennial

Westmereland Coal Company

Williston Basin Interstate Pipeline
Company, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of WBI Holdings

Washington Utilities and Transportation
Commission

Wyoming State Department of
Environmental Quatity

.S, District Court for the District
of Wyoming

Wyoming Public Service Commission
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10K contains forward-ooking staterments within the meaning of Section 21E of the Exchange Act. Forward-looking statements
are all statements other than statements of historical fact, including withaut limitation those statements that are identified by the words
“anticipates,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “predicts” and similar expressions, and include statements concerning plans,
objectives, goals, strategies, future events or performance, and underlying assumptions (many of which are based, in turn, upon further
assumptions) and other statements that are other than statements of historical facts. From time to time, the Company may publish

or otherwise make available forward-looking statements of this nature, including statements contained within tem 7 — MD&A —
Praspective Information,

now

Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, which could cause actuat results or outcomes to differ materially from
those expressed. The Company’s expectations, beliefs and projections are expressed in good faith and are believed by the Company

to have a reasonable basis, including without limitation, management'’s examination of historical operating trends, data contained in the
Company's records and other data available from third parties. Nonetheless, the Company's expectations, beliefs or projections may
not be achieved or accomplished.

Any forward-looking statement contained in this document speaks only as of the date on which the statement is made, and the Company
undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement or statements to reflect events or circumstances that occur after the
date on which the statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is
not possible for management to predict all of the factors, nor can it assess the effect of each factor on the Company’s business or the
extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-
looking statement. All forward-looking statements, whether written or oral and whether made by or on behalf of the Company, are expressly
qualified by the risk factors and cautionary statements in this Form 10-K, including statements contained within Item 1A — Risk Factors.

Items 1 and 2. Business and Properties

GENERAL
The Company is a diversified natural resource company, which was incorporated under the laws of the state of Delaware in 1924, Its
principal executive offices are at 1200 West Century Avenue, P.O. Box 5650, Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5650, telephone (701) 530-1000.

Montana-Dakota, through the electric and natural gas distribution segments, generates, transmits and distributes electricity and distributes
natural gas in Montana, North Dakota, South Bakota and Wyoming. Great Plains distributes natural gas in western Minnesota and
southeastern North Dakota. Cascade distributes natural gas in Washington and Cregon. These operations also supply related value-added
products and services.

The Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Centennial, owns WBI Holdings (corprised of the pipeline and energy services and the
natural gas and oil production segments), Knife River {construction materials and contracting segment — formerly construction materials
and mining), MDU Construction Services (construction services segment), Centennial Resources and Centennial Capital {both reflected in
the Qther category).

The Company’s equity method investment in the Brazilian Transmission Lines, as discussed in Item 8 — Note 4, is refiected in the
Cther category.

As discussed in ltem 8 — Note 3, the Company sold its domestic independent power production assets in the third quarter of 2007.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had 12,293 employees with 161 employed at MOU Resources Group, Inc., 900 at Montana-Dakota,
35 at Great Plains, 376 at Cascade, 570 at WBI Holdings, 4,905 at Knife River, 5,343 at MDU Construction Services and three at Centennial
Resources. The number of employees at certain Company operations flustuates during the year depending upon the number and size of
construction projects. The Company considers its relations with employees to be satisfactory.

At Montana-Dakota and Williston Basin, 437 and 79 employees, respectively, are represented by the IBEW. Labor contracts with such
employees are in effect through May 30, 2011, and March 31, 2008, for Montana-Dakota and Williston Basin, respectively. Williston Basin
is in negotiations on its labor contract,

At Cascade, 210 employees are represented by the ICWU. Labor contracts with such employees extend to April 1, 2009, and remain in
farce thereafter from year to year unless terminated by either party.

Knife River has 43 labor contracts that represent approximately 900 of its construction materials employees. Knife River is in negotiations
on six of its labor contracts.
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MDU Construction Services has B1 labor contracts representing the majority of its employees. The majority of the labor contracts contain
provisions that prohibit work stoppages or strikes and provide for binding arbitration dispute resolution in the event of an extended
disagreement.

The Company's principal properties, which are of varying ages and are of different construction types, are generally in good condition, are
well maintained and are generally suitable and adequate for the purposes for which they are used.

The financial results and data applicable to each of the Company’s business segments, as well as their financing requirements, are set forth
in Item 7 — MD&A and ltem 8 — Note 16 and Supplementary Financial Information.

The operations of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations providing for air,
water and solid waste pollution control; state facility-siting regulations; zening and planning regulations of certain state and local authorities;
federal health and safety regulations and state hazard communication standards. The Company believes that it is in substantial compliance
with these regulations, except as to what may be ultimately determined with regard to items discussed in Environmental matters in

ltem B — Note 20. There are nc pending CERCLA actions for any of the Company's properties, other than the Portland, Oregon, Harbor
Superfund Site.

Governmental regulations establishing environmenital protection standards are continuously evolving and, therefore, the character, scope,
cost and availability of the measures that will permit compliance with these laws or regulations cannot be accurately predicted. Disclosure
regarding specific environmental matters applicable to each of the Company’s businesses is set forth under each business description below.

This annual report on Form 10-K, the Company's quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, the Company’s current reports on Form 8-K and any
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant ta Section 13(a) or 15(d} of the Exchange Act are available free of charge through
the Company’s Web site as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company has electronically fited such reports with, or furnished such
reports to, the SEC. The Company’s Web site address is www.mdu.com. The information available on the Company’s Web site is not part of
this annual report on Form 10-K.

ELECTRIC

General Mentana-Dakota provides electric service at retail, serving over 120,000 residential, commercial, industriat and municipal customers
located in 177 communities and adjacent rural areas as of December 31, 2007. The principal properties owned by Montana-Dakota for use
in its electric operations include interests in eight electric generating facilities, as further described under System Supply, System Demand
and Competition, and approximately 3,000 and 4,500 miles of transmission and distribution lines, respectively. Montana-Dakota has
obtained and holds, or is in the process of renewing, valid and existing franchises autharizing it to conduct its electric operations in all of
the municipalities it serves where such franchises are reguired. Montana-Dakota intends to protect its service area and seek renewal of all
expiring franchises. As of December 31, 2007, Montana-Dakota’s net electric plant investment approximated $3%0 million.

Substantially all of Montana-Dakota’s electric properties are subject to the lien of the Mortgage and to the junior lien of the Indenture.

The percentage of Montana-Dakota’s 2007 retail electric utility operating revenues by jurisdiction is as follows: North Dakata — 62 percent;
Mantana — 21 percent; South Dakota — 7 percent; and Wyoming — 10 percent. Retail electric rates, service, accounting and certain security
issuances are subject to regulation by the NDPSC, MTPSC, SDPUC and WYPSC. The interstate transmission and whotesale electric power
operations of Montana-Dakota also are subject to regulation by the FERC under provisions of the Federal Power Act, as are interconnections
with other utilities and power generators, the issuance of securities, accounting and other matters. Montana-Dakota participates in the
Midwest ISO wholesale energy market.

The Midwest ISO is a regional transmission organization responsible for cperational control of the transmission systems of its members.
The Midwest ISO provides security center operations, tariff administraion and operates a day-ahead and real-time energy market. As

a member of Midwest ISO, Montana-Dakota’s generation is sold into the Midwest ISO energy market and its energy needs are purchased
from that market.

System Supply, System Demand and Competition Through an interconnected electric system, Montana-Dakota serves markets in
portions of western North Dakota, including Bismarck, Dickinson and Williston; eastern Montana, including Glendive and Miles City; and
northern South Dakota, including Mobridge. The interconnected system consists of eight electric generating facilities, which have an
aggregate nameplate rating attributable to Montana-Dakota’s interest of 455,555 kW and a total summer net capability of 483,360 kW.
Montana-Dakota’s four principal generating stations are steam-turbine generating units using coal for fuel. The nameplate rating for
Montana-Dakota’s ownership interest in these four stations {including interests in the Big Stone Station and the Coyote Station,
aggregating 22.7 percent and 25.0 percent, respectively) is 327,758 kW. During 2007, Montana-Dakota began construction on 19,500 kW
of wind-powered electric generation near Baker, Montana. Approximately 1,500 kW of this project came online in December 2007, and
the remainder came online in early 2008, and is reflected in the following table. Three combustion turbing peaking stations and the
wind-powered electric generating facility supply the balance of Montana-Dakota’s interconnected system electric generating capability.
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In September 2005, Montana-Dakota entered into a contract for seasonal capacity from a neighboring utility, starting at 85 MW in 2007,
increasing to 105 MW in 2011, with an option for capacity in 2012. In April 2007, Montana-Dakota entered into an additional contract for
seasonal capacity of 10 MW in May through Qctober of each year continuing through 2010. Energy also will be purchased as needed from
the Midwest 1ISO market. In 2007, Montana-Dakota purchased approximately 13 percent of its kWh needs for its interconnected system
through the Midwest ISQ market.

The following table sets forth details applicable to the Company's electric generating stations:

2007 Net
Nameptate Summer Generation
Rating Capability [kWhin
Generating Station Type kW) {kw) thousands}
North Dakota:
Coyote* Steam 103,647 106,750 750,670
Heskett Steam 86,000 103,260 618,431
Willisten Combustion Turbine 7.800 9,600 (5)**
South Dakota:
Big Stone* Steam 4111 105,950 554,667
Montana;
Lewis & Clark Steam 44,000 52,300 314,672
Glendive Combustion Turbine 77347 78,900 12,477
Miles City Combustion Turbine 23,150 22,300 2,623
Diamond Willow Wind 19,500 4,300*** 16
455,555 483,360 2,253,851

* Reflects Montana-Uiakota's ownership interest.
~ * Station use, to meet MAPP's accreditation requirements, exceeded generation.
*** Pending accreditation.

Virtually all of the current fue! requirements of the Coyote, Heskett and Lewis & Clark stations are met with coal supplied by

subsidiaries of Westmoreland. Contracts with Westmoreland for the Coyote, Heskett and Lewis & Clark stations expire in May 2016,
April 2011 and December 2012, respectively. The Coyote coal supply agreement provides for the purchase of coal necessary to supply
the coal requirements of the Coyote Station or 30,000 tons per week, whichever may be the greater quantity at contracted pricing. The
maximum quantity of coal during the term of the agreement, and any extension, is 75 million tons. The Heskett and Lewis & Clark coal
supply agreements provide for the purchase of coal necessary to supply the coal requirements of these stations at contracted pricing.
Montana-Dakota estimates the Heskett and Lewis & Clark coal requirement to be in the range of 500,000 te 600,000 tons, and 250,000
to 350,000 tons per contract year, respectively,

A coal supply agreement, entered into in August 2007 with Kennecott, meets the majority of the Big Stone Station’s fuel requirements for
the years 2008 to 2010 at contracted pricing. The Kennecott agreement provides for the purchase of 2.1 million, 1.8 million and 1.0 million
tons of coal in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2005, through December 31, 2007, the average cost of coal purchased, including freight at
Montana-Dakota's electric generating stations (including the Big Stone and Coyote stations) was as follows:

Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Average cost of coal per MMBtu $1.29 $ 126 $ 114
Average cost of coat per ton $18.71 $18.48 $17.00

The maximum electric peak demand experienced to date attributable to sales to retail customers on the interconnected system was
525,643 kW in July 2007. Montana-Dakota's latest forecast for its interconnected system indicates that its annual peak will continue to
occur during the summer and the peak demand growth rate through 2013 will approximate less than 1 percent annually.

Montana-Dakota expects that it has adequate capacity available through existing baseload generating stations, wind-powered generation,
turbine peaking stations and firm contracts to meet the peak demand requirements of its customers through 2012. Future capacity that is
needed to replace contracts and meet system growth requirements is expected to be met by constructing new generation resources or
acquiring additional capacity through power contracts. For additional information regarding potential power generation projects, see Item 7
~ MD&A — Prospective Information — Electric.

Montana-Dakota has major intercennecticns with its neighboring utilities and considers these interconnections adequate for coordinated
planning, emergency assistance, exchange of capacity and energy and power supply reliability.
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Through the Sheridan System, Montana-Dakota serves Sheridan, Wyoming, and neighboring communities. The maximum peak demand
experienced to date and attributable to Montana-Dakota sates to retail customers on that system was approximately 60,600 kW and
occurred in july 2007.

In December 2004, Montana-Dakota entered into a power supply contract with Black Hills Power to purchase up to 74,000 kW of
capacity annually during the period from January 1, 2007, to December 31, 2016. This contract also provides an option for Montana-Dakota
to purchase 25 MW of an existing or future baseload coalfired electric generating facility from Black Hills Power to serve the Sheridan foad.

Montana-Dakota is subject to competition in varying degrees, in certain areas, from rural electric cooperatives, on-site generators,
co-generators and municipally owned systems. In addition, competition in varying degrees exists between electricity and alternative forms
of energy such as natural gas.

Regulatory Matters and Revenues Subject to Refund Fuel adjustment clauses contained in North Dakota and South Dakota
jurisdictional electric rate schedules allow Montana-Dakota to reflect monthly increases or decreases in fuel and purchased power costs
(excluding demand charges). In North Dakota, the Company is deferring electric fuel and purchased power costs {excluding demand
charges] that are greater or less than amounts presently being recovered through its existing rate schedules. In Wyoming, an annual Electric
Power Supply Cost Adjustment mechanism allows Montana-Dakota to reflect increases or decreases in fuel and purchased power costs
(including demand charges) related to power supply and Montana-Dakota is deferring costs that are greater or less than amounts presently
being recovered through its existing rate schedules. Such orders generally provide that these amounts are recoverable or refundable
through rate adjustments within a period ranging from 14 to 25 months from the time such costs are paid. In Montana, such cost changes
are includable in general rate filings. For acditional information, see Item 8 — Note 19.

In July 2007, Montana-Dakota filed an electric rate case with the MTPSC. For additional information, see Item 8 — Note 19.

In November 2006, Montana-Dakota fifed an application with the NDPSC requesting an advance determination of prudence of
Muontana-Dakota's ownership interest in Big Stone Station 1. For additional information, see Item 8 — Note 19.

Environmental Matters Montana-Dakota’s electric operations are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations providing for air,
water and solid waste pollution control; state facility-siting regulations; zaning and planning regulations of certain state and local authorities;
federal health and safety regulations; and state hazard communication standards. Montana-Dakota believes it is in substantial compliance
with these regulations.

Montana-Dakota’s electric generating facilities have Title V Operating Permits, under the Clean Air Act, issued by the states in which it
operates. Each of these permits has a five-year life. Near the expiration of these permits, renewal applications are submitted. Permits
continue in force beyond the expiration date, provided the application for renewal is submitted by the required date, usually six months
prior to expiration. Renewal is pending for the Big Stone Station Title V Cperating Permit which expired in 2002. An application for renewal
will be submitted for the Coyote Station Title V Operating Permit that expires in September 2008. State water discharge permits issued
under the requirements of the Clean Water Act are maintained for power production facilities on the Yellowstone and Missouri rivers.
These permits also have five-year lives. Montana-Daketa renews these permits as necessary prior to expiration. Other permits held by
these facilities may include an initial siting permit, which is typically a one-time, preconstruction permit issued by the state; state permits
to dispose of combustion by-products; state authorizations to withdraw water for operations; and Army Corps permits to construct water
intake strictures, Montana-Dakota’s Army Corps permits grant one-time permission to construct and do not require renewal. Other permit
terms vary and the permits are renewed as necessary.

Meontana-Dakota's electric operations are conditionally exempt small-quantity hazardous waste generators and subject only to minimum
regulation under the RCRA. Montana-Dakota routinely handles PCBs from its electric operations in accordance with federal requirements,
PCB storage areas are registered with the EPA as required.

tn November 2006, the Sierra Club sent a notice of intent to file a citizen suit in federal court under the Clean Air Act to the co-owners,
including Montana-Dakota, of the Big Stone Station. For more information regarding this notice, see Item 8 — Note 20.

Montana-Dakota incurred $7.8 million of environmental expenditures in 2007, Expenditures are estimated to be $2%.3 million, $19.5 million
and $6.3 million in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively, to maintain environmental compliance as new emission controls are required,
Projects will include sulfur-dioxide and mercury control equipment instaltation at electric generating facilities. For matters involving
Montana-Dakota and the ND Health Department, see ltem 8 — Note 20.
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NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION

General The Company's natural gas distribution operations consist of Montana-Dakota, Great Plains and Cascade. Montana-Dakota
sells natural gas at retail, serving over 234,000 residential, commercial and industrial customers in 145 communities and adjacent rural
areas as of December 31, 2007, and provides natural gas transportation services t¢ certain customers on its system. Great Plains sells
natural gas at retail, serving over 22,000 residential, commercial and industrial customers in 19 communities and adjacent rural areas as
of December 31, 2007, and provides natural gas transportation services to certain customers on its system. Cascade sells natural gas

at retail, serving over 250,000 residential, commercial and industrial customers in 98 communities and adjacent rural areas as of
December 31, 2007, and provides natural gas transportation services to certain customers on its system. These services for the three
public utility operations are provided through distribution systems aggregating approximately 11,400 miles. The natural gas distribution
operations have obtained and hold, or are in the process of renewing, valid and existing franchises authorizing them to conduct their natural
gas operations in all of the municipalities they serve where such franchises are required. These operations intend to protect their service
areas and seek renewal of all expiring franchises, As of December 31, 2007, Montana-Dakola’s, Great Plains’ and Cascade’s net natural
gas distribution plant investment approximated $527.5 million,

Substantially alt of Montana-Dakota’s natural gas distribution properties are subject to the fien of the Mortgage and to the junior lien of
the Indenture. !

The percentage of the natural gas distribution operations’ 2007 natural gas utility operating sales revenues by jurisdiction is as follows:
North Dakota — 23 percent; Minnesota — 8 percent, Montana — 15 percent; Oregon — 10 percent; South Dakota — 12 percent; Washington
— 29 percent and Wyoming — 3 percent. The above percentages reflect operating sales revenues of Cascade since the date of acquisition.
The natural gas distribution operations are subject to regulation by the NDPSC, MNPUC, MTPSC, OPUC, SDPUC, WUTC and WYPSC
regarding retail rates, service, accounting and certain security issuances.

System Supply, System Demand and Competition The natural gas distribution operations serve retail natural gas markets, consisting
principally of residential and firm commercial space and water heating users, in portions of North Dakota, including Bismarck, Dickinson,
Wahpeton, Wiltiston, Minot and Jamestown; western Minnesota, including Fergus Falls, Marshall and Crookston; eastern Montana, including
Billings, Glendive and Miles City; central and eastern Oregon, including Bend and Pendleton; western and north-central South Dakota,
including Rapid City, Pierre and Mobridge; western and south-central Washington, including Bellingham, Bremerion, Longview, Moses Lake,
Mount Vernan, Tri-Cities, Walla Walla and Yakima; and northern Wyoming, inctuding Sheridan. These markets are highly seasonal and sales
volumes depend largely on the weather, the effects of which are mitigated in certain jurisdictions by a weather normalization mechanism
discussed in Regulatery Matters.

Competition in varying degrees exists between natural gas and other fuels and forms of energy. The natural gas distribution operations have
established various natural gas transpartation service rates for their distribution businesses to retain interruptible commercia! and industrial
loads. Certain of these services include transportation under flexible rate schedules whereby interruptible customers can avail themselves
of the advantages of open access transportation on regional transmission pipelines, including the system of Williston Basin, Northern
Natural Gas Company, Viking Gas Transmission Company and Northwest Pipeline GP. These services have enhanced Montana-Dakota's,
Great Plains’ and Cascade’s competitive posture with alternative fuels, although certain of Montana-Dakota’s and Cascade’s customers
have bypassed the respective distribution systems by directly accessing transmission pipefines located within close proximity. These
bypasses did not have a material effect on results of eperations.

The natural gas distribution operations obtain their system requirements directly from producers, processors and marketers. Such natural
gas is supplied by a portfolio of contracts specifying market-based pricing and is transported under transportation agreements by Witliston
Basin, South Dakota Intrastate Pipeline Company, Northern Border Pipeline Company, Viking Gas Transmission Company, Northern Natural
(as Company, Source Gas, TransCanada Alberta System, TransCanada Foothills System, Northwestern Energy, Northwest Pipeline GP, Gas
Transmission Northwest Corporation and Spectra Energy Gas Transmission to provide firm service to their customers. Montana-Dakota also
has contracted with Williston Basin, Great Plains with Northern Natural Gas Company, and Cascade with Northwest Pipefine GP, to provide
firm storage services that enable all three operations to meet winter peak requirements as well as allow them to better manage their natural
gas costs by purchasing natural gas at more uniform daily volumes throughout the year. Demand for natural gas, which is a widely traded
commaodity, has historically been sensitive to seasonal heating and industrial load requirements as well as changes in market price.
Montana-Dakota, Great Plains and Cascade bekieve that, based on regional supplies of natural gas and the pipeline transmission network
currently available through their suppliers and pipeline service providers, supplies are adequate to meet their system natural gas
requirements for the next five years,

Regulatory Matters Montana-Dakota’s, Great Plains’ and Cascade’s retail natural gas rate schedules contain clauses permitting
adjustments in rates based upon changes in natural gas commodity, transportation and storage costs. Current tarifis allow for recovery
or refunds of under or over recovered gas costs within a period ranging from 14 to 28 months.

Montana-Dakota’s North Dakota, South Dakota-Black Hills and South Dakota-East River area natural gas tariffs contain a weather
normalization mechanism applicable to firm customers that adjusts the distribution delivery charge revenues to reflect weather fluctuations
during the billing period from November 1 through May 1.
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Cascade has received approval for decoupling its margins from weather and conservation in Oregon, and has also received approval of
a decoupling mechanism in Washington which allows it to recover margin differences resulting from customer conservation. Cascade also
has an earnings sharing mechanism with respect to its Oregon jurisdictional operations as required by the QPUC.

Environmental Matters The natural gas distribution operaticns are subject to federal, state and tocal environmental, facility-siting,
zoning and planning laws and regulations. Montana-Dakota, Great Plains and Cascade believe they are in substantial compliance with
those regulations.

Natural gas distribution operatians are conditionally exempt small-quantity hazardous waste generators and subject only to minimum
regulation under the RCRA. Montana-Dakota, Great Plains and Cascade routinely handle PCBs from their natural gas operations in
accordance with federal requirements, PCB storage areas are registered with the EPA as required.

Mentana-Dakota, Great Plains, and Cascade did not incur any material environmental expenditures in 2007 and, except as to what
may be ultimately determined with regard to the issues described below, do not expect to incur any material capital expenditures related
to environmental compliance with current laws and regulations in relation to the natural gas distribution operations through 2010,

Mantana-Dakota completed remediation of a manufactured gas plant locatec in Bismarck, North Dakcta, in 2007. Expenses related

to this work were approximately $1.0 million and are expected to be recovered in rates through the regulatory process. In addition,
Montana-Dakota has had an economic interest in five other historic manufactured gas plants within its service territory, none of which

are currently being actively investigated, and for which any remediation expenses are not expected to be material. Cascade has had an
ecenomic interest in nine former manufactured gas plants within its service territory, Cascade has been invelved with other potentially
responsible parties in the investigation of a manufactured gas plant site in Oregon, with remediation of this site pending acditional
investigation. See ltem 8 — Note 20 for a further discussion of this site and an additional site for which Cascade has received claim notice.
Cascade believes the cost of claims for investigation and remediation of contamination at these sites is covered by insurance. To the
extent not covered by insurance, Cascade will seek recovery of costs through its rates.

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

General MDU Construction Services consists of diversified infrastructure construction companies specializing in the construction and
maintenance of electric and natural gas distribution and transmission lines, and communication lines as well as inside electricai wiring,
cabling and mechanical work, fire protection, utility excavation and the manufacture and distribution of specialty equipment. These
services are provided to utilities and large manufacturing, commercial, industrial, institutional and government customers.

In 2007, the Company acquired a construction service business in Nevada. This acquisition was not material to the Company.

Construction and maintenance crews are active year round. However, activity in certain locations may be seasonal in nature due to the
effects of weather.

MDU Construction Services operates a fleet of owned and leased trucks and trailers, support vehicles and specialty construction
equipment, such as backhoes, excavators, trenchers, generators, boring machines and cranes. In addition, as of December 31, 2007,
MDU Construction Services owned or leased facilities in 16 states. This space is used for offices, equipment yards, warehousing, storage
and vehicle shops. At December 31, 2007, MDU Construction Services' net plant investment was approximately $48.2 million.

MBU Construction Services' backlog is comprised of the uncompleted portion of services t¢ be performed under jeb-specific contracts.
The backlog at December 31, 2007, was approximately $827 million compared to $527 million at December 31, 2006, MDU Construction
Services expects o complete a significant amount of this backlog during the year ending Dacember 31, 2008. Due to the nature of its
contractual arrangements, in many instances MDU Construction Services' customers are not committed to the specific volumes of services
to be purchased under a contract, but rather MDU Caonstruction Services is committed to perform these services if and to the extent
requested by the customer. Therefore, there can be no assurance as to the customer’s requirements during a particular period or that such
estimates at any point in time are predictive of future revenues.

This industry is experiencing a shertage of skilled laborers in certain areas. MDU Construction Services works with the National Electrical
Contractors Association, the IBEW and other trade associations on hiring and recruiting a qualified workforce.

Competition MDU Construction Services operates in a highly competitive business environment. Most of MDU Canstruction Services'
waork is obtained cn the basis of competitive bids or by negotiation of either cost-plus or fixed-price contracts. The workforce and
equipment are highly mobile, providing greater flexibility in the size and location of MDU Construction Services’ market area. Competition

is based primarily on price and reputation for quality, safety and reliability. The size and location of the services provided, as well as the
state of the economy, will be factors in the number of competitors that MDU Construction Services will encounter on any particular project.
MBU Construction Services believes that the diversification of the services it provides, the markets it serves throughout the United States
and the management of its workforce will enable it to effectively operate in this competitive environment,
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Utilities and independent contractors represent the largest customer base for this segment. Accordingly, utility and subcentract work
accounts for a significant portion of the work performed by MDU Construction Services and the amount of construction contracts is
dependent to a certain extent on the level and timing of maintenance and construction programs undertaken by customers. MDU
Construction Services relies on repeat customers and strives to maintain successful long-term relationships with these customers.

Environmental Matters MDU Canstruction Services’ operaticns are subject to regulation customary for the industry, including federal,
state and local environmental compliance. MDU Construction Services believes it is in substantial compliance with these regulations.

The nature of MDU Construction Services' operations is such that few, if any, environmental permits are required. Operational
convenience supports the use of petroleumn storage tanks in several locations, which are permitted under state programs authorized

by the EPA. MDU Construction Services has no ongeing remediation related to releases from petroleum storage tanks. MDU Construction
Services’ operations are conditionally exempt small-quantity waste generators, subject to minimal regulation under the RCRA. Federal
permits for specific construction and maintenance jobs that may require these permits are typically obtained by the hiring entity,

and not by MDU Construction Services.

MDU Construction Services did not incur any material environmental expenditures in 2007 and does not expect to incur any material capital
expenditures related to environmental compliance with current laws and regulations through 2010.

PIPELINE AND ENERGY SERVICES

General Williston Basin, the regulated business of WBI Holdings, owns and operates over 3,700 miles of transmissicn, gathering and
storage lines and owns or leases and operates 30 compressor stations in the states of Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota and
Wyoming. Three underground storage fields in Montana and Wyoming provide storage services to local distribution companies, producers,
natural gas marketers and others, and serve to enhance system deliverability. Williston Basin's system is strategically located near five
natural gas producing basins, making natural gas supplies available to Williston Basin’s transportation and storage customers. The system
has 11 interconnecting paints with other pipeline facilities allowing for the receipt and/or delivery of natural gas to and from other regions
of the country and from Canada. At December 31, 2007, Williston Basin's net plant investment was approximately $245.6 million.

Under the Natural Gas Act, as amended, Williston Basin is subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC regarding certificate, rate, service and
accounting matters.

Bitter Creek, the nonregulated pipeline business, owns and operates gathering facilities in Colorado, Kansas, Montana and Wyoming.

Bitter Creek also owns a one-sixth interest in the assets of various offshore gathering pipelines, an associated onshore pipeline and related
processing facilities. In total, these facilities include over 1,900 miles of field gathering lines and 85 owned or leased compression fagilities,
some of which interconnect with Williston Basin's system. In addition, Bitter Creek provides installation sales and/or leasing of alternate
energy delivery systems, primarily propane air facilities, energy efficiency product sales and installation services to large end users.

WEI Holdings, through its energy services business, provides natural gas purchase and sales services to local distribution companies,
producers, other marketers and a limited number of large end users, primarily using natural gas produced by the Company’s natural gas
and oil production segment. Certain of the services are provided based on contracts that call for a determinabte quantity of natural gas.
WBI Holdings currently estimates that it can adequately meet the requirements of these contracts. WBI Holdings transacts a substantial
majority of its pipeline and energy services business in the northern Great Plains and Rocky Mountain regions of the United States.

System Demand and Competition Williston Basin competes with several pipelines for its customers’ transportation, storage and
gathering business and at times may discount rates in an effort to retain market share. However, the strategic location of Williston Basin’s
system near five natural gas producing basins and the availability of underground storage and gathering services provided by Williston Basin
and afftliates along with interconneciions with other pipelings serve to enhance Williston Basin's competitive position.

Although certain of Williston Basin's firm customers, including its largest firm customer Montana-Dakota, serve relatively secure residential
and commercial end users, they generally all have some price-sensitive end users that could switch to alternate fuels.

Williston Basin transports substantially all of Montana-Dakota’s natural gas, primarily utilizing firm transportation agreements, which for
the year ended December 31, 2007, represented 57 percent of Williston Basin’s currently subscribed firm transportation contract demand.
Montana-Dakata has a firm transportation agreement with Williston Basin for a term of five years expiring in June 2012. in addition,
Montana-Dakata has a contract with Williston Basin to provide firm storage services to facilitate meeting Montana-Dakota’s winter peak
requirements for a term of 20 years expiring in July 2015,

Bitter Creek competes with several pipelines for existing customers and the expansion of its systems to gather natural gas in new areas.
Bitter Creek’s strong position in the fields in which it operates, its focus on customer service and the variety of services it offers, along with
i¢s interconnection with various other pipelines, serve to enhance its competitive pasition.
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System Supply Williston Basin’s underground natural gas storage facilities have a certificated storage capacity of approximately

353 Bcf, including 193 Bef of working gas capacity, 85 Bef of cushion gas and 75 Bef of native gas. The native gas includes an estimated
29 Bcef of recoverable gas. Williston Basin's storage facilities enable its customers 1o purchase natural gas at more uniform daily volumes
throughout the year and, thus, facilitate meeting winter peak requirements. For information regarding natural gas storage legal proceedings,
see ltem 1A — Risk Factors — Other Risks and ltem § — Note 20.

Natural gas supplies emanate from traditional and nontraditional natural gas proguction activities in the region and from off-system supply
sources. While certain traditional regional supply sources are in various stages of decline, incremental supply from nontraditional sources
have been developed which have helped support Williston Basin's supply needs. This includes new natural gas supply associated with the
continued development of the Bakken play in Montana and North Dakota. The Powder River Basin, including the Company’s CBNG assets,
also provides a nontraditional natural gas supply to the Williston Basin system. For additional information regarding CBNG legal proceedings,
see Itern 1A — Risk Factors — Environmental and Regulatory Risks and ltem 8 — Note 20. In addition, off-system supply sources are available
through the Company’s interconnections with other pipeline systems. Williston Basin expects to facilitate the movement of these supplies
by making available its transportation and storage services, Williston Basin will continue to look for opportunities to increase transportation,
gathering and storage services through system expansion and/or other pipeling interconnections or enhancements that could provide
substantial future benefits.

Regulatory Matters and Revenues Subject to Refund In December 1999, Williston Basin filed a general natural gas rate change
application with the FERC. For additional information, see Item 8 — Note 19,

Environmental Matters WBI Holdings’ pipeline and energy services operations are generally subject to federal, state and local environmental,
facility-siting, zoning and planning laws and regulations. WBI Holdings believes it is in substantial compliance with those regulations.

Ongoing operations are subject to the Clean Air Act and the Clean Water Act. Administration of many provisions of these laws has been
delegated to the states where Williston Basin and Bitter Creek operate, and permit terms vary, Some permits require annual renewal, some
have terms ranging from one to five years and others have no expiration date. Permits are renewed as necessary.

Detailed environmental assessments are included in the FERC's permitting processes for both the construction and abandonment of
Williston Basin's natural gas transmission pipelines and storage facilities.

WBI Holdings’ pipeline and energy services operations did not incur any material environmental expenditures in 2007 and do not expect
to incur any material capital expenditures related to environmental compliance with current laws and regulations through 2010.

NATURAL GAS AND OIL PRODUCTION

General Fidelity is involved in the acquisition, exploration, development and production of natural gas and ol resources. Fidelity's
activities include the acquisition of producing properties and leaseholds with potential development opportunities, exploratory drilling and
the operation and development of natural gas and oil production properties. Fidelity continues to seek additiona! reserve and production
growth opportunities through these activities. Future growth is dependent upon its success in these endeavors. Fidelity shares revenues
and expenses from the development of.specified preperties in proportion to its ownership interests.

Fidelity's business is focused primarily in three core regions: Rocky Mountain, Mid-Continent /Guif States and Offshore Gulf of Mexico.

Rocky Mountain

Fidelity’s properties in this region are primarily located in the states of Colorado, Montana, North Dakota, Utah and Wyoming. Fidelity owns
in fee or holds natural gas and oil leases for the properties it operates that are in the Bonny Field located in eastern Colorado, the Baker
Field in southeastern Montana and southwestern North Dakota, the Bowdoin area located in north-central Montana, the Powder River Basin
of Montana and Wyoming, the Bakken formation in North Dakota, the Paradox Basin of Utah, and the Big Horn Basin of Wyoming. Fidelity
also owns nonoperated natural gas and oil interests and undeveloped acreage positions in this region.

Mid-Continent/Gulf States

This region includes properties in Alabama, Louisiana, New Mexico, Oklahoma and Texas. Fidelity owns in fee or helds natural gas

and oil leases for the properties it operates that are in the Tabasco and Texan Gardens fields of Texas. In addition, Fidelity owns several
nonoperated interests and undeveloped acreage positions in this region. On January 31, 2008, Fidelity completed the acquisition of
natural gas properties located in Rusk County in eastern Texas. For additional informaticn, see ltem 8 — Note 21.

Offshore Gulf of Mexico
Fidelity has nonoperated interests throughout the Offshore Gulf of Mexico. These interests are primarily located in the shallow waters off
the coasts of Texas and Louisiana.
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Operating Information Annuzl net production by region for 2007 was as follows:

Natural
Gas qil Total Percent of
Region {MMcf) (MBbis) (MMcfe) Total
Rocky Mountain 48,832 1,287 56,553 74%
Midg-Continent/Gulf States 9,602 727 13,962 18
Offshore Gulf of Mexico 4,364 351 6,473 g
Total 62,798 2,365 76,988 100%

Well and Acreage tnformation Gross and net productive well counts and gross and net developed and undeveloped acreage related
to Fidelity's interests at December 31, 2007, were as follows:

Gross* Net**
Productive wells:
Natural gas 3,978 3,180
Qil 3.797 233
Total 7775 3,413
Develcped acreage (000's) 751 379
Undeveloped acreage (000's) 1,039 483

* Reflacts well or acreage in which an interest is owned.
** Reflects Fidelity’s percentage of ownsrship.

Exploratory and Development Wells The following table refiects activities relating to Fidelity’s natural gas and oil wells drilled and /or
tested during 2007, 2006 and 2005:

Net Exploratory Net Development
Productive Dry Holes Total Productive Dry Holes Total Total
2007 4 5 9 317 16 333 342
2006 4 1 5 331 1 332 337
2005 2 3 5 312 25 337 342

At December 31, 2007, there were 170 gross (139 net) wells in ihe process of drilling or under evaluation, 140 of which were development
wells and 10 of which were exploratory wells. These wells are not included in the previous table. Fidelity expects to complete the drilling and
testing of the majority of these wells within the next 12 months,

The information in the table above should not be considered indicative of future performance nor should it be assumed that there is
necessarily any correlation between the number of productive wells drilled and quantities of reserves found or economic value. Productive
wells are those that produce commercial quantities of hydrocarbons whether or not they produce a reasonable rate of return.

Competition The natural gas and oil industry is highly competitive. Fidelity competes with a substantial number of major and independent
natural gas and oil companies in acquiring producing properties and new leases for future exploration and development, and in securing the
equipment, services and expertise necessary to explore, develop and operate its properties.

Environmental Matters Fidelity’s natural gas and oil preduction operations are generally subject to federal, state and local environmental,
facility-siting, zoning and planning laws and regulations. Fidelity believes it is in substantial compliance with these regulations.

The ongoing operations of Fidelity are subject to the Clean Water Act, the Clean Air Act, and other federal and state environmental
regulations. Administration of many provisions of the federal laws has been delegated to the states where Fidelity operates, and permit
terms vary, Some permits have terms ranging from one to five years and others have no expiration date.

Detailed environmental assessments and /or environmental impact statements under federal and state laws are required as part of the
permitting process incidental to the commencement of drilling and production operations as well as in the closure, abandonment and
reclamation of facilities.

In connection with praduction operations, Fidetity has incurred certain capital expenditures related to water handling. For 2007, capital
expenditures for water handling in compliance with current laws and regulations were approximately $4.7 million and are estimated to be
approximately $3.7 million, $5.7 million and $4.5 million in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively. These water handling costs are primarily
related to the CBNG properiies. For more information regarding CBNG legal proceedings, see ltem 1A — Risk Factors and ltem 8 - Note 20.
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Reserve Information Estimates of reserves are arrived at using actual historical wellhead production trends and/or standard reservoir
engineering methods utilizing available geological, geophysical, engineering and ecanomic data. Other factors used in the reserve estimates
are current natural gas and oil prices, current estimates of well operating and future development costs, taxes, timing of operations, and the
interest owned by the Company in the well. The reserve estimates are prepared by internal engineers and are reviewed by management.

These estimates are refined as new information becomes available.

Fidelity's recoverable proved reserves by region at December 31, 2007, are as follows:

Natural PV-10
Gas Qil Tolal Percent Value*
Region [MMch) {MBhbls} [MMcfie} of Total {in millions)
Rocky Mountain 392,174 22,18 524,883 74% $1,398.4
Mid-Continent /Guif States 119,500 7,616 165,197 23 527.0
Qffshore Gulf of Mexico 12,063 878 17,329 3 821
Total reserves 523,737 30,612 707,409 100% $2,007.5

* PV-10 value represents the discounted future net cash flows attributable to proved reserves before income taxes, discounted at 10 percent. The standardized measurg of discounted
future net cash flows in ftem 8 ~ Supplementary Financial Information represents the present value of future cash flows attributabie o proved reserves after incoma taxes, discounted

at 10 percent.

For additional information related to natural gas and oil interests, see ltem 8 — Note 1 and Supplementary Financial Information.

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND CONTRACTING

General Knife River operates construction materials and contracting businesses headquartered in Alaska, California, Hawaii, [daho, lowa,
Minnesota, Montana, North Dakota, Oregon, Texas, Washington and Wyoming. These operations mine, process and sell construgtion
aggregates (crushed stone, sand and gravel); produce and sell asphalt mix and supply liquid asphalt for various commerciat and roadway
applications; and supply ready-mixed concrete for use in most types of construction, including roads, freeways and bridges, as well as
homes, schools, shopping centers, office buildings and industrial parks. Although not commen to ali locations, other products include the

sale of cement, various finished concrete products and other building materials and related construction services.

During 2007, the Company acquired construction materials and contracting businesses with operations in North Dakota, Texas and

Wyoming. None of these acquisitions was material to the Cempany.

Krife River continues to investigate the acquisition of other construction materials properties, particutarly those relating to construction

aggregates and related products such as ready-mixed concrete, asphalt and related construction services.

The construction materials business had approximately $462 million in backlog at December 31, 2007, compared to $483 million at
December 31, 2006. The Company anticipates that a significant amount of the current backlog will be completed during the year ending

December 31, 2008.

Competition Knife River's construction materials products are marketed under highly competitive conditions. Price is the principal
competitive force to which these products are subject, with service, quality, delivery time and proximity to the customer also being
significant factors. The number and size of competitors varies in each of Knife River's principal market areas and product lines.

The demand far construction materials products is significantly influenced by the cyclical nature of the construction industry in general.
In addition, construction materials activity in certain locations may be seasonal in nature due to the effects of weather. The key economic
factaors affecting product demand are changes in the level of local, state and federal governmental spending, general economic conditions

within the market area that infiuence both the commercial and private sectors, and prevailing interest rates.

Knife River is not dependent on any single customer or group of customers for sales of its products and services, the loss of which would

have a materially adverse effect on its construction materials businesses,

Reserve Information Reserve estimates are calculated based on the best available data. These data are collected from drill holes and
other subsurface investigations, as well as investigations of surface features such as mine highwalls and other exposures of the aggregate
reserves. Mine plans, production history and geologic data afso are utilized to estimate reserve quantities. Most acquisitions are made of

mature businesses with established reserves, as distinguished from exploratory-type properties.

Estimates are based on analyses of the data described above by experienced internal mining engineers, operating personnet and geologists.
Property setbacks and other regulatary restrictions and fimitations are identified to determine the total area available for mining. Data
described above are used to calculate the thickness of aggregate materials to be recovered. Topography associated with alluvial sand and
gravel deposits is typically flat and volumes of these materials are calculated by simply applying the thickness of the resource over the areas
available for mining. Velumes are then converted to tons by using an appropriate conversion factor. Typically, 1.5 tons per cubic yard in the

ground is used for sand and gravel deposits.
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Topography associated with the hard rock reserves is typically much more diverse, Therefors, using available data, a final topography map is
created and computer scftware is utilized to compute the volumes between the existing and final topographies. Volurnes are then converted
to tons by using an appropriate conversion factor. Typically, 2 tons per cubic yard in the ground is used for hard rock quarries.

Estimated reserves are probable reserves as defined in Securities Act Industry Guide 7. Remaining reserves are based on estimates of
volumes that can be economically extracted and sold to meet current market and product applications. The reserve estimates include only
salable tonnage and thus exclude waste malerials that are generated in the crushing and processing phases of the operation. Approximately
1.1 billion tons of the 1.2 billion tons of aggregate reserves are permitted reserves. The remaining reserves are on properties that are
expacted to be permitted for mining under current regulatory requirements. The data used to calculate the remaining reserves may require
revisions in the future to account for changes in customer requirements and unknown geological occurrences. The years remaining were
calculated by dividing remaining reserves by current-year sales. Actual useful lives of these reserves will be subject to, among other things,
fluctuaticns in custemer demand, customer specifications, geological conditions and changes in mining plans.

The following table sets forth details applicable to the Company’s aggregate reserves under cwnership or lease as of December 31, 2007,
and sales for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005;

Number of Sites Nurmnber of Sites Estimated Reserve

{Crushed Stone) [Sand & Gravef] Tons Sold (000's) Reserves Lease Lite
Production Area owned leased owned leased 2007 2006 2005 (GCO’s tons) Expiration {years)
Central MN - 1 49 52 2,639 4,834 4,608 90,833 2008-2028 34
Portland, OR 1 4 5 3 5,372 5,862 5,559 255,034 2008-2055 47
Northern CA 1 — 7 2 2,534 3,031 4,180 53,106 2044 21
Southwest OR 4 7 12 5 3,686 4,425 3,892 110,332 2008-2031 30
Eugene, CR 3 3 4 3 2,007 3,024 2,009 174,989 2008-2046 87
Hawaii - 6 - - 3,081 3,167 2,891 68,031 2011-2037 22
Central MT - - 5 1 2,424 2,619 2,408 40,068 2023 17
Anchorage, AK - — 1 - 1,118 1,142 1,307 19,712 N/A 18
Northwest MT - - 8 5 1,318 1,434 1,679 24,161 2008-2020 18
Southern CA - 2 - - 69 244 166 95,330 2035 Over 100
Bend, CR/WA/

Boise, ID 2 2 5 3 2,652 1,788 1,731 103,354 2010-2012 39
Northern MN 2 - 19 17 753 520 068 30,802 2008-2016 41
Nerthern A/

Southern MN 18 10 8 27 1,592 2,024 2,063 65,423 2008-2017 41
ND/SD - - 2 35 943 1,187 1,205 43,247 2008-2031 46
Eastern TX 1 2 1 4 1,290 N7 1,255 26,969 2008-2012 21
Casper, WY - — - 2 116 5 2 13,862 2008 QOver 100
Sales frem

other sources 5,318 9,405 11,281 -

36,912 45,600 47,204 1,215,253

The 1.2 Lillion tons of estimated aggregate reserves at December 31, 2007, is comprised of 509 million tons that are owned and 7046 million
tons that are leased. Approximately 49 percent of the tons under lease have lease expiration dates of 20 years or more. The weighted
average years remaining on all leases containing estimated probable aggregate reserves is approximately 19 years, including options for
renewal that are at Knife River’s discretion. Based on 2007 sales from leased reserves, the average time necessary to produce remaining
aggregate reserves from such leases is approximately 47 years. Some sites have leases that expire prior to the exhaustion of the estimated
reserves. The estimated reserve life assumes, based on Knife River’s experience, that leases will be renewed to allow sufficient time to fully
recover these reserves,
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The following table summarizes Knife River’s aggregate reserves at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and recorciles the changes
between these dates:

2007 2006 2005
{000’s of tons)
Aggregate reserves:

Beginning of year 1,248,099 1,273,696 1,257,498
Acquisitions 29,740 7,300 53,495
Sales volumes* (31,594) (36,195) {35,923)
Other** (30,992) 3,298 (1,374)
£nd of year 1,215,253 1,248,099 1,273,656

* Excludes sales from other sources.
** Includes revisions of previcus estimates.

Lignite Deposits The Company has lignite deposits and leases at its former Gascoyne Mine site in North Dakota. These lignite deposits are
currently not being mined and are not associated with an operating mine. The lignite deposits are of a high moisture content and it is not
economical to mine and ship the tignite to other distant markets. However, should a power plant be constructed near the area, the Company
may have the opportunity to participate in supplying lignite to fuel a plant. As of December 31, 2007, Knife River had under ownership or
lease, deposits of approximately 10.1 million tons of recoverable lignite coal.

Environmental Matters Knife River’s construction materials and contracting operations are subject to regulation customary for such
operations, including federal, state and local environmental compliance and reclamation regulations. Except as to what may be ultimately
determined with regard to the Portland, Oregon, Harber Superfund Site issue described later, Knife River believes it is in substantial
compliance with these regulations.

Knife River's asphalt and ready-mixed concrete manufacturing plants and aggregate processing plants are subject to Clean Air Act and
Clean Water Act requirements for controlling air emissions and water discharges. Some mining and construction activities also are subject
to these laws. In most of the states where Knife River operates, these regulatory programs have been delegated to state and local regulatory
authorities. Knife River’s facilities also are subject to RCRA as it applies to the management of hazardous wastes and underground storage
tank systems. These programs also have generally been delegated to the state and local authorities in the states where Knife River
operates. No specific permits are required but Knife River’s facilities must comply with requirements for managing wastes and underground
storage tank systems.

Some Knife River activities are directly regulated by federal agencies. For example, gravel bar skimming and deep water dredging
operations are subject 1o provisions of the Clean Water Act that are administered by the Army Corps. Knife River operates gravel bar
skimming operations and deep water dredging operations in Oregon, ali of which are subject to joint permits with the Army Corps
and Oregon Department of State Lands. The expiration dates of these permits vary, with five years generally being the longest term.
None of these in-water mining operations are included in Knife River’s azgregate reserve numbers.

Knife River's operations also are eccasionally subject to the ESA. For example, land use regulations often require erwironmental studies,
including wildlife studies, before a permit may be granted for a new or expanded mining facility or an asphalt or concrete plant. If
endangered species or their habitats are identified, ESA requirements for protection, mitigation or avoidance apply. Endangered species
protection requirements are usually included as part of land use permit canditions. Typical conditions include avoidance, setbacks,
restrictions on operations during certain times of the breeding or rearing season, and construction or purchase of mitigation habitat.
Knife River's operations also are subject to state and federal cultural resources protection laws when new areas are disturbed for mining
operations or processing plants. Land use permit applications generally require that areas proposed for mining or other surface
disturbances be surveyed for cultural resources. If any are identified, they must be protected or managed in accordance with regulatory
agency requirements.

The most comprehensive environmental permit requirements are usually associated with new mining operations, although requirements vary
widely from state to state and even within states, In some areas, land use regulations and associated permitting requirements are minimal.
However, some states and local jurisdictions have very demanding requirements for permitiing new mines. Environmental impact reports
are sometimes required before a mining permit application can even be considered for approval. These reports can take up to several years
to complete. The report can include projected impacts of the proposed project on air and water quality, wildiife, noise levels, traffic, scenic
vistas and other environmental factors. The reports generally include suggested actions to mitigate the projected adverse impacts.
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Pravisions for public hearings and public comments are usually included in land use permit application review procedures in the counties
where Knife River operates. After taking into account environmental, mine plan and reclamation information provided by the permittee as
well as comments from the public and other regulatory agencies, the local authority approves or denies the permit application. Denial is
rare but land use permits often include conditions that must be addressed by the permittee. Conditions may include property line setbacks,
reclamation requirements, environmental monitoring and reporting, operating hour restrictions, financial guarantees for reclamation, and
other requirements intended to protect the environment or address concerns submitted by the public or other regulatory agencies.

Knife River has been successful in obtaining mining and other land use permit approvals so that sufficient permitted reserves are available
to support its operations. For mining operations, this often requires considerable advanced planning to ensure sufficient time is available to
complete the permitting process before the newly permitted aggregate reserve is needed to support Knife River's operations.

Knife River’s Gascoyne surface coal mine fast produced coal in 1995 but continues to be subject to reclamation requirements of the
SMCRA, as well as the North Dakota Surface Mining Act. Portions of the Gascoyne Mine remain under reclamation bond until the 10-year
revegetation liability period has expired. A portion of the original permit has been released from bond and additional areas are currently in
the process of having the bond released. Knife River's intention is to request bond release as soon as it is deemed possible with all finat
bond release applications being filed by 2013,

Knife River did not incur any material environmental expenditures in 2007 and, except as to what may be ultimately determined with regard
to the issue described below, Knife River does not expect to incur any material expenditures related to enviranmental compliance with
current laws and regulatiens through 2010.

In December 2000, MBI was named by the EPA as a Potentially Respansible Party in connecticn with the cleanup of a commercial property
site, acquired by MBI in 1999, and part of the Portland, Oregon, Harbor Superfund Site. For additional information, see Item 8 — Note 20.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

The Company’s business and financial results are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including those set forth below and

in other documents that it files with the SEC. The factors and the other matters discussed herein are important factors that could cause
actual results or outcemes for the Company to differ materially from those discussed in the forward-locking statements included elsewhere
in this decument.

Economic Risks
The Company's natural gas and oil production and pipeline and energy services businesses are dependent on factors, including
commodity prices and commodity price basis differentials, which are subject to various external influences that cannot be controlled.

These factors include: fluctuations in natural gas and crude oil prices; fluctuations in commeadity price basis differentiats; availability of
economic supplies of natural gas; drilling successes in natural gas and oil operations; the timely receipt of necessary permits and approvals;
the ability to contract for or to secure necessary drilling rig and service contracts and to retain employees to drill for and develop reserves;
the ability to acquire natura! gas and oil properties; and other risks incidental to the operations of natural gas and oil wells. Significant
changes in these factors could negatively affect the results of operations, financial condition and cash flows of the Company’s natural gas
and oil production and pipeline and energy services businesses.

The construction, startup and operatfon of power generation facilities may involve unanticipated changes or delays that could negatively
impact the Company’s business, its results of cperations and cash flows.

The construction, startup and operation of power generation facilities involves many risks, including: delays; breakdown or failure of
equipment; competition; inability to obtain required governmental permits and approvals; inability to negotiate acceptable acquisition,
construction, fuel supply, off-take, transmission or other material agreements; changes in market price for power; cost increases; as well as
the risk of performance below expected levels of output or efficiency. Such unanticipated events could negatively impact the Company’s
business, its results of operations and cash flows.

Economic volatility affects the Company's operations, as well as the demand for its products and services and, as a result, may have
a negative impact on the Company’s future revenues and cash flows.

The global demand for natural resources, interest rates, governmental budget constraints and the ongoing threat of terrorism can create
volatility in the financial markets. A soft economy could negatively affect the level of public and private expenditures on projects and the
timing of these projects which, in turn, would negatively affect the demand for the Company’s products and services.

The construction materials and contracting segment is experiencing & reducticn in construction activity and product sales volumes in some
markets due to iower demand, which could negatively affect the Company’s results of operations and cash flows.
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The Company relies on financing sources and capital markets. If the Company is unable to obtain econornic financing in the future, the
Company’s ability to execute its business plans, make capital expenditures or pursue acquisitions that the Company may otherwise rely
on for future growth could be impaired.

The Company relies on access to both short-term barrowings, including the issuance of commercial paper, and long-term capital markets
as sources of liquidity for capital requirements not satisfied by its cash flow from operations. If the Company is not able to access capital
at competitive rates, the abifity to implement its business plans may be adversely affected. Market disruptions or a downgrade of the
Company's credit ratings may increase the cost of borrowing or adversely affect its ability to access one or more financial markets. Such
disruptions could include:

= A severe prolonged economic downturn

* The bankruptcy of unrelated industry leaders in the same line of business
* A deterioration in capital market conditions

* Volatility in commodity prices

« Terrorist attacks

Actual quantities of recoverable natural gas and oif reserves and discounted future net cash flows from those reserves may vary
significantly from estimated amounts.

The process of estimating natural gas and oil reserves is complex. Reserve estimates are based on assumptions relating to natural gas and
oil pricing, drilling and operating expenses, capital expenditures, taxes, timing of operations, and the percentage of interest owned by the
Company in the well. The reserve estimates are prepared for each of our properties by internal engineers assigned to an asset team by
geographic area. The internal engineers analyze availabte geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data for each geagraphic area.
The internal engineers make various assumptions regarding this data. The extent, quality and reliability of this data can vary. Although we
have prepared our reserve estimates in accordance with guidelines established by the industry and the SEC, significant changes to the
reserve estimates may occur based on actual results of production, drilling, costs and pricing.

In accordance with SEC requirements, we base the estimated discounted future net cash flows from proved reserves on prices and costs
on the date of the estimate. Actual future prices and costs may be significantly different.

Environmental and Regulatory Risks
Some of the Company’s operations are subject to extensive environmental laws and regulations that may increase costs of operations,
impact or limit business plans, or expose the Company to environmental liabilities.

The Company is subject to extensive environmental laws and regulations affecting many aspects of its present and future operations
including air quality, water quality, waste managemeni and other environmental considerations. These laws and regulations can result in
increased capital, operating and other costs, and delays as a result of angoing litigation and administrative proceedings and compliance,
remediation, containment and monitoring obligations, particularly with regard to laws relating to power plant emissions and CBNG
development. These laws and regulations generally require the Company to obtain and comply with a wide variety of environmental licenses,
permits, inspections and other approvals. Public officials and entities, as well as private individuals and organizations, may seek injunctive
retief or other remedies to enforce applicable enwironmental laws and regulations. The Company cannot predict the outcore (financial or
operational) of any related fitigation or administrative proceedings that may arise. Existing environmental regulations may be revised and
new regulations seeking to protect the environment may be adopted or become applicable to the Company. Revised or additional
regulations, which result in increased compliance costs or additional operating restrictions, particularly if those costs are not fully
recoverabte from customers, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations and cash flows,

One of the Company’s subsidiaries is subject to ongoing litigation and administrative proceedings in connection with its CBNG
development activities. These proceedings have caused delays in CBNG drilling activity, and the uftimate outcome of the actions could
have a material negative effect on existing CBNG operations and/or the future development of its CGBNG properties.

Fidelity has been named as a defendant in, and/or certain of its operations are or have been the subject of, more than & dozen lawsuits
filed in connection with its CBNG development in the Powder River Basin in Montana and Wyoming, If the piaintiffs are successful in these
lawsuits, the ultimate outcome of the actions could have a material negative effect on Fidelity’s existing CBNG cperations and/cr the future
devetopment of its CBNG properties.
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The BER in March 2006 issued a decision in a rulemaking proceeding, initiated by the NPRC, that amends the non-degradation policy
applicable to water discharged in connection with CBNG operations. The amended policy includes additional limitations on factors deemed
harmful, thereby restricting water discharges even further than under previous standards. Due in part to this amended policy, in May 2004,
the Northern Cheyenne Tribe commenced litigation in Montana state court challenging two five-year water discharge permits that the
Montana DEQ granted to Fidelity in February 2006 and which are critical to Fidelity's ability to manage water produced under present and
future CBNG operations. If these permits are set aside, Fidelity’s CBNG operations in Mentana could be significantly and adversely affected.

The Company is subjfect to extensive government regulations that may delay and/or have a negative impact on its business and its
results of operations and cash flows.

The Company is subject to regulation by federal, state and local regulatory agencies with respect to, among other things, aliowed rates of
return, financings, industry rate structures, and recovery of purchased power and purchased gas costs. These governmental regulations
significantly influence the Company's operating environment and may affect its ability to recover costs from its customers. The Cempany is
unable to predict the impact on operating results from the future regulatory activities of any of these agencies.

Changes in regulations or the imposition of additional regulations could have an adverse impact on the Company’s results of operations and
cash flows.

Risks Relating to Foreign Operations
The value of the Company’s investments in foreign operations may diminish due to political, regulatory and econemic conditions and
changes in currency exchange rates in countries where the Company does business.

The Company is subject to political, regulatory and economic conditions and changes in currency exchange rates in foreign countries where
the Company does business. Significant changes in the political, regulatory or economic environment in these countries could negatively
affect the value of the Company's investments located in these countries, Also, since the Company is unable to predict the fluctuations in
the foreign currency exchange rates, these fluctuations may have an adverse impact on the Company's results of operations and cash flows.

Other Risks

One of the Company’s subsidiaries is engaged in litigation with a nonaffiliated natural gas producer that has been conducting drilling
and production operations that the subsidiary believes is causing diversion and loss of quantities of storage gas from one of its storage
reservoirs. If the subsidiary is not able to obtain relief through the courts or the regulatory process, its storage operations could be
materially and adversely affected.

Willistor: Basin has filed suit in Montana Federal District Court seeking to recover unspecified damages from Anadarko and its wholly owned
subsidiary, Howell, and to enjoin Anadarko anc Howell’s present and future production operaticns in and near the EBSR. Based on relevant
information, inchiding reservoir and well pressure data, Williston Basin believes that EBSR pressures have decreased and that the storage
reservoir has lost gas and continues to lose gas as a result of Anadarko and Howell’s drilling and production activities. In related litigation,
Howell filed suit in Wyoming State District Court against Williston Basin asserting that it is entitled to produce any gas that might escape
from Williston Basin's storage reservoir. Williston Basin has answered Howell's complaint and has asserted counterclaims. If Williston Basin
is unabte to obtain timely relief through the courts or regulatory process, its present and future gas storage operations, including its ability
to meet its contractual storage and transportation obligations to custorners, could be materially and adversely affected.

Weather conditions can adversely affect the Company's operations and revenues and cash flows.

The Company’s results of operations can be affected by changes in the weather. Weather conditions directly influence the demand for
electricity and natural gas, affect the price of energy commodities, affect the ability to perform services at the construction services and
construction materials and contracting businesses and affect ongoing operation and maintenance ang construction and drilling activities
for the pipeline and energy services and natural gas and oil production businesses. In addition, severe weather can be destructive, causing
outages, reduced natural gas and oil production, and/or property damage, which could require additional costs to be incurred. As a resuit,
adverse weather conditions could negatively affect the Company’s results of operations, financia! condition and cash flows.

Competition Is increasing in ali of the Company’s businesses.

All of the Company’s businesses are subject to increased competition. Construction services' competition is based primarily on price and
reputation for quality, safety and reliability. The construction materials products are marketed under highly competitive conditions and are
subject t such competitive forces as price, service, delivery time and proximity to the customer. The electric utility and natural gas
industries also are experiencing increased competitive pressures as a result of consumer demands, technalogical advances, increased
natural gas prices and other factors. Pipeline and energy services competes with several pipelines for access to natural gas supplies and
gathering, transportation and storage business. The natural gas and oil production business is subject to competition in the acquisition and
development of natural gas and oil properties. The increase in competition could negatively affect the Campany’s results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.
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Other factors that could impact the Company’s businesses.

The following are other factors that should be considered for a better understanding of the financial condition of the Company. These other

factors may impact the Company’s financial results in future periods.

« Acquisition, disposal and impairments of assets or facilities

= Changes in operation, performance and censtruction of plant facilities or other assets

= Changes in present or prospective generation

« The availability of economic expansion or development opportunities

+ Population growth rates and demographic pattemns

= Market demand for, and /or available supplies of, energy- and construction-related products and services
« The cyclical nature of Jarge construction projects at certain operations

+ Changes in tax rates or policies

» Unanticipated project delays or changes in project costs, including refated energy costs

« Unanticipated changes in operating expenses or capital expenditures

» Labor negotiations or disputes

* Inability of the varicus contract counterparties to meet their contractual obligations

+ Changes in accounting principles and/or the application of such principies to the Company

» Changes in technotogy

+ Changes in legal or regulatory proceedings

« The ability to effectively integrate the operations and the internal controls of acquired companies
» The ability to attract and retain skilled labor and key personnel

« Increases in employee and retiree benefit costs

ltem 1B. Unresolved Comments

The Company has no unresolved comments with the SEC.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

For information regarding legal proceedings of the Company, see ltem 8 — Note 20.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2007.
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ttem 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
The Company's commeon stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “MDU." The price range of the

Company's common stock as reparted by The Wall Street Journal composite tape during 2007 and 2006 and dividends declared
therean were as follows:

Common
Common Common Stock
Stock Price Stock Price Dividends
{High} {Low] Per Share

2007
First quarter $29.00 $24.39 $.1350
Second quarter 31.79 2740 1350
Third quarter 30.40 24.64 1450
Fourth quarter 28.69 25.89 1450
$.5600

2006
First quarter $2453 $21.85 $ 1267
Second quarter 24.99 22.53 1267
Third quarter 25.40 22.25 1350
Fourth quarter 27.04 22.29 1350
$.5234

Note: Commaon stack share amounts refiect the Company’s three-for-two common stock spiit effected in July 2006.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company’s common stock was held by approximately 15,400 stockholders of record.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Selected Financial Data
Operating revenues (000's):
Electric $ 193,367 § 187301 $ 181,238 $ 178,803 $ 178,562 $ 162,616
Natural gas distribution 532,997 351,988 384,199 316,120 274,608 186,569
Construction services 1,103,215 587,582 687,125 426,821 434,177 458,660
Pipeline and energy services 447,063 443,720 477,311 354,164 250,897 163,464
Natural gas and cil production 514,854 4£3,952 439,367 342,840 264,358 203,595
Construction materials and contracting 1,761,473 1,877,021 1,604,610 1,322,161 1,104,408 962,312
Other 10,061 8117 6,038 4,423 2,728 3,778
Intersegment eliminations {315,134) {335,142) 375,965) (272,199) {191,105) (114,249)

$4,247,896 $4,004,539 $3,403,923 $2.673,133 $2,318,633 52,026,747

QOperating income (000's);

Electric $ 31,652 $ 27716 § 29,038 $ 26,776 § 35,761 $ 33915
Natural gas distribution 32,903 8,744 7,404 1,820 6,502 2,414
Construction services 75,511 50,651 2817 (5,757) 12,885 13,980
Pipeline and energy services 58,026 57,133 43,507 29,570 37,064 40,118
Natural gas and ail producticn 227,728 231,802 230,383 178,897 118,347 85,555
Construction materials and contracting 138,635 156,104 105,318 84,030 91,579 91,430
Other {7,335) {9.075) {5.298) (3.954) (1,228) (1.111)

$ 557,120 $ 523075 5 438,523 $ 313,382 $ 300910 $ 266,301

Earnings on common stock (000's):

Electric $ 17700 $ 14,401 $§ 13,940 3 12,7%0 $ 16,950 $ 15780
Natural gas distribution 14,044 5,680 3,515 2,182 3,869 3,587
Construction services 43,843 27,851 14,558 {5,650} 6,170 6,371
Pipeline and energy services 31,408 32,126 22,867 13,806 19,852 20,099
Natural gas and oil praduction 142,485 145,657 141,625 110,779 70,767 53,192
Construction materials and contracting 77,001 85,702 55,040 50,707 54,261 48,702
Other (4,380) (4,324) 13,061 15,967 597 497

Earnings on commaon stock before income {loss)

from discontinued operations and cumulative

effect of accounting change 322,101 307,093 264,606 200,581 172,466 148,228
Income {loss) from discontinued operaticns, net of tax 109,334 7.979 ¢,7592 5,801 9.73C (540}
Cumulative effect of accounting change - - - - (7,589) -

$ 431,435 § 315072 $ 274,398 $ 206,382 $ 173,607 3 147688

Earnings per common share before
discontinued operations and cumulative

effect of accounting change — diluted $ 1.76 $ 1.69 $ 1.47 $ 1.14 $ 1.02 $ 82
Discontinued operations, net of tax .60 .05 06 .03 06 -
Cumulative effect of accounting change - - - - {.04) -

$ 2.36 3 1.74 $ 1.53 $ 117 $ 1.04 $ .62

Common Stock Statistics
Weighted average common shares

outstanding - diluted (000’s} 182,902 181,392 179,490 176,117 168,690 160,295
Dividends per comman share $ 5600 § 5234 $ 4934 § 4667 $ 4400 s 477
Book value per common share $ 13.80 $ 11.88 $ 1043 $ 9.39 3 8.44 3 7.7
Market price per commen share (year end}) $ 27.61 3 25464 $ 21.83 $ 12.79 3 5,87 $ 11,47
Market price ratios:

Dividend paycut 24% 30% 2% 40% 43% 45%

Yield 2.1% 2.1% 2.3% 2.7% 2.9% 3.7%

Price /earnings ratio 11.7x 14.7x 14.3x 15.2x 15.4x 12.5x

Market vatue as a percent of book value 200.1% 215.8% 209.2% 180.4% 188.1% 148.8%
Profitability Indicators
Return on average common equity 18.5% 15.6% 15.7% 13.2% 13.0% 12.5%
Return on average invested capital 13.1% 10.6% 10.8% 9.4% 8.9% §.6%
Fixed charges coverage, including preferred dividends 6.4x b.4x 6.6x 4.8x 4.6x 4.9x
General
Total assets (000's) $5,592,434 $4,903,474 $4,423,562 $3.733,521 $3,380,592 $2,996,921
Total debt (000's) $ 1,310,163 $1,254,582 $ 1,206,510 $ 945,487 § 967096 $ 861,741
Redeemable preferred stock (000's) $ - 3 - 3 - g - 3 - $ 1,300
Capitalization ratios:

Common equity 66% 63% 61% 63% 59% 59%

Preferred stocks - - - 1 i 1

Total debt 34 37 39 36 40 40

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

NOTES: « Common stock share amounts reflect the Company’s three-for-two common stock splits effected in july 2006 and October 2003.
* Cascade, a naturai gas distribution business, was cquired on July 2, 2007. For further information, see ltem 8 ~ Note 2.
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2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Electric
Retail sales (thcusand kWh) 2,601,649 2,483,748 2,413,704 2,303,460 2,359,888 2,275,024
Sales for resale (thousand kWh) 165,639 483,944 615,220 821,516 841,637 784,530
Electric system summer generating and firm
purchase capability — kW {interconnected system) 571,160 547,485 546,085 544,220 542,680 500,570
Demand peak — kW (Interconnected system) 525,643 485,456 470,470 470,470 470,470 458,800
Electricity produced {thousand kWh) 2,253,851 2,218,059 2,327,228 2,552,873 2,384,884 2,316,980
Electricity purchased (thousand kWh) 576,613 833,647 892,113 794,829 929,439 857,720
Average cost of fuel and purchased power per kWh $ .025 $ 022 $ .020 $ 019 $ 019 $ .08
Natural Gas Distribution*
Sates (Mdk) 52,977 34,553 36,231 36,607 38,572 39,558
Transportation {Mdk) 54,698 14,058 14,565 13,856 13,903 13,721
Weighted average degree days -
% of previous year's actual
Montana-Dakota 107% 95% 100% 4% D6% 109%
Cascade 101% - - - - -
Pipeline and Energy Services
Transportation (Mdk) 140,762 130,889 104,909 114,206 90,239 99,890
Gathering (Mdk) 92,414 87135 82,111 80,527 75,861 72,692
Natural Gas and OQil Production
Production:
Natural gas {MMcf) 62,798 62,062 59,378 59,750 54,727 48,239
Oil (MBbls} 2,365 2,041 1,707 1,747 1,856 1.968
Average realized prices (including hedges):
Natural gas {per Mcf} $ 5.96 % 6.03 $ 6.1% $ 4.69 $ 3.90 $ 272
Qil (per barrel) $59.26 $50.64 $42.59 $34.i6 $27.25 $22.80
Proved reserves:
Natural gas (MMcf) 523,737 538,100 489,100 453,200 411,700 372,500
Qil {(MBb!s) 30,612 27,100 21,200 172,100 18,900 17,500
Construction Materials and Contracting
Sales {000's):
Aggregates (tons) 36,912 45,600 47,204 43,444 38,438 35,078
Asphalt (tons) 7,062 8,273 9,142 8,643 7.275 7.272
Ready-mixed concrete {cubic yards) 4,085 4,588 4,448 4,292 3,484 2,902
Recoverable aggregate reserves (tons) 1,215,253 1,248,099 1,273,696 1,257,498 1,181,413 1,110,020

* Cascade was acquired on July 2, 2007, For further information, see ltem 8 — Note Z.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW
The Company’s strategy is to apply its expertise in energy and transportation infrastructure industries to increase market share, increase
profitability and enhance shareholder value through:

* Organic growth as well as a continued disciplined approach to the acquisition of welkmanaged companies and properties

+ The elimination of system-wide cost redundancies through increased focus on integration of operations and standardization and
consolidation of various support services and functions across companies within the organization

+ The development of projects that are accretive to earnings per share and return on invested capital

The Company has capabilities to fund its growth and cperations through various sources, including internally generated funds, commercial
paper facilities and the issuance from time to time of debt securities and the Company's equity securities. For more information on the
Company's net capital expenditures, see Liquidity and Capital Commitments.

The key strategies for each of the Company's business segments and certain related business challenges are summarized below. For
a discussion of the Company's business segments, see Item 8 — Note 16.

Key Strategies and Challenges

Electric and Natural Gas Distribution

Strategy Provide competitively priced energy to customers while working with them to ensure efficient usage. Both the electric and natural
gas distribution segments continually seek cpportunities for growth and expansion of their customer base through extensions of existing
operations and through selected acquisitions of companies and properties at prices that will provide stable cash flows and an apportunity
for the Company to earn a competitive return on investment. The natural gas distribution segment also continues to pursue growth by
expanding its level of energy-related services.

Challenges Both segments are subject to extensive regulation in the state jurisdictions where they conduct operations with respect to
costs and permitted returns on investment as well as subject to certain operational regulations at the federal level, The ability of these
segments to grow through acquisitions is subject to significant competizion from other energy providers. In addition, as to the electric
business, the ability of this segment to grow its service territory and customer base is affected by significant cornpetition from other energy
providers, including rural electric cooperatives.

Construction Services

Strategy Provide a competitive return on investment while operating in a competitive industry by: building new and strengthening existing
customer relationships; effectively controlling costs; retaining, developing and recruiting talented employees; focusing business
development efforts on project areas that will permit higher margins; and properly managing risk. This segment continuously seeks
opportunities to expand through strategic acquisitions.

Challenges This segment operates in highly competitive markets with many jobs subject to competitive bidding. Maintenance of effective
operational and cost controls, retention of key personnel and managing through down turns in the economy are ongoing challenges.

Pipeline and Energy Services

Strategy Leverage the segment’s existing expertise in energy infrastructure and related services to increase market share and profitability
through optimization of existing operations, internal growth, and acquisitions of energy-related assets and companies. Incremental and new
growth opportunities include: access to new sources of natural gas for storage, gathering and transportation services; expansion of existing
gathering and transmission facilities; and incremental expansion of pipeline capacity to allow customers access to more liquid and
higher-priced markets.

Challenges Energy price volatility; natural gas basis differentials; regulatory requirements; ongoing litigation; recruitment and retention
of a skilled workforce; and increased competition from other natural gas pipeline and gathering companies.

Natural Gas and Oil Production

Strategy Apply technology and leverage existing exploration and production expertise, with a focus on operated properties, to increase
production and reserves from existing leaseholds, and to seek additional reserves and production opportunities in new areas to further
diversify the segment’s asset base. By optimizing existing operations and taking advantage of new and incremental growth opportunities,
this segment’s goal is to increase both production and reserves over the long term so as to generate competitive returns on investment,

Challenges Fluctuations in natural gas and oil prices; ongoing environmentat litigation and administrative proceedings; timely receipt of
necessary permits and approvals; recruitment and retention of a skillec workforce; availability of drilling rigs, auxiliary equipment and
industry-related field services; inflationary pressure on development and operating costs; and increased competition from other natural gas
and oil companies.
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Construction Materials and Contracting

Strategy Focus on high-growth strategic markets located near major transportation corridors and desirable mid-sized metropolitan areas;
strengthen lang-term, strategic aggregate reserve position through purchase and/or lease opportunities; enhance profitability through cost
containment, margin discipline and vertical integration of the segment’s eperations; and continue growth through organic and acquisition
opportunities. Ongoing efforts to increase margin are being pursued through the implementation of a variety of continucus improvement
programs, including corporate purchasing of equipment, parts and commodities (liquid asphalt, diesel fuel, cement and other materials),
and negotiation of contract price escatation provisions. Vertical integration allows the segment to manage operations from aggregate
mining to final lay-down of cancrete and asphalt, with control of and access to adequate quantities of permitted aggregate reserves being
significant. A key element of the Company’s long-term strategy for this business is to further expand its presence, through acquisition, in
the higher-margin materials business (rock, sand, grave!, liquid asphalt, ready-mixed concrete and refated products), complementing and
expanding on the Company's expertise.

Challenges Price volatifity with respect to, and availability of, raw materials such as liquid asphalz, diesel fuel and cement; recruitment and
retention of a skilled workforce; and management of fixed-price construction contracts, which are particularly vulnerable to volatility of
these energy and material prices. The slowdown in the residential housing sector has adversely impacted operations. A greater emphasis
on commercial, industrial, energy and public works projects and cost containment should partially mitigate the effects.

For further information cn the risks and challenges the Company faces as it pursues its growth strategies and other factors that should be
considered for a better understanding of the Company's financial condition, see ltem 1A — Risk Factors, For further information ¢n each
segment’s key growth strategies, projections and certain assumptions, see Prospective Information.

For information pertinent to varicus commitments and centingencies, see {tem & — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Earnings Overview
The following table summarizes the contribution to consolidated earnings by each of the Company’s businesses.

Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005

{Donars in millions, where applicablg)

Electric $ 127 $ 144 $ 13.9
Natural gas distribution 14.0 5.7 3.5
Construction services 43.8 278 14.6
Pipeline and energy services 3.4 321 229
Natural gas and oil preduction 142.5 1457 141.%
Construction materials and contracting 77.0 85.7 55.1
Other (4.3) {4.3) 13.0
Earnings before discentinued operations 32241 3071 264.6
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 109.3 8.0 9.8
Earnings on common stock $431.4 $315.1 $274.4
Earnings per common share — basic:

Earnings before discontinued operations $ 177 $1.70 $ 1.48

Discontinued operations, net of tax 60 05 .06

Earnings per common share — basic $ 2.37 $1.75 $ 1.54
Earnings per comman share — diluted:

Earnings before discontinued operations $ 1.76 § 1.69 $ 1.47

Discontinued operaticns, net of tax .60 .05 06

Earnings per commen share — diluted $ 236 $1.74 $ 1.53
Return on average common equity 18.5% 15.6% 15.7%

2007 compared to 2006 Consolidated earnings for 2007 increased $116.3 million from the comparable period largely due to:

« Increased income from discontinued operations, net of tax, largely related to the gain on the sale of the Company’s domestic
independent power production assets and earnings related to an electric generating facility construction project

= Higher margins, workloads and equipment sales and rentals at the construction services business
* Increased earnings at the natural gas distribution business largely due to the acquisition of Cascade

Partially offsetting the increase were decreased earnings at the construction materials and contracting business, primarily related to
decreased volumes and margins resulting from the slowdown in the residential housing sector.
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Reflected in the Other category is the negative effect from an income tax adjustment of $%.4 million associated with the anticipated
repatriation of profits from Brazilian operations as discussed in Item 8 — Note 15, partially offset by the gain of $6.1 million (after tax)
related to the sale of Hartwell.

2006 compared to 2005 Consolidated earnings for 2006 increased $40.7 million from the comparable period largely due to;

* Higher earnings from construction, aggregate and asphalt operations, and earnings from companies acquired since the comparable prior
period at the construction materials and contracting business

« Higher construction workloads and margins, as well as earnings from acquisitions made since the comparable prior period at the
construction services business

» Higher transportation and gathering volumes, higher storage services revenue and higher gathering rates at the pipeline and energy
services segment

* Increased oil and natural gas production of 20 percent and & percent, respectively, and higher average realized oil prices of 19 percent,
partialiy offset by higher depreciation, depletion and amortization expense and higher lease operating expense at the natural gas and oil
production business

Partially offsetting the increase were decreased earnings from equity method investments, which largely reflect the absence in 2006 of the
2005 $15.6 miltion benefit from the sale of the Termoceara Generating Facility reflected in the Other category.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA
Below are key financial and cperating data for each of the Company’s businesses.

Electric
Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in millions, where applicabie)
Operating revenues $193.4 $187.3 $181.2
Operating expenses:
Fuel and purchased power 69.6 67.4 63.6
Operation and maintenance 61.7 62.8 59.5
Depreciation, depietion and amortization 22.5 21.4 20.8
Taxes, other than income 79 8.0 8.3
161.7 15%9.6 152.2
Operating income 3.7 277 2%.0
Earnings $ 177 $144 $13.9
Retail sales (million kWh}) 2,601.7 2,483.2 2413.7
Sales for resate (million kWh) 165.6 484.0 615.2
Average cost of fuel and purchased power per kWh $ .025 $ .022 $.020

2007 compared to 2006 Electric earnings increased $3.3 million {23 parcent) compared to the prior year due to:

« Higher retail sales margins, primarily due to lower demand charges refated to a PPA that expired in the fourth quarter of 2006 and
increased retail sales volumes of 5 percent

* Decreased operation and maintenance expense of $700,000 (after tax), primarily lower scheduled maintenance outage costs at electric
generating stations

Partially offsetting the increase in earnings was lower sales for resale margins due to decreased velumes of 64 percent, largely due
to a PPA that expired in the fourth quarter of 2006 and plant availability.

2006 compared to 2005 Electric earnings increased $500,000 {3 percant) compared to the prior year due to:

« Higher retail sales margins, primarily due to increased volumes of 3 percent and lower demand charges related to a PPA that expired in
the fourth quarter of 2004

* Lower ingcome taxes of $700,000

* Lower interest expense of $600,000 (after tax), resulting from lower average interest rates due to the purchase and redemption of certain
higher cost long-term debt
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Partially offsetting the increase in earnings were:

« Decreased sales for resale margins due to lower average rates of 15 percent and decreased volumes of 21 percent, largely due
te plant availability

» Higher operation and maintenance expense of $1.7 million (after tax), primarily the result of scheduled maintenance outages at electric
generating stations

Natural Gas Distribution
Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005

(Dallars in miflions, where applicable)

Operating revenues $533.0 $352.0 $384.2
QOperating expenses:

Purchased natural gas scid 372.2 259.5 315.4

Operation and maintenance 88.5 68.4 46.0

Depreciation, depletion and amortizaticn 19.0 9.8 9.6

Taxes, other than income 204 5.6 5.8

500.1 343.3 376.8

Cperating income 32.9 8.7 7.4
Earnings $ 140 $ 57 $ 35
Volumes (MMdk):

Sales 53.0 345 36.2

Transportation 54.7 14.1 14.6
Total throughput 107.7 48.6 50.8
Degree days (¥ of normal)*

Montana-Dakota 92.9% 86.7% G0.9%

Cascade 101.7% - -
Average cost of natural gas, including transportation, per dk**

Montana-Dakota $ 6.00 $ 7.51 $ 8.71

Cascade $ 775 5 - 3 -

* Degree days are a measure of the daily temparature-related demand for energy lor heating.
** Regulated natural gas sales only.
Note: Cascade was acquired on july 2, 2007. For further information, see ftem 8 — fote 2.

2007 compared to 2006 The natural gas distribution business experienced an increase in earnings of $8.3 million (147 percent) compared
to the prior year due to:

» Earnings of $5.8 million, including a third quarter seascnal Joss, at Cascade which was acquired on July 2, 2007
» Increased nonregutated energy-refated services of $1.3 millicn {after tax)

» Decreased cperation and maintenance expense, excluding Cascade, of $800,000 (after tax), inctuding the absence in 2067 of the 2006
early retirement program costs

» Increased retail sales volumes resulting from 7 percent colder weather than last year

2006 compared to 2005 The natural gas distribution business experienced an increase in earnings of $2.2 million (62 percent) compared
to the prior year due to:

« Increased nonregulated earnings of $1.7 million {after tax) from energy-related services
« Lower income taxes of $900,000
Partially offsetting this increase were higher payroll-related expenses of $900,000 (after tax), largely due to an early retirement program.

The pass-through of lower natural gas prices is reflected in the decrease in both sales revenues and purchased natural gas sold. The
decrease in sales revenues was partially offset by revenues frorn nonregulated energy-related services. Nonregulated energy-related
services also contributed to the operation and maintenance expense increase.
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Construction Services

Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
{in millions)

Operating revenues $1,103.2 $987.6 $6587.1
QOperating expenses:

Operation and maintenance 979.7 8027 6251

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 14.3 15.4 13.4

Taxes, other than income 33.7 28.8 204

1,027.7 936.9 658.9

Operating income 75.5 50.7 28.2

Earings $ 438 $ 278 5146

2007 compared to 2006 Construction services earnings increased $16.0 million (57 percent) due to:

* Higher construction margins and workloads of $13.1 millicn {after tax), largely in the Southwest and Central regions, including
industrial-related work

* Increased equipment safes and rentals

2006 compared to 2005 Construction services earnings increased $12.2 million {$1 percent) due to:

= Higher construction workloads and margins of $7.3 million (after tax), largely in the Southwest region

* Earnings from acquisitions made since the comparabie prior peried, which contributed approximately 43 percent of the earnings increase
* Higher equipment sales and rentals

Partially offsetting this increase were higher genera! and administrative expenses of $1.7 million {after tax), primarily payroll related.

Pipeline and Energy Services

Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
{Dollars in millions)
Operating revenues $447.1 $443.7 $477.3
Operating expenses:
Purchased natural gas sold 291.7 311.0 363.7
Operation and maintenance 65.6 52.8 49.8
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 21,7 13.3 12.5
Taxes, other than income 10.1 95 78
389.1 386.6 433.8
Operating income 58.0 571 43.5
Income from continuing operations 31.4 321 22.9
Income {loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax A (2.1) {.8)
Earnings $ 315 $ 300 $ 229
Transportation vofumes (MMdk):
Montana-Dakota 29.3 31.0 3.4
Other 1.5 9%.9 73.5
140.8 130.9 104.9
Gathering volumes {(MMdk) 92.4 874 82.1

2007 compared to 2006 Pipeline and energy services earnings increased $1.5 million (5 percent) due largely to:

* Higher transportation and gathering volumes {$5.4 million after tax)

* Increased income from discontinued operations of $2.2 million (after tax), related to Inngvatum, For further information, see ltem 8 — Note 3.
* Increased storage services revenue ($2.2 million after tax)

= Higher gathering rates ($1.4 million after tax)

Partially offsetting this increase in earnings were:

+ Absence in 2007 of the benefit from the resolution of a rate proceeding of $4.1 million {after tax) recorded in 2006, which is reflected
as a reduction to depreciation, depletion and amortization expense
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* Higher operation and maintenance expense, largely due to the natural gas storage litigation and higher material costs. For further
information regarding natural gas storage litigation, see ltem 8 — Note 20.

The decrease in energy services revenues and purchased natura! gas sold reflects the effect of lower natural gas prices.
2006 compared to 2005 Pipeline and energy services earnings increased $7.9 million {36 percent) due largely to:

* Higher transportation and gathering volumes ($5.3 million after tax)

» Higher storage services revenue {$5.8 million after tax)

» Higher gathering rates ($3.2 million after tax)

Partially offsetting this increase in eamnings were:

» Absence in 2006 of the benefit from the resolution of a rate proceeding of $5.0 miliion (after tax) recorded in 2005, which was largely
offset by the benefit from the resolution of a rate proceeding of $4.1 million (after tax) recorded in 2006, both of which included a
reduction to depreciation, depletion and amortization expense.

* Higher operation and maintenance expense, primarily due to the natural gas storage litigation. For further information, see item 8 — Note 20.

= Anincreased loss from discontinued operations of $1,3 miflion (after tax), related to Innovatum. For further information,
see [iern 8 — Note 3.

The decrease in energy services revenues and purchased natural gas sold reflects the effect of lower natural gas prices.

Natural Gas and Oil Production
Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2008

(Doltars in miltions, where applicable)
Qperating revenues;

Natural gas $374.1 $373.9 $362.5
il 140.1 103.4 72.7
Other 6 4.7 4.2
514.8 484.0 439.4
Operating expenses:
Purchased natural gas solg 3 6.6 4.3
Operation and maintenance:
Lease operating costs 66.9 52.8 39.2
Gathering and transportation 20.4 18.3 14,1
Other 34.6 3i9 3.2
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 127.4 106.8 848
Taxes, other than income:
Production and property taxes 36.7 35.2 34.8
Other .8 .6 b
2871 252.2 209.0
Operating income 227.7 231.8 230.4
Earnings $142.5 31457 $1416
Production:
Natural gas (MMcf) 62,798 62,062 50.378
0il {MBbls) 2,365 2,041 1,707
Average realized prices (inctuding hedges):
Natural gas (per Mcf) $ 596 $ 6.03 $ oM
Qil (per Bbl} $59.26 $50.64 $42.59
Average realized prices (excluding hedges):
Natural gas {per Mcf) $ 5.37 % 5.62 $ 6.87
il {per Bbl) $59.53 $51.73 $48.73
Depreciation, depletion and amortization rate, per equivalent Mcf $ 159 $ 1.28 119
Preduction costs, including taxes, per equivatent Mcf:
Lease operating costs $ .87 3 7 3 .56
Gathering and transportation .26 25 .20
Production and property taxes A48 47 .50

§ 1.61 $ 1.43 $ 1.26
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2007 compared to 2006 The natural gas and oil production business experienced a decrease in earnings of $3.2 miflion (2 percent} due to:
* Increased depreciation, depletion and amortization expense of $12.8 million {after tax} due to higher depletion rates and increased production

* Higher lease operating costs of $8.8 million (after tax), Jargely CBNG-related and costs related to acquired properties, as well as
increased service-related costs

» Lower average realized natural gas prices of 1 percent

* Increased general and administrative expense of $1.9 million [after tax)

Partially offsetting the decrease were:

+ Increased oil production of 16 percent resulting from the May 2006 Big Horn acquisition, as well as from the South Texas properties

= Higher average realized oil prices of 17 percent

* Increased natural gas production of 1 percent

2006 compared to 2005 The natural gas and il production business experienced an increase in earnings of $4.1 million (3 percent) due to:

* Increased oil production of 20 percent and natural gas production of 5 percent, largely due to the May 2005 South Texas and May 2006
Big Horn acquisitions and increased production in the Rocky Mountain region

* Higher average realized oi! prices of 19 percent

Partially offsetting the increase were:

+ Higher depreciation, depletion and amortization expense of $13.5 million {after tax) due to higher depletion rates and increased production
= Higher lease operating expense of $8.4 million (after tax), largely acquisition and CBNG-related costs

Construction Materials and Contracting

Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
{Doflars in millions)
Operating revenues $1,761.5 $1,877.0 $1.604.6
QOperating expenses:
Operation and maintenance 1,483.5 1,593.7 1,381.9
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 25.8 88.7 78.0
Taxes, other than income 43.6 38.5 39.4
1,622.9 1,720.9 1,499.3
Operating income 138.6 15461 105.3
Earnings $ 770 $ 857 § 551
Sales (000's):
Aggregates {tons) 36,912 45,600 47,204
Asphalt (tons) 7062 8,273 9,142
Ready-mixed concrete (cubic yards) 4,085 4,588 4,448

2007 compared to 2006 Earnings at the construction materials and contracting business decreased $8.7 million {10 percent) due to:
* Decreased earnings of $14.2 million (after tax) from construction, primarily related o the slowdown in the residential housing sector

* Lower earnings from ready-mixed concrete and aggregate operations of $13.8 million [after tax), due to lower volumes and margins
related to the slowdown in the residential housing sector

Partially offsetting the decrease were:

* Increased earnings from asphalt and related products of $9.1 million (after tax), due ta higher margins

= Decreased general and administrative expense of $5.6 million {after tax), including lower payroll-related costs

+ Earnings from companies acquired since the comparable prior period, which contributed approximately 3 percent of earnings for 2007
2006 compared to 2005 Earnings at the construction materials and contracting business increased $30.6 millicn (56 percent) due to:

+ Higher earnings of $18.8 million (after tax) from construction, largely due to increased volumes and margins, the result of strong markets
and improvements in Texas
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= Increased earnings from aggregate and asphalt operations of $10.4 million (after tax), largely due to higher realized margins, partially
offset by lower volumes

» Eamings from companies acquired since the comparable prior period, which contributed approximately 18 percent of the earnings increase
* Higher earnings of $4.2 million {after tax) from ready-mixed concrete operations, largely due to higher margins
Partially offsetting the increase were:

« Higher depreciation, depletion and amortization expense from existing operations of $4.6 million (after tax), primarily due to higher
property, plant and equipment balances

« Increased general and administrative expense of $4.2 million {after tax), primarily payroll-related

Other and Intersegment Transactions
Amounts presented in the preceding tables will not agree with the Consclidated Statements of Income due to the Company's other
operations and the elimination of intersegment transactions. The amounts relating to these items are as follows:

Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
{4 mitlions)

Other:
Operating revenues $ 10,0 $ 81 $ 60
Operation and maintenance 15.9 i5.4 10.7
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1.2 1.2 3
Taxes, other than income .2 .6 3

Intersegment transactions:
Operating revenues $315.1 $335.1 $375.9
Purchased natural gas sold 286.8 308.1 354.2
Operation and maintenance 28.3 270 21.7

For further informaticn on intersegment eliminations, see Item 8 — Note 16.

PROSPECTIVE INFORMATION

The following information highlights the key growth strategies, projections and certain assumptions for the Company and its subsidiaries
and other matters for each of the Company's businesses. Many of these highlighted points are “forward-looking statements.” There is
no assurance that the Company's projections, including estimates for growth and changes in earnings, will in fact be achieved. Please
refer to assumptions contained in this section as well as the various important factors listed in Item 1A — Risk Factors. Changes in such

assumptions and factors could cause actual future results to differ materially from the Company’s targeted growth and earnings prajections.

MDU Resources Group, Inc.
= Earnings per common share for 2008, diluted, are projected ir. the range of $1.45 to $1.90.

» The Company expects the percentage of 2008 earnings per common share, diluted, by quarter to be in the following approximate ranges:

- First quarter — 15 percent to 20 percent

Second quarter — 20 percent to 25 percent

Third quarter — 30 percent to 35 percent
- Fourth quarter — 25 percent to 30 percent
* Long-term compound annual growth goals on earnings per share from operations are in the range of 7 percent to 10 percent.

Electric

» The Company is analyzing potential projects for accormmodating load growth and replacing an expired purchased power contract with
company-owned generation, which will add to base-load capacity and rate base. A final decisicn on the Big Stone Station Il project will
be made when major permits are issued and certain ragulatory approvals are obtained, which is expected by mid-to-late 2008. The plant
is projected to be completed in 2013. The Company anticipates it would own at least 116 MW of this plant or other generation sources.
For further information, see Item 8 — Note 19.

« On July 12, 2007, Montana-Dakota filed an electric rate case with the MTPSC, as discussed in Hem 8 — Note 19.

= This business continues to pursue expansion of energy-related services.

57
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Natural gas distribution
+ This business continues to pursue expansion of energy-refated services and expects continued strong customer growth in Washington
and Oregon.

Construction services
» The Company anticipates margins in 2008 to be slightly tower than 2007,

* The Company continues to focus on costs and efficiencies to enhance margins.

Pipeline and energy services

+ Based on anticipated demand, incremental expansions to the Grasslands Pipeline are forecasted over the next few years, Through
additional compression, the pipeline firm capacity could ultimately reach 200,000 Mcf per day, an increase from the current firm capacity
of 138,000 Mcf per day.

* In 2008, total gathering and transportation throughput is expected to be slightly higher than 2007 record levels.

Natura! gas and oil production

* The Company expects a cornbined natural gas and oil production increase in 2008 in the range of 12 percent to 16 percent over 2007
levets, including the effects of the acquisition of natural gas production assets in East Texas. Meeting these targets will depend on the
timely receipt of regulatory approvals and the success of exploration activities.

* The Company expects to participate in more than 375 wells in 2008. Specifically, in the Rocky Mountain Region, the Company expects to
drill approximately 240 operated welis (approximately 195 net welis} in the Baker, Bowdoin, Powder River Basin and Big Horn Basin areas,
and to participate in 30 or mare welis in the Bakken and Paradox Basin areas, dependent upon success. Also included in the 375 wells
are 25 wells to further develop the properties associated with the acquisition of naturat gas production assets in £ast Texas.

» Currently, this segment’s net combined natural gas and oit production is approximately 225,000 Mcf equivalents to 240,000 Mcf
equivalents per day, which includes the recently acquired East Texas properties.

» The Company is pursuing exploratory drilling in the Bakken play in North Dakota and the Paradox Basin in Utah. Its acreage position
in the Bakken play includes approximately 75,000 net acres in Mountrail and Burke counties. The first of its operated wells in the
Bakken play is scheduled for completion in February. The Company's first well in the Paradox Basin began producing in mid-November.
The Company owns approximately 57,000 net acres in the Paradox Basin.

* The Company is pursuing continued reserve growth through the further exploitation of its existing properties, exploratory drilling and
acquisitions of properties.

* Earnings guidance reflects estimated natural gas prices for February through December 2008 as follows:

Index* Price Per Mcf
Ventura $6.75 t0 $7.25 i
NYMEX $725t0%7.75 |
CIG $5.50 to $6.00

* Ventura is an index pricing point related to Northern Natural Gas Co.’s system; GIG is an index pricing point related
to Colorado interstate Gas Co.’s system. |

During 2007, more than three-fourths of natural gas production was priced at non-NYMEX prices, the majority of which was at
Ventura priging. i

= Earnings guidance reflects estimated NYMEX crude oil prices for February through December in the range of $75 to $80 per barrel,
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+ For 2008, the Company has hedged approximately 35 percent to 40 percent of its estimated natural gas production and less than
5 percent of its estimated oil production. Of its estimated natural gas production, the Company has hedged approximately 15 percent
to 20 percent for 2009, and less than 5 percent for 2010 and 2011. The hedges that are in place as of February 14, 2008, are
summarized in the following chart:

Forward Price Swap or
Notional Costless Cellar
Period Volume Floor-Ceiling
Commodity Index* Outstanding [MMBtw/Bbl) {Per MMBtu/Bbl}
Natural Gas Ventura 1/08 -3/08 910,000 $8.00 - $8.75
Natural Gas Ventura 1/08 -3/08 364,000 $9.01
Natural Gas Ventura 1/08 -3/08 910,000 $0.35
Natural Gas CIG 1/08 -3/08 910,000 $7.00 - $7.79
Natural Gas CIG 1/08-3/08 910,000 $8.06
Natural Gas Ventura 4/08 - 10708 1,070,000 $7.00 - $8.05
Natural Gas Ventura 4708 -10/08 1,070,000 $7.00 - $8.06
Natural Gas Ventura 4/08 - 10708 1,070,000 $7.45
Natural Gas Ventura 4/08 - 10/08 1,070,000 $750 - $8.70
Natural Gas Ventura 4,08 - 10708 1,070,000 $8.005
Natural Gas Ventura 4/08 - 10/08 749,000 $7.25-38.02
Natural Gas CIG 4/08 - 10/08 748,000 $5.75 - $7.40
Natyral Gas Ventura 1/08-12/08 1,830,000 $7.00 - $8.45
Natura} Gas Ventura 1/08-12/08 1,830,000 $7.50 - $8.34
Naturat Gas Ventura 1/08-12/08 3,294,000 $8.55
Natural Gas NYMEX 1/08-12/08 1,830,000 $7.50 - $10.15
Natural Gas HSC 3/08 -12/08 2,080,800 $7.91
Natural Gas CIG 4/08 -12/08 1,375,000 $6.75 - $7.04
Natural Gas CIG 4/08 - 12/08 1,375,000 $6.35
Natural Gas CIG 4/08 - 12/08 1,375,000 $6.41
Natural Gas Ventura 11/08 - 12/08 427,000 $9.25
Natural Gas Ventura 1/08-12/08 610,000 $8.85
Natural Gas CIG 1/0¢ -3/09 225,000 $8.45
Natural Gas HSC 1709 -12/09 2,482,000 $8.16
Natural Gas Ventura 1/08 - 12/09 1,460,000 $7.90 - $8.54
Natural Gas Ventura 1/09 - 12/0% 4,380,000 $8.25 - $8.92
Natural Gas CIG 1/09 -12/09 3,650,000 $6.50 - $7.20
Natural Gas CIG 1/09 -12/09 912,500 $7.27
Natural Gas HSC 1/10-12/10 1,406,000 $8.08
Natural Gas HSC 1/11-12/1 1,350,500 $8.00
Crude Qil NYMEX 1/08-12/08 73,200 $67.50 - $78.70

* Ventura is an index pricing point refated to Northern Natura! Gas Co.’s system; CIG i3 an index pricing point refated to Colorado Interstate
Gas Co.’s system; H5C is the Houston Ship Channel hub in southeast Texas which connocts to saveral plpalings.

Construction materials and contracting
* The slow down in the residential housing sector has adversely impacted eperations. A greater emphasis on commergial, industrial, energy
and public warks projects and cost containment should partially mitigate the effects.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
For infermation regarding new accounting standards, see ltem 8 -- Note 1, which is incorporated by reference.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INVOLVING SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES

The Company has prepared its financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company’s significant accounting policies are discussed in ftem 8 - Note 1.

Estimates are used for items such as impairment testing of long-ived assets, goodwill and natural gas and il properties; fair values of acquired
assets and liabilities under the purchase method of accounting; natural gas and oil reserves; aggregate reserves; property depreciable lives; tax
provisions; uncollectible accounts; environmental and other loss contingencies; accumulated provision for revenues subject to refund; costs on
construction contracts; unbilled revenues; actuarially determined benefit costs; asset retirement obligations; the valuation of stock-based
compensation; and the fair value of derivative instruments. The Company's critical accounting policies are subject to judgments and uncertainties
that affect the application of such policies. As discussed below, the Company's financial position or results of operations may be materially
different when reported under different conditions or when using different assumptions in the application of such pelicies.



60

MDU RESOURCES GROUP, INC. FORM 10-K
PART 1l

As additional information becomes available, or actual amounts are determinable, the recorded estimates are revised. Consequently,
operating results can be affected by revisions to prier accounting estimates. The following critical acccunting policies involve significant
judgments and estimates.

Impairment of long-lived assets and intangibles

The Company reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets and intangibles, excluding natural gas and cil properties, whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that such carrying values may not be recoverable and annually for goodwill. Unforeseen events and
changes in circumstances and market conditions and material differences in the value of long-lived assets and intangibles due to changes
in estimates of future cash flows could negatively affect the fair value of the Company’s assets and result in an impairment charge. If an
impairment indicator exists for tangible and intangible assets, excluding goodwill, the asset group held and used is tested for recoverability
by comparing an estimate of undiscounted future cash flows attributablz to the assets compared to the carrying value of the assets. If
impairment has occurred, the ameunt of the impairment recognized is determined by estimating the fair value of the assets and recording
a loss if the carrying value is greater than the fair value. In the case of goodwill, the first step, used ta identify a potential impairment,
compares the fair value of the reporting unit using discounted cash flows, with its carrying amount, including goodwill. The second step,
used to measure the amount of the impairment loss if step one indicates a potential impairment, compares the implied fair value of the
reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of goodwill.

Fair value is the amount at which the asset could be bought or sold in a current transaction between willing parties. The Company uses
critical estimates and assumptions when testing assets for impairment, including present value techniques based on estimates of cash
flows, quoted market prices or valuations by third parties, or multiples of earnings or revenue performance measures. The fair value of the
asset could be different using different estimates and assumptions in these valuation techniques.

There is risk involved when determining the fair value of assets, tangible and intangible, as there may be unforeseen events and changes in
circumstances and market conditions and changes in estimates of future cash flows.

The Company believes its estimates used in calculating the fair value of long-lived assets, including goodwill and identifiable intangibles, are
reasonable based on the information that is known when the estimates are made.

Natural gas and oil properties

The Company uses the full-cost method of accounting for its natural gas and oil production activities. Capitalized costs are subject to
a “ceiling test” that limits such costs to the aggregate of the present value of future net revenues of proved reserves based on single
point-in-time spot market prices, as mandated under the rules of the SEC, plus the cost of unproved properties. fudgments and
assumptions are made when estimating and valuing reserves. There is risk that sustained downward movemnents in natural gas and oil
prices, changes in estimates of reserve quantities and changes in aperating and development costs could result in a future noncash
write-down of the Company’s natural gas and oil properties.

Estimates of reserves are arrived at using actual historical wellhead production trends and/or standard reservoir engineering methods
utilizing available engineering and geologic data derived from well tests. Other factors used in the reserve estimates are current natural gas
and oil prices, current estimates of well operating and future development costs, and the interest owned by the Company in the well. These
estimates are refined as new information becomes available.

Historically, the Company has not had any material revisions to its reserve estimates. As a result, the Company has not changed its practice
in estimating reserves and does not anticipate changing its methodologies in the future.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the earnings process is complete, as evidanced by an agreement between the customer and the Company,
when delivery has ogcurred or services have been rendered, when the fee is fixed or determinable and when collection is reasonably
assured. The recognition of revenue in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue. Critical estimates related to the recognition
of revenue include the accumulated provision for revenues subject to refund and costs on construction contracts under the percentage-of-
completion method.

Estimates for revenues subject to refund are established initially for each regulatory rate proceeding and are subject to change depending
on the applicable regulatory agency’s [Agency) approval of final rates. These estimates are based on the Company’s analysis of its as-filed
application compared to previous Agency decisions in prior rate filings by the Company and other regulated companies. The Company
periodically reviews the status of its outstanding regulatory proceedings and liability assumptions and may from time to time change its
liability estimates subject to known developments as the regulatory proceedings move through the regulatory review process. The accuracy
of the estimates is ultimately determined when the Agency issues its final ruling on each regulatory proceeding for which revenues were
subject to refund. Estimates have changed from time to time as additional informaticn has become available as to what the ultimate
outcome may be and will likely continue to change in the future as new information becomes avallable en each cutstanding regulatory
proceeding that is subject to refund.
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The Company recognizes construction contract revenue from fixed-price and modified fixed-price construction contracts at its construction
businesses using the percentage-of-completion method, measured by the percentage of costs incurred to date to estimated total costs for
each contract. This method depends largely on the ability to make reasonably dependable estimates related to the extent of progress
toward completion of the contract, contract revenues and contract costs. Inasmuch as contract prices are generally set before the work is
performed, the estimates pertaining to every project could contain significant unknown risks such as volatile labor, material and fuel costs,
weather delays, adverse project site conditions, unforeseen acticns by regulatory agencies, performance by subcontractors, job
management and relaticns with project owners.

Several factors are evaluated in determining the bid price for contract work. These include, but are not limited to, the complexities of the
Jjob, past history performing similar types of work, seasonal weather patterns, competition and market conditions, job site conditions, work
force safety, reputation of the project owner, avaitability of labor, materials and fuel, project location and project completion dates. As a
project commences, estimates are continually monitored and revised as information becomes available and actual costs and conditions
surrounding the job become known.

The Company believes its estimates surrounding percentage-of-completion accounting are reasonable based on the information that is
known when the estimates are made. The Company has contract administration, accounting and management control systems in place
that altow its estimates to be updated and monitored on a regular basis. Because of the many factors that are evaluated in determining bid
prices, it is inherent that the Company’s estimates have changed in the past and will continuatly change in the future as new information
becomes available for each job.

Purchase accounting

The Company accounts for its acquisitions uncer the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the acquired assets and liabilities
assumed are recorded at their respective fair values. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill. The recorded values of assets and liabilities are based on third-party estimates and valuations
when available. The remaining values are based on management's judgments and estimates, and, accordingly, the Company's financial
position or results of operations may be affected by changes in estimates and judgments.

Acquired assets and liabilities assumed by the Company that are subject to critical estimates include property, plant and equipment
and intangibles,

The fair value of owned recoverable aggregate reserve deposits is determined using qualified internal personne! as well as geologists.
Reserve estimates are calculated based on the best available data. This data is collected from drill holes and other subsurface investigations
as well as investigations of surface features such as mine highwalls and other exposures of the aggregate reserves. Mine plans, production
history and geologic data are also used to estimate reserve quantities. Value is assigned to the aggregate reserves based on a review of
market royalty rates, expected cash flows and the number of years of recoverable aggregate reserves at owned aggregate sites.

The fair value of property, plant and equipment is based on a valuation performed either by qualified internal personnel and /or outside
appraisers, Fair values assigned to plant and equipment are based on several factors including the age and condition of the equipment,
maintenance records of the equipment and auction values for equipment with similar characteristics at the time of purchase.

The fair value of leasehold rights is based on estimates including royalty rates, lease terms and other discernible factors for acquired
teasehold rights, and estimated cash flows.

While the alfocation of the purchase price of an acquisition is subject to a considerable degree of judgment and uncertainty, the Company
does not expect the estimates to vary significantly once an acquisition has been completed. The Company believes its estimates have been
reasonable in the past as there have been no significant valuation adjustments subsequent to the final allogation of the purchase price to
the acquired assets and liabilities. In addition, goodwill impairment testing is performed annually in accordance with SFAS No. 142,

Asset retirement obligations

Entities are required to record the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred. The
Company has recorded obligations related to the plugging and abandonment of natural gas and oil wells, decommissioning of certain
electric generating facilities, reclamation of certain aggregate properties, special handling and disposal of hazardous materials at certain
electric generating facilities, natural gas distribution and transmission facilities and buildings and certain other obligations associated
with leased properties.

The liability for future asset retirement obligations bears the risk of change as many factors go into the development of the estimate of
these obligations and the likelihood that over time these factors can and will change. Factors used in the estimation of future asset
retirement obligations include estimates of current retirement costs, future inflation factors, life of the asset and discount rates. These
factors determine both a present value of the retirement liabifity and the accretion to the retirement liability in subsequent years.
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Long-lived assets are reviewed to determine if 2 legal retirement obligation exists. If a legal retirement cbligation exists, a determination
of the hability is made if a reasonable estimate of the present value of the obligation can be made. The present value of the retirement
obligation is calcutated by inflating current estimated retirement costs of the long-ived asset over its expected life to determine

the expected future cost and then discounting the expected future cost back to the present value using a discount rate equal to the
credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate in effect when the liability was initially recognized.

These estimates and assumptions are subject to a number of variables and are expected to change in the future. Estimates and
assumptions wil! change as the estimated useful lives of the assets change, the current estimated retirement costs change, new legal
retirement obligations occur and /or as existing legal asset retirement obligations, for which a reasonable estimate of fair value could not
initially be made because of the range of time over which the Company may setile the obligation is unknown or cannot be estimated,
become less uncertain and a reasonable estimate of the future liability can be made.

Pension and other postretirement benefits

The Company has noncontributory defined benefit pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans for certain eligible employees.
Various actuarial assumptions are used in calculating the benefit expense (income) and liability (asset} related to these plans. Costs of
providing pensian and other postretirement benefits bear the risk of change, as they are dependent upon numerous factors based on
assumptions of future conditions.

The Company makes various assumptions when determining plan costs, including the current discount rates and the expected long-term
return on plan assets, the rate of compensation increases and healthcare cost trend rates. In selecting the expected long-term return on
plan assets, which is considered to be one of the key variables in determining benefit expense or income, the Company considers both
current market conditions and expected future market trends, including changes in interest rates and equity and bond market performance.
Another key variable in determining benefit expense or income is the discount rate. In selecting the discount rate, the Company uses the
yield of a fixed-income debt security, which has a rating of “Aa” or higher published by a recognized rating agency, as well as other factars,
as a basis. The Company's pension and other postretirement benefit plan assets are primarily made up of equity and fixed-income
investments. Fluctuations in actual equity and bond market returns as well as changes in general interest rates may result in increased or
decreased pension and other postretirement benefit costs in the future. Management estimates the rate of compensation increase based
on long-term assumed wage increases and the healthcare cost trend rates are determined by historical and future trends.

The Compary believes the estimates made for its pension and other postretirement benefits are reasonable based on the information that
is known when the estimates are made. These estimates and assumptions are subject to a number of variables and are expected to change
in the future. Estimates and assumptions will be affected by changes in the discount rate, the expected long-term return on plan assets, the
rate of cormpensation increase and healthcare cost trend rates. The Company plans to continue to use its current methodologies to
determine plan costs.

Income taxes

Income taxes require significant judgments and estimates including the determination of income tax expense, deferred tax assets and
liabilities and, if necessary, any valuation allowances that may be required for deferred tax assets and accruals for uncertain tax positions.
The effective income tax rate is subject to variability from period to period as a result of changes in federal and state income tax rates and/
or changes in tax laws. In addition, the effective tax rate may be affected by other changes including the allocation of property, payroll and
revenues between states.

The Company provides deferred federal and state income taxes on all temporary differences between the book and tax basis of the
Company’s assets and liabilities. Excess deferred income tax balances associated with the Company’s rate-regulated activities resulting
from the Company’s adcption of SFAS No. 109 have been recorded as a regulatory lisbility and are included in other hiabilities, These
regulatory liabilities are expected to be reflected as a reduction in future rates charged to customers in accordance with applicable
regulatory procedures.

The Company uses the deferral method of accounting for investment tax credits and amortizes the credits on electric and natural gas
distribution plant over various periods that conform to the ratemaking treatment prescribed by the applicable state public service commissions.

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN 48 as discussed in Item 8 - Notes 1 and 15. FIN 48 clarifies the application of SFAS No. 109
by defining a criterion that an individual tax position must meet for any part of the benefit of that position to be recognized in an enterprise’s
financial statements. The criterion allows for recognition in the financial statements of a tax position when it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained vpon examination.

The Company believes its estimates surrounding income taxes are reascnable based on the information that is known when the estimates are made.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Cash flows

Operating activities Net income before depreciation, depletion and amortization is a significant contributor to cash flows from operating
activittes. The changes in cash flows from operating activities generally follow the results of operations as discussed in Financial and
Operating Data and also are affected by changes in working capital.

Cash flows provided by operating activities in 2007 decreased $96.4 million from the comparable prior period, the result of:

* Increased cash flows used related to discontinued operations of $104.9 million, largely due to an increase in guarterly income tax
payments due to the gain on the sale of the domestic independent power production assets

* Increased working capital requirements of $59.2 million, largely due to higher cash needs for receivables at the natural gas distribution
business, including the effects of the acquisition of Cascade and fluctuations in natural gas prices

Partially offsetting the decrease in cash flows from operating aclivities were:
+ Higher depreciation, depletion and amortization expense of $45.4 million, largely at the natural gas and oil production business

» Higher deferred income taxes of $28.6 million, largely refated to expenditures at the natural gas and oil production business and the
effect from an income tax adjustment associzted with the anticipated repatriation of profits from Brazilian operations as discussed in
Item 8 — Note 15.

Cash flows provided by operating activities in 2006 increased $176.0 million from the comparable 2005 period, the result of;

* Lower working capitat requirements of $66.4 million, largely due to lower cash needs for receivables at the natural gas distribution,
natural gas and oil production and construction services businesses

« Higher depreciation, depletion and amortization expense of $37.1 million largely at the natural gas and oil production and construction
materials and contracting businesses

* Increased income from continuing operations of $42.5 million, largely increased earnings at the construction materials and contracting,
construction services and pipeline and energy services businesses

* Decreased earnings, net of distributions, frem equity method investments of $10.3 miltion, primarily the result of the sale of the
Termoceara Generating Facility in 2005

investing activities Cash fiows used in investing activities in 2007 decreased $318.0 million compared to the comparable prior periad,
the result of:

* Anincrease in cash flows provided by discontinued operations of $586.1 million, primarily the result of the sale of the domestic
independent power production assets in the third quarter of 2007

* Increased proceeds from the sale of equity method investmenis of $58.5 million, primarily the result of the sale of the Trinity Generating
Facility in the first quarter of 2007 and Hartwell in the third quarter of 2007

Partially offsetting the decrease in cash flows used in investing activities were:

* Anincrease in cash flows used for acquisitions, net of cash acquired, of $234,7 million, largely the result of the Cascade acquisition

* Higher ongoing capital expenditures, including expenditures related to a wind electric generation project at the electric business

Cash flows used in investing activities in 2006 increased $16.3 million compared to the comparable 2005 period, the result of;

* Increased investments largely due to the acquisition of the Brazilian Transmission Lines

« The absence in 2006 of the 2005 proceeds from the sale of th2 Termoceara Generating Facility

* Higher ongoing capital expenditures, primarily at the natural gas and oil production and construction materials and contracting businesses
Partially offsetting the increase was a decrease in cash flows used for:

* Acquisitions of $99.8 million, largely at the natural gas and il production and construction materials and contracting businesses

« Discontinued operations, due to lower capital expenditures related to the Hardin Generating Facility

Financing activities Cash flows used in financing activities in 2007 increased $158.4 million compared to the comparable prior period,
primarily the result of a decrease in the issuance of long-term debt of $236.1 million, partially offset by tower repayments of lang-term debt
of $83.0 miltion. Alsa reflected in cash flows from financing activities was the issuance and subsequent repayment of short-term borrowings
of $310.0 millien from the term loan agreement entered into in connection with the funding of the Cascade acquisition.
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Cash flows provided by financing activities in 2006 decreased $198.8 million compared to the comparable 2005 period, primarily the result
of an increase in repayment of long-term debt of $208.7 million, partially offset by an increase in proceeds from the issuance of common
stock of $10.8 millien.

Defined benefit pension plans

The Company has qualified noncontributory defined benefit pension plans (Pension Plans} for certain employees. Plan assets consist of
investments in equity and fixed-income securities. Various actuarial assumptions are used in catculating the benefit expense (income) and
liability (asset) related to the Pension Plans, Actuaria! assumptions include assumptians about the discount rate, expected return on plan
assets and rate of future compensation increases as determined by the Company within certain guidelines. At December 31, 2007, certain
Pension Plans’ accumulated benefit obligations exceeded these plans' assets by approximately $600,000. Pretax pension expense reflected
in the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, was $6.5 million, $7.0 million and $6.6 million, respectively. The Company's
pension expense is currently projected to be approximately $8.0 million to $9.0 million in 2008. Funding for the Pension Plans is actuarially
determined. The minimum required contributions for 2007, 2006 and 2005 were approximately $1.8 million, $2.6 million and $1.6 million,
respectively. For further information on the Company’s Pension Plans, see Item 8 -- Note 17,

Capital expenditures
The Company's capital expenditures for 2005 through 2007 and as anticipated for 2008 through 2010 are summarized in the following
table, which also includes the Company’s capital needs for the retirement of maturing long term debt.

Actual Estimated*
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(In millions)
Capital expenditures:
Electric $ 27 $ 39 5 9N 3 95 $186 $146
Natural gas distribution 17 5 500 65 52 44
Construction services Bl 32 18 19 12 13
Pipeline and energy services 36 43 39 53 38 18
Natural gas and oil production 330 329 284 605 392 385
Construction materials and contracting 162 141 190 10 105 105
Other 15 2 2 1 1 1
Net proceeds from sale or disposition of property* * {41) {31) (25) (7) (2) (2)
Net capital expenditures before discontinued cperations 597 ° 570 1,099 941 784 710
Discontinued operations 133 a3 (548) - - -
Net capital expenditures 730 603 §51 941 784 710
Retirement of long-term debt 107 36 232 162 73 7
$837 3219 $ 783 $#,103 $857 $n7

* With the exception of the acquisition of approximately $235 million of natural gas and oil praperties in the first quarter of 2008, the estimatad 2008 through 2010 capita!
expenditures reflected in tha above table exclude potential future acquisitions and other growth cpportunities which are dependent upon the availability of ecoromic opportunities
and. as a result, capital expenditures may vary significantly from the above estimates.

** The estimated 2008 through 2010 net proceeds axclude proceeds related to the disposal of unidentified assets.

Capital expenditures for 2007, 2006 and 2005, in the preceding table include noncash transactions, including the issuance of the
Company’s equity securities in connection with acquisitions and the outstanding indebtedness related to the 2007 Cascade acquisition,
The nongash transactions were $217.3 million in 2007, immaterial in 2006 and $46.5 million in 2005,

In 2007, the Company acquired construction materials and contracting businesses in North Dakota, Texas and Wyoming, a construction
services business in Nevada, and Cascade, a natural gas distribution business. The total purchase consideration for these businesses and
properties and purchase price adjustments with respect to certain other acquisitions made prior to 2007, consisting of the Company’s
common stock and cash, was $526.3 million.

The 2007 capital expenditures, including those for the previously mentioned acquisitions and retirements of long-term debt, were met from
internal sources, the issuance of long-term debt and the Company’s equity securities. Estimated capital expenditures for the years 2008
thrcugh 2010 include those for:

« System upgrades

* Routine replacements

+ Service extensions

« Routine equipment maintenance and replacements

« Buildings, land and building improvements
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*» Pipeline and gathering projects

* Further enhancement of natural gas and oil production and reserve growth

= Power generation opportunities, including certain costs for additional electric generating capacity
= Acquisition of natural gas production assets in East Texas completed in late January 2008

* Qther growth opportunities

The Company continues to evaluate potential future acquisitions and other growth opportunities; however, they are dependent upon the
availability of economic opportunities and, as a result, capital expenditures may vary significantly from the estimates in the preceding table.
It is anticipated that all of the funds required for capital expenditures and retirement of long-term debt for the years 2008 through 2010 will
be met from varicus sources, including internally generated funds; the Company’s credit facilities, as described below; and through the
issuance of long-term debt and the Company's equity securities.

Capital resources
Certain debt instruments of the Company and its subsidiaries, including those discussed below, contain restrictive covenants, all of which
the Company and its subsidiaries were in compliance with at December 31, 2007,

MDU Resources Group, Inc. The Company has a revolving credit agreement with various banks totating $125 million {with provision for an
increase, at the option of the Company on stated conditions, up to a maximurn of $150 millien). There were no amounts cutstanding under
the credit agreement at December 31, 2007. The crecit agreement supparts the Company's $100 mitfion commercial paper program, Under
the Company’s commercial paper program, $61.0 million was cutstanding at December 31, 2007. The commergial paper borrowings are
classified as long-term debt as they are intended to be refinanced on a long-term basis through continued commercial paper borrowings
(supparted by the credit agreement, which expires in June 2011).

The Company's objective is to maintain acceptable credit ratings in arder to access the capital markets through the issuance of commercial
paper. Minor fluctuations in the Company’s credit ratings have not limited, nor would they be expected to limit, the Cornpary’s ability to
access the capital markets. In the event of a minor downgrade, tre Company may experience a nominal basis point increase in overall
interest rates with respect to its cost of borrowings. If the Company were to experience a significant downgrade of its credit ratings, it may
need to borrow under its credit agreement.

Prior to the maturity of the credit agreement, the Company expects that it wiil negotiate the extension or replacement of this agreement.
If the Company is unable to successfully negotiate an extension of, or replacement for, the credii agreement, or if the fees on this facility
became too expensive, which the Company does not currently anticipate, the Company would seek alternative funding.

In order to borrew under the Company's credit agreement, the Company must be in compliance with the applicable covenants and certain
other conditions. For information on the covenants and certain other conditions of the Company’s credit agreement, see ltem 8 — Note 10.

In connection with the funding of the Cascade acquisition, on June 29, 2007, the Company entered into a term loan agreement providing for
a commitment amount of $310 million. The Company borrowed $310 million under this agreement on July 2, 2007. On July 11, 2007, and
August 14, 2007, the Company paid down $220 million and $5 millicn, respectively, of the cutstanding principal balance. In addition, on
August 14, 2007 and August 28, 2007, the Company received $5C million and $35 million, respectively, from the repayment of an
intercompany loan with MDU Energy Capital. The Company, in turn, repaid the remaining principal balance of the term loan indebtedness
that it incurred to fund the acquisition of Cascade. The term Ioan agreement terminated on August 28, 2007,

There are no credit facilities that contain cross~default provisions between the Company and any of its subsidiaries.

The Company's issuance of first mortgage debt is subject to certain restrictions imposed under the terms and conditions of its Mortgage.
Generally, those restrictions require the Company to fund $1.43 of unfunded property or use $1.00 of refunded bonds for each dollar of
indebtedness incurred under the Mortgage and, in some cases, to certify to the trustee that annual earnings {pretax and before interest
charges), as defined in the Mortgage, equal at least two times its annualized first mortgage bond interest costs. Under the more restrictive
of the tests, as of December 31, 2007, the Company could have issued approximately $544 million of additional first mortgage bonds.

The Company’s coverage of fixed charges including preferred dividends was 6.4 times for the 12 months ended December 31, 2007
and 2006, Common stockholders’ equity as a percent of total capitalization was 66 percent and 63 percent at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

The Company has repurchased, and may from time to time seek to repurchase, outstanding first mortgage bonds through open market
purchases or privately negotiated transactions. The Company will evaluate any such transactions in light of then existing market cenditions,
taking into account its liquidity and prospects for future access to capital. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had $50.5 million of
first mortgage bonds outstanding, $30.0 million of which were held by the Indenture trustee for the benefit of the senior note holders,

The aggregate principal amount of the Company’s outstanding first mortgage bands, other than those held by the Indenture trustee, is
$20.5 million and satisfies the lien release requirements under the Indenture, As a result, the Company may at any time, subject to
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satisfying certain specified conditions, require that any debt issued under its Indenture become unsecured and rank equally with all of
the Company's other unsecured and unsubordinated debt (as of December 31, 2007, the only such debt cutstanding under the Indenture
was $30.0 million in aggregate principal amount of the Company’s 5.98% Senior Notes due in 2033},

The Company has entered into a Sales Agency Financing Agreement, as amended June 25, 2007, with Wells Fargo Securities, LLC with
respect to the issuance and sale of up to 3,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $1.00 per share, together with
preference share purchase rights appurtenant therete. The common stoeck may be offered for sale, from time to time, in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the agreement, which terminates on December 1, 2008. Proceeds from the sale of shares of common stock
under the agreement are expected to be used for corporate development purposes and other general corporate purposes. The offering
would be made pursuant to the Company’s shelf registration statement on Form $-3, as amended, which became effective on September
26, 2003, as supplemented by a prospectus supplement, dated June 28, 2007, filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Company has not issued any stock under the Sales Agency Financing Agreement through
December 31, 2007.

MDU Energy Capital, LLC On August 14, 2007, MDU Energy Capital entered into a $125 million master shelf agreement (dated as
of August 9, 2007), and borrowad $50 milion under the agreement. On August 28, 2067, MDU Energy Capital borrowed an additional
$35 million under the master shelf agreement. MDU Energy Capital used the proceeds from the borrowings to repay a short-term
intercompany loan from the Cornpany applicable t¢ the acquisition of Cascade, as previcusly discussed.

The master shelf agreement contains customary covenants and provisions. For informatien on the covenants and certain other conditions
of the MDU Energy Capital master shelf agreement, see Item 8 — Note 10.

Cascade Natural Gas Corporation Cascade has a revolving credit agreement with various banks totaling $50 million with certain
provisions allowing for increased borrowings, up to a maximum of $75 million. The $50 million credit agreement expires on December 28,
2012, with provisions allowing for an extension of up to two years upon consent of the banks. Cascade also has a $20 million uncommitted
fine of credit which may be terminated by the bank or Cascade at any time. There was $1.7 million outstanding under the Cascade credit
agreements at December 31, 2007. The borrowings are classified as short-term borrowings as Cascade intends to repay the borrowings
within one year. As of December 31, 2007, there were outstanding letters of credit, as discussed in ltem 8 — Note 20, of which $1.9 millien
reduced amounts available under the $50 million credit agreement.

In order to barrow under Cascade’s $50 million credit agreement, Cascade must be in compliance with the applicable covenants and
certain other conditions. For infermation on the covenants ang certain other conditions of Cascade’s $50 million credit agreement,
see ltem § — Note 9.

Cascade’s $50 million credit agreement contains cross-default provisions. These provisions state that if Cascade fails to make any
payment with respeci to any indebtedness or contingent obligation, in excess of a specified amount, under any agreement that causes
such indebtedness to be due prior to its stated maturity or the contingent obligatien to become payable, the agreement will be in default.
Certain of Cascade’s financing agreements and Cascade's practices {imit the amount of subsidiary indebtedness.

Centennial Energy Holdings, Inc. Centennial has a revolving credit agreement and an uncommitted fine of ¢redit with various banks and
institutions totaling $425 million with certain provisions aflowing for increased borrowings. These credit agreements support Centennial’s
$400 million commercial paper pragram. There were no outstanding borrowings under the Centennial credit agreements at December 31,
2007. Under the Centennial commercial paper program there was no amount outstanding at December 31, 2007. When Centennial has
commercial paper borrowings outstanding, the borrowings are classified as long-term debt as they are intended to be refinanced on a
long-term basis through continued Gentennial commercial paper borrowings (supported by Centennial credit agreements). The revolving
credit agreement is for 5400 million, which includes a provision for an increase, at the option of Centennial on stated conditions, up to

a maximum of $450 million and expires on December 13, 2012. The uncommitted line of credit for $25 million may be terminated by the
bank at any time. As of December 31, 2007, $56.6 million of letters of credit were outstanding, as discussed in Item 8 — Note 20, of which
$44.0 million reducec amounts available under these agreements.

Centennial has an uncommitted long-term master shelf agreement that allows for borrowings of up to $550 million. Under the terms

of the master shelf agreement, $418.5 million was outstanding ai December 31, 2007. The ability to request additional borrowings under
this master shelf agreement expires on May 8, 2009. To meet potential future financing needs, Centennial may pursue other financing
arrangements, including private and/or public financing.

Gentennial's abjective is to maintain acceptable credit ratings in order to access the capital markets through the issuance of commercial
paper. Minor fluctuations in Centennial’s credit ratings have not limited, nor would they be expected to limit, Centennial’s ability to access
the capital markets. In the event of a minor downgrade, Centennial may experience a nominal basis point increase in overall interest rates
with respect to its cost of borrowings. If Centennial were to experience a significant downgrade of its credit ratings, it may need to borrow
under its committed bank lines.
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Prior o the maturity of the Centennial credit agreements, Centennizl expects that it will negotiate the extension or replacement of these
agreements, which provide credit support to access the capital rnarkets. In the event Centennial was unable to successfully negotiate these
agreements, or in the event the fees on such facilities became too expensive, which Centennial does not currently anticipate, it would seek
alternative funding.

In crder to borrow under Centennial’s credit agreements and the Centennial uncommitted long-term master shelf agreement, Centennial
and certain of its subsidiaries must be in compliance with the applicable covenants and certain other conditions. For information on the
covenants and certain other conditions of Centennial's credit agreement, see Item 8 — Note 10.

Certain of Centennial's financing agreements contain cross-default provisions. These provisions state that if Centennial or any subsidiary
of Centennial fails to make any payment with respect to any indebtedness or contingant obligation, in excess of a specified amount, under
any agreement that causes such indebtedness to be due prior Lo its stated maturity or the contingent obligation to become payable, the
applicable agreements will be in default. Certain of Centennial’s financing agreements and Centennial’s practices limit the amount of
subsidiary indebtedness.

Williston Basin Interstate Pipeline Company Williston Basin has an uncommitted long-term master shelf agreement that aflows for
borrowings up to $100 million, Under the terms of the master shalf agreement, $80.0 miliion was outstanding at December 31, 2007.
The ability to request additional borrowings under this master shelf agreement expires on December 20, 2008.

In order to borrow under its uncommitted long-term master shelf agreement, Williston Basin must be in compliance with the applicable
covenants and certain other conditions. For information on the covenants and certain other conditions of the uncommitted long-term
master shelf agreement, see Item 8 — Note 10.

Off balance sheet arrangements

In connection with the sale of MPXin June 2005 to Petrcbras, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company has agreed t indemnify
Petrobras for 4% percent of any losses that Petrobras may incur from certain contingent liabilities specified in the purchase agreement. For
more informaticn, see Item § — Note 20. ‘

Centennial continues to guarantee CEM's obligations under a construction contract for a 550-MW combined-cycle electric generating
facility near Hobbs, New Mexico. For more information, see ltem 8 — Note 20.

Contractual obligations and commercial commitments

For more information on the Company’s contractua! obligations on long-term debt, operating leases, purchase commitments and
uncertain tax positions, see Item 8 — Notes 10, 15 and 20. At December 31, 2007, the Company’s commitments under these obligations
were as foliows:

2008 2008 010 2011 0mz Thereafter Total

{In mitfions)

Long-term debt $161.7 $ 73.4 $ 73 $128.0 $135.5 % 802.6 $1,308.5
Estimated interest payments* 70.8 63.5 61.7 56.4 51.3 335.5 639.2
Operating leases 20.3 146.0 13.7 10.3 8.4 48.8 117.5
Purchase commitments 479.2 340.0 233.4 163.7 105.6 3231 1,645.0

$732.0 $492.9 $316.1 $358.4 $300.8 $1,510.0 $3,710.2

* Estimated interest payments are calcuiated based on the applicable rates and payment dates.

Not reflected in the table above are $3.7 miliion in uncertain tex positions for which the year of settlement is not reasonably possible
to determine.

EFFECTS OF INFLATION
Inflation did nat have a significant effect on the Company’s operetions in 2007, 2006 or 2005,

Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company is exposed to the impact of market fluctuaticns associated with commodity prices, interest rates and foreign currency. The
Company has palicies and procedures to assist in controlling these market risks and utilizes derivatives to manage a portion of its risk.

For more information on derivatives and the Company’s derivative policies and pracedures, see Item 8 — Notes 1 and 7.

Commaodity price risk

Fidelity utilizes derivative instruments to manage a porticn of the market risk associated with fluctuations in the price of natural gas and oil
on its forecasted sales of natural gas and oil production. Cascade utilizes derivative instruments to manage a portion of the market risk
associated with fluctuations in the price of natural gas on its forecasted purchases of naturai gas.

&7
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The following table summarizes hedge agreements entered Into by Fidelity and Cascade as of December 31, 2007. These agreements call
for Fidelity to receive fixed prices and pay variable prices, and for Cascade to receive variable prices and pay fixed prices.

{Forward notional volume and fair value in thousands)

Weighted Forward
Average Notional
Fixed Price Volume
[Per MMBtu) {MMBtu) Fair Value
Fidelity
Natural gas swap agreements maturing in 2008 $7.90 10,978 $ 8,035
Cascade core
Natural gas swap agreements maturing in 2008 $7.71 20,443 $(11,542)
Natural gas swap agreements maturing in 2009 $7.79 13,410 $ 195)
Natural gas swap agreements maturing in 2010 $7.72 5,902 $ 1,044
Cascade non-core
Natural gas swap agreements maturing in 2008 $7.35 1,391 $ (1,014)
Weighted
Average Forward
Floor/ Ceiling Netional
Price Volume
{Per MMBtu/Ebl) (MMBty /Bbl) Fair Value
Fidelity
Natural gas collar agreements maturing in 2008 $7.25/$8.46 11,895 $ 357
Qil collar agreement maturing in 2008 $67.50/%$78.70 73 $ (112)

The following table summarizes hedge agreements entered intc by Fidelity as of December 31, 2006. These agreements call for Fidelity to
receive fixed prices and pay variable prices.

{Forward notional volume and fair value in thousands)

Weighted Farward
Average National
Fixed Price Volume
{Per MMBtu) [MMBIL) Fair Value
Fidelity
Matural gas swap agreements maturing in 2007 $7.69 9,125 $14,845
Weighted
Average Forward
Floor/Ceiling Notional
Price Volume
{Per MMBtu} [MMBtu) Fair Value
Fidelity
Natural gas collar agreements maturing in 2007 $7.87/$10.74 10,123 $17,256

Interest rate risk

The Company uses fixed and variable rate long-term debt to partially finance capital expenditures and mandatory debt retirements. These
debt agreements expose the Company to market risk related to changes in interest rates. The Company manages this risk by taking
advantage of market conditions when timing the placement of long-term or permanent financing. The Company also has historically used
interest rate swap agreements to manage a portion of the Company's interest rate risk and may take advantage of such agreements in the
future to minimize such risk. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had no outstanding interest rate hedges.

The following table shows the amount of debt, including current portion, and related weighted average interest rates, both by expected
maturity dates, as of December 31, 2007.

Fair
2008 200% 2010 201 2012 Thereafter Total Value
(Dollars in millions)
Long-term debt:

Fixed rate $161.7 $73.4 $7.3 $67.0 $1355 $802.6 $1,247.5 $1,233.3
Weighted average interest rate 4.5% 6.1% 6.8% 7% 5.9% 5.9% 5.8% -
Variable rate - - - $461.0 - - $ 610 $ 606
Weighted average interest rate - - - 4.9% — - 4.9% -

Foreign currency risk

MDU Brasil’s equity method investments in the Brazilian Transmission Lines are exposed to market risks from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates between the LS. dollar and the Brazilian Real, For further information, see ltem 8 — Note 4. At December 31, 2007 and
2006, the Company had no outstanding fareign currency hedges.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of MDU Resources Group, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company's internal control
system is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

All internal control systerns, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined
to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation, Because
of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections

of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controts may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commissien (COSQ) in Internal Control-integrated Framework.

Based on our evaluation under the framework in /nternal Control-Integrated Framework, management concluded that the
Company's internal control aver financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007,

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, has been audited by
Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report.

Terry D. Hildestad Vernon A, Raile

President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President, Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer

FORM 10-K
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF MDU RESQURCES GROUP, INC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MOU Resources Group, Inc. and subsidiaries {the “Company”} as of
December 31, 2007 and 2004, and the relzted consolidated statements of income, common stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule for each of the three
years in the period ended Decemnber 31, 2007, listed in the Index at ltem 15. These consolidated financial statements and the financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management, Cur responsibility is to express an opinicn on these consclidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates mace by
management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of MDU Resources
Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the pericd ended December 31, 2007, in confermity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein. '

As discussed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted SFAS No. 158 Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans effective as of Dacember 31, 2006.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in internal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Caommittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 12, 2008, expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 12, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF MDLU RESOURCES GRQUP, INC.:

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of MDU Resources Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in fnternal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is respensible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on cur audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to abtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of interna! control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reascnable basis for our opinion,

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing simitar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding pravention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,

use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to errer or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to futurs periods are subject to the risk that the controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
detericrate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in alf material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on the criteria established in /nternal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007 of the Company and
our report dated February 12, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedule and included an explanatory paragraph regarding the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 158 Employers” Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans effective as of December 31, 2006.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 12, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Operating revenues:
Electric, natural gas distribution and pipeline and energy services $1,095,709 $ 889,286 $ 950,324
Construction services, natural gas and oil production,
construction materials and contracting, and other 3,152,187 3,115,253 2,453,599
4,247,896 4,004,539 3,403,923
Operating expenses:
Fuel and purchased power 69,616 67,414 63,591
Purchased natural gas sold 377,404 268,981 329,190
Operation and maintenance:
Electric, natural gas distribution and pipeline and energy services 215,587 183,992 155,323
Constructicn services, natural gas and oil production,
construction materiats and contracting, and other 2,572,864 2,577,756 2,080,451
Degreciation, depletion and amortizaticn 301,932 256,531 219,440
Taxes, other than income 153,373 126,791 117,405
3,690,776 3,481,464 2,965,400
Operating income 557,120 523,075 438,523
Earnings from equity method investments 19,609 10,838 20,192
Other income 8,318 12,071 7,209
Interest expense 72,237 72,095 54,384
Income before income taxes 512,810 473,889 411,540
Income taxes 190,024 166,11 146,249
Income from continuing operations 322,786 307,778 265,291
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax (Note 3) 109,334 7,979 9,792
Net income 432,120 315,757 275,083
Dividends on preferred stocks 685 685 685
Earnings on common stock $ 431,435 $ 315,072 $ 274,398
Earnings per common share — basic:
Earnings before discontinued operations $ 1.77 % 1.70 $ 1.48
Discontinued operaticns, net of tax .60 .05 .06
Earnings per common share — basic $ 2.37 $ 1.75 % 1.54
Earnings per common share — diluted:
Earnings before discontinued operations $ 1.76 3 1.69 3 1.47
Discontinued operations, net of tax .60 05 .06
Earnings per common share — diluted $ 2.36 b 1.74 $ 1.53
Dividends per common share $ .5600 $ 5234 $ 4934
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic 181,946 180,234 178,365
Weighted average common shares outstanding — diluted 182,902 181,392 179,490

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2007 2006
{In thousands, except shares and per share amounts)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 105,820 $ 73078
Receivables, net 715,484 622,478
Inventories 229,255 204,440
Deferred income taxes 7,046 -
Short-term investments 91,550 23,250
Prepayments and other current assets 64,998 57,833
Current assets held for sale (Note 3) 179 12,656
1,214,332 993,735
Investments 118,602 155,111
Property, plant and equipment (Note 1) 5,930,246 4,727,725
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,270,691 1,735,302
3,659,555 2,992,423
Deferred charges and other assets:
Goodwill (Note 5) 425,698 224,298
Other intangible assets, net {Note 5) 27,792 22,802
Other 146,455 103,840
Noncurrent assets held for sale (Note 3) - 411,265
599,945 762,205
$5,592,434 $4,903,474
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings (Note 9) $ 1,700 $ -
Long-term debt due within one year 161,682 84,034
Accounts payable 369,235 289,836
Taxes payable 60,407 54,290
Deferred income taxes - 5,969
Dividends payable 26,619 24,606
Accrued compensation 66,255 62,121
Other accrued liabilities 163,990 118,206
Current liabilities held for sale {Note 3) - 14,900
849,888 653,962
Long-term debt (Note 10) 1,146,781 1,170,548
Deferred credits and other liabilities:
Deferred income taxes 668,016 546,602
Other liabilities 396,430 336,914
Noncurrent ligbilities held for sale (Note 3) - 30,533
1,064,446 914,051
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 17, 19 and 20}
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stocks (Note 12) 15,000 15,000
Common stockholders’ equity:
Common stock {(Note 13)
Authorized — 500,000,000 shares, $1.00 par value in 2007,
250,000,000 shares, $1.00 par value in 2006
Issued - 182,946,528 shares in 2007 and 181,557,543 shares in 2006 182,947 181,558
Other paid-in capital 912,806 874,253
Retained earnings 1,433,585 1,104,210
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (9,393) (6,482)
Treasury stock at cost — 538,921 shares (3,626} (3,626)
Total commaon stockholders’ equity 2,516,319 2,149,213
Total stackholders’ equity 2,531,319 2,164,913
$5,592,434 $4,903,474

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financiaf statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Accumulated
Other
Cther Compre-
Common Stock Paid-in Retained hensive Treasury Stock
Shares Arnount Capitat Earnings Loss Shares Amount Total
{In thousands, except shares)
Balance at December 31, 2004 18,586,065 $ 118,586 $863,449 $ 699,095 ${11,491} [359,281) $(3,626) $ 1,666,013
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - - 275,083 - - - 275,083
Other comprehensive
income (loss), net of {ax —
Net unrealized loss on derivative
instruments qualifying as hedges - - - - (21,800) - - (21,800)
Pension liability adjustment - - - - 574 - - 574
Foreign currency translation adjustment - - - - (1,099) - - (1,099
Total comprehensive income — - - - - - - 252,758
Dividends on preferred stocks - - - {4685) - - - {685)
Dividends on common stock - - - {88,698) - - - {88,698)
Tax benefit on stock-based compensation - - 5,487 - - - - 5,487
Issuance of common stock 1,676,721 1,677 40,070 - - - - 41,747
Balance at December 31, 2005 120,262,786 120,263 939,006 884,795  (33,814) (359.,281) (3,626) 1,876,622
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - - 315,757 - - - 315,757
Other comprehensive
income (loss), net of tax —
Net unrealized gain on derivative
instruments qualifying as hedges - - - - 45,610 - - 45,610
Pension liability adjustment - - - — 1,761 - - 1,761
Fareign currency translation adjustment - - - - {1,585) - - (1,585)
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - - 361,543
SFAS No. 158 transition adjustment - - - - {18,452) - - (18,452)
Dividends on preferred stocks - - - (685) - - - (685)
Dividends on common stock - - - (95,657) - - - (95,457}
Tax benefit on stock-based compensation - - 2,524 — - - - 2,524
Issuance of common stock (pre-split) 120,702 121 3,242 - - - - 3,363
Three-for-two commen stock split (Note 13) 60,191,744 60,192 {60,192} - - (179,640) - -
Issuance of common stock {post-split) 982,31 982 19,673 - - - - 20,655
Balance at December 31, 2006 181,557,543 181,558 874,253 1,104,210 (6,482)  (538,921) (3.626) 2,49.913
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - - 432,120 - - - 432,120
Other comprehensive
income (loss), net of tax —
et unrealized loss on derivative
instruments qualifying as hedges - - - —  {13,505) - - {13,505}
Pension liability adjustment - - - — 3,012 - - 3m2
Foreign currency translation adjustment - - - - 7477 - - 7177
Net unrealized gain on
available-for-sale investments - - - - 405 - - 405
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - - 429,209
FIN 48 transition adjustment - - - 31 - - - 31
Dividends an preferred stocks - - - (685) - - - (685}
Dividends on common stock - - - (102,091) - - - (102,091)
Tax benefit on stock-based compensation - - 5,398 - — - - 5,398
Issuance of common stock 1,388,985 1,389 33,155 - - - - 34,544
Balance at December 31, 2007 182,946,528 $182,947 $912,806 $1,433,585 $(9,393) (538,921) $(3,626) $2,516,319

The accompanying notas ara ar intagral part of these consolidated financial stataments,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Operating activities:
Net income $ 432,120 $ 315,757 $275,083
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 109,334 7.979 9,792
Income from continuing operations 322,786 307,778 265,29
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating aclivities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 301,932 256,531 219,440
Earnings, net of distributions, from equity method investments {14,031) (4,093) (14,385)
Deferred income taxes 67,272 38,645 23,157
Changes in current assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:
| Receivables (40,256) (7,639) {119,168)
Inventories (7,130) (29,736} {20,217}
Other current assets (7,356) (9,597) 435
Accounts payable 24,702 19,834 52,121
Cther current liabilities (22,932) 33,394 26,676
Other nancurrent changes 9,594 20,913 21,379
Net cash provided by continuing opéerations 634,581 626,030 454,729
Net cash provided by {used in) discontinued operations (71,389) 33,53¢ 28,821
Net cash provided by operating activities 563,192 659,569 483,550

Investing activities:

Capital expenditures (558,283) (479,872} {(377,856)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (348,490) (113,781} (213,557)
Net proceeds from sale or disposition of property 24,983 30,501 40,460
investments {67,140} (59,202) 1,833
Proceeds from sale of equity method investments 58,450 - 38,166
Net cash used in continuing operations (890,480) (622,354) (510,954)
Net cash provided by {used in} discontinued operations 548,216 (37,872) {132,954}
Net cash used in investing activities (342,264) (660,226) (643,910}

Financing activities:

Issuance of short-term barrowings 311,700 - -
Repayment of short-term borrowings {310,000) - -
Issuance of long-term debt 120,250 356,352 353,937
Repayment of long-term debt (232,464) (315,486) {106,822)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 17,263 19,963 9,165
Dividends paid {100,641} (93.450) (87,551)
Tax benefit on stock-based compensation 5,398 2,524 -
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operations (188,494) {30.097) 168,729
Net cash provided by discontinued operations - - -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (188,494) (30,097) 168,729
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 308 (1,666) -
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 32,742 (32,420) 8,369
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year 73,078 105,498 97129
Cash and cash equivalents — end of year $ 105,820 $ 73,078 $105,498

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of the following businesses: electric, natural gas distribution,
construction services, pipeline and energy services, natural gas and oif production, construction materials and contracting, and other. The
electric, natural gas distribution, and pipeline and energy services businesses are substantially all regulated. Construction services, natural
gas and oil production, construction materials and contracting, and other are nonregulated. For further descriptions of the Company’s
businesses, see Note 16, The statements also include the ownership interests in the assets, liabilities and expenses of two jointly owned
electric generating facilities.

The Company’s regulated businesses are subject to various state and federal agency regulations. The accounting policies followed by these
businesses are generally subject to the Uniform System of Accounts of the FERC. These accounting policies differ in some respects from
those used by the Company’s nonregulated businesses.

The Company’s regulated businesses account for certain income and expense items under the provisions of SFAS No. 71. SFAS No. 71
requires these businesses to defer as regulatory assets or liabilities certain items that would have otherwise been reflected as expense or
income, respectively, based on the expected regulatory treatment in future rates. The expected recovery or flowback of these deferred
iterns generally is based on specific ratemaking decisions or precedent for each item. Regulatory assets and liabilities are being amortized
consistently with the regulatory treatment established by the FERC and the applicable state public service commissions. See Note 6 for
more information regarding the nature and amounts of these regulatory deferrals.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Allowance for doubtful accounts
The Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts as of Decemnber 31, 2007 and 2006, was $14.6 million and $7.7 million, respectively.

Natural gas in underground storage

Natural gas in underground storage for the Company’s regulated operations is generally carried at cost using the last-in, first-out method.
The portion of the cost of natural gas in underground storage expected to be used within one year was included in inventories and was
$28.8 million and $32.6 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The remainder of natural gas in underground storage, which
represents the cost of the gas required to maintain pressure levels for ncrmal operating purposes, was included in other assets and was
$43.0 million and $44.2 million at Cecember 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively,

Inventories

Inventories, other than natural gas in underground storage for the Company's regulated operations, consisted primarily of aggregates held
for resale of $102.2 million and $88.1 millien, materials and supplies of £56.0 million and $54.1 million, and other inventories of $42.3
million and $29.6 millian, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These inventories were stated at the lower of average cost or
market value.

Short-term investments

The Company had auction rate securities of $31.6 million and $23.3 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, which are
long-term variable rate bonds Lied to short-term interest rates that are reset through an auction process which typically occurs every 90 days
or less. The Company accounts for these investments as available-for-salz in accordance with SFAS No. 115. Due to the short interest

rate reset period, the fair value of the auction rate securities approximates cost and, as a result, there are no accumulated unrealized gains
or losses recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income on the Consolidated Balance Sheets related to these investments.

Investments

The Company's investments include its equity method investments as discussed in Note 4, the cash surrender value of life insurance
policies, and investments in fixed-income and equity securities which are accounted for as available-for-sale investments in accordance with
SFAS No. 115. Under the equity method, investments are initiafly recorded at cost and adjusted for dividends and undistributed earnings
and losses. The Company's fixed-income and equity securities are recorded at fair value with any unrealized gains and losses, net of income
taxes, recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) an the Consolidated Balance Sheets until realized. For more
information, see comprehensive income in this note.




MDU RESOURCES GROUP, INC. FORM 10-K 77

Property, plant and equipment

Additions to property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. When regulated assets are retired, or otherwise disposed of in the ordinary
course of business, the original cost of the asset is charged to accumulated depreciation. With respect to the retirement or disposal of all
other assets, except for natural gas and oil production properties as described in natural gas and oil properties in this note, the resulting
gains or losses are recognized as a component of income. The Company is permitted to capitalize AFUDC on regulated construction
projects and to include such amounts in rate base when the related facilities are placed in service. In addition, the Company capitalizes
interest, when applicable, an certain construction projects associated with its other operations. The amount of AFUDC and interest
capitalized was $7.1 million, $5.8 million and $4.3 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Generally, property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the average useful lives of the assets, except for depletable zggregate reserves, which are
depleted based on the units-of-production method based on recoverable aggregate reserves, and natural gas and il production properties,
which are amortized on the units-of-production method based on total reserves.

Property, plant and equipment at December 31 was as follows:

Estimated

Depreciable

Life

2007 2006 in Years

{Dollars in thousands, as applicabla)

Regulated:
Electric:
Electric generation, distribution and transmissicn plant $ 784,705 $ 703,838 4-50
Natural gas distribution:
Natural gas distribution plant 948,446 289,106 4-45
Pipefine and energy services:
Natural gas transmissicn, gathering and storage facilities 403,459 384,354 8-104
Nonregulated:
Construction services:
Land 4,513 3,974 -
Buildings and improvements 1,987 11,288 3-40
Machinery, vehicles and equipment 76,937 70,687 2-10
Other 8,498 8,805 3-10
Pipeline and energy services:
Natural gas gathering and other facilities 197,253 178,242 3-20
Natural gas and il production:
Natural gas and oil properties 1,892,757 1,606,508 4
Gther 31,142 29,737 ' 3-15
Construction materials and contracting:
Land 115,935 95,294 -
Buildings and improvements 94,598 96,533 1-40
Machinery, vehicles and equipment 921,199 817,209 1-20
Construction in progress 22,253 23,968 —
Aggregate reserves 384,731 377,653 b
Other:
Land 3,022 3,079 -
Other 28,811 27,450 3-40
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,270,691 1,735,302
Net property, plant and equipment $3,659,555 $2,992,423

* Amortizad on the units-of-production method hased on total proved reserves at an Mef equivalent average rate of $1.59, $1.38
and 81,19 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Iricludas natural gas and oil production properties
accounted for under the full-cost method, of which 3142.5 million and $164.0 million were excluded from amortization at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respactively.

** Depleted on the units-of-production method based on recoverable aggregate reserves.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets, excluding goodwill and natural gas and oil properties, whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that such carrying values may not be recoverable. The determination of whether an impairment has
occurred is based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash flows attributable to the assets, compared to the carrying value of the assets.
ff impairment bas occurred, the amount of the impairment recognized is determined by estimating the fair value of the assets and recording
a loss if the carrying value is greater than the fair value. No significant impairment losses were recorded in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
Unforeseen events and changes in circumstances could require the recognition of other impairment losses at some future date.
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net tangible and intangible assets acquired in a
business combination. Goodwill is required to be tested for impairment annually, which is completed in the fourth quarter, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that goodwill may be impaired. For more information on goodwill impairments and
goodwill, see Notes 3 and 5.

Natural gas and oil properties

The Company uses the full-cost method of accounting for its natural gas and oil production activities. Under this method, all costs incurred
in the acquisition, exploration and development of natural gas and oil properties are capitalized and amortized on the units-of-production
method based on total proved reserves. Any conveyances of properties, including gains or losses on abandonments of properties, are
treated as adjustments to the cost of the properties with no gain or loss recognized. Capitalized costs are subject to a “ceiling test” that
limits such costs to the aggregate of the present value of future net revenues of proved reserves based on single point-in-time spot market
prices, as mandated under the rules of the SEC, plus the cost of unproved properties. Future net revenue is estimated based on end-of-
quarter spot market prices adjusted for contracted price changes. If capitalized costs exceed the full-cost ceiling at the end of any guarter,
a permanent noncash write-down is required to be charged to earnings in that quarter unless subsequent price changes eliminate or reduce
an indicated write-down.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company’s full-cost ceiling exceeded the Company's capitalized cost. However, sustained downward
movements in natural gas and il prices subsequent to December 31, 2007, could result in a future write-down of the Company’s natural
gas and oil properties.

The following table summarizes the Company's natural gas and oit properties not subject to amortization at December 31, 2007, in total and
by the year in which such costs were incurred:

Year Costs Incurred

2004
Total 2007 2006 2005 and prior
fin thousands)

Acquisition $ 62,619 $15.632 $19,i35 $ 8812 $19,040
Development 60,352 33,380 16,853 5,225 4,894
Exploration 15,643 12,771 812 1,060 -
Capitalized interest 3910 1,771 1,038 426 4675
Total costs not subject to amortization $142,524 364,554 $37,838 $15,523 $24,60¢

Costs not subject to amortization as of December 31, 2007, consisted primarily of unevaluated leaseholds, drilling costs, seismic costs and
capitalized interest associated primarily with CBNG in the Powder River Basin of Montana and Wyoming; oil and gas development in the Big
Horn Basin of Wyoming, an enhanced recovery development project in the Cedar Creek Anticline in southeastern Montang; oil and gas
development in the Paradox Basin of Utah; a waterflood facility and injection project in southern Texas; and development of the Bakken play
in western North Dakota. The Company expects that the majority of these costs will be evaluated within the next five years and included in
the amortization base as the properties are evaluated and/or developed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the earnings process is complete, as evidenced by an agreement between the customer and the Company,
when delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, when the fee is fixed or determinable and when coliection is reasonably
assured. The Company recognizes utility revenue each month based on the services provided to all utility customers during the month.
Accrued unbilled revenue which is included in receivables, net, represents revenues recognized in excess of amounts billed. Accrued
unbilled revenue at Montana-Dakota and Cascade was $66.6 million at December 31, 2007. Accrued unbilled revenue at Montana-Dakota
was $35.6 million at December 31, 2006. The Company recognizes construction contract revenue at its construction businesses using the
percentage-of-completion method as discussed later. The Company recognizes revenue from natural gas and oil production properties only
on that portion of production sold and allocable to the Company’s ownership interest in the related well. The Company recognizes all other
revenues when services are rendered or goods are delivered.

Percentage-of-completion method

The Company recognizes construction contract revenue from fixed-price and modified fixed-price construction contracts at its construction
businesses using the percentage-of-completion method, measured by the percentage of costs incurred to date to estimated total cosis for
each contract. If a loss is anticipated on a contract, the loss is immediately recognized. Costs in excess of billings on uncompleted
contracts of $45.2 miltion and $41.3 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, represent revenues recognized in excess of
amounts billed and were included in receivables, net. Billings in excess of costs on uncompleted contracts of $81.4 miliion and $84.2
million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, represent billings in excess of revenues recognized and were included in accounis
payable. Amounts representing balances billed but not paid by customers under retainage provisions in contracts amounted to $80.3
million and $81.8 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The amounts expected to be paid within one year or less are
included in receivables, net, and amounted to $68.9 million and $81.8 million ai December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The long-term
retainage which was included in deferred charges and other assets — other was $11.4 million at December 31, 2007,
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Derivative instruments

The Company's policy allows the use of derivative instruments ac part of an overall energy price, foreign currency and interest rate risk
management program to efficiently manage and minimize commeodity price, foreign currency and interest rate risk. The Company’s policy
prohibits the use of derivative instruments for speculating to take advantage of market trends and conditions, and the Company has
procedures in place to monitor compliance with its policies. The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in relation to derivative
instruments in the event of nonperformance by counterparties. The Company's policy generally requires that natural gas and oil price
derivative instruments at Fidelity and interest rate derivative instruments not exceed a period of 24 months and foreign currency derivative
instruments not exceed a 12-month periad, The Company's policy allows Cascade to maintain a portfolio of natural gas derivative
instruments not to exceed a period of three years. The Company’s policy requires settlement of natural gas and oit price derivative
instruments monthly and all interest rate derivative transactions must be settled over a period that will not exceed 90 days, and any foreign
currency derivative transaction settlement periods may not exceed a 12-month period. The Company has policies and procedures that
management believes minimize credit-risk exposure. Accordingly, the Company does not anticipate any material effect on its financial
position or results of operaticns as a result of nonperformance by counterparties. For more informaticn on derivative instruments, see Note 7.

Asset retirement obligations

The Company records the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred, When the liability is
initially recorded, the Company capitalizes a cost by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Qver time, the liability is
accreted to its present value each period, and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement
of the Fability, the Company either settles the obligation for the recerded amount or incurs a gain or loss at its nonregulated operations or
incurs a regulatory asset or liability at its regulated operations. For more information on asset retirement obligations, see Note 11.

Natural gas costs recoverable or refundable through rate adjustments

Under the terms of certain orders of the applicable state public service commissions, the Company is deferring natural gas commaodity,
transportation and storage costs that are greater or less than amounts presently being recovered through its existing rate schedules. Such
orders generally provide that these amounts are recoverable or refundable through rate adjustments within a period ranging from 14 to 28
months from the time such costs are paid. Natural gas costs refundable through rate adjustments were $1i.6 million and $7.5 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2004, respectively, which is included in other accrued liabilities. Natural gas costs recoverable through rate
adjustments were $3.9 million at December 31, 2007, which is included in prepayments and other current assets.

Insurance

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are insured for workers’ compensation losses, subject to deductibles ranging up to $750,000 per
occurrence. Automobile liability and general liability losses are insured, subject to deductibles ranging up to $500,000 per accident or
occurrence. These subsidiaries have excess coverage above the primary automobile and general liability policies on & claims first-made
basis beyond the deductible levels. The subsidiaries of the Company are retaining losses up to the deductible amounts accrued on the basis
of estimates of liahility for claims incurred and for claims ingurred but not reported.

Income taxes

The Company provides deferred federal and state income taxes cn all temporary differences between the book and tax basis of the
Company's assets and liabilities. Excess deferred income tax balances associated with the Company’s rate-regulated activities resulting
from the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 109 have been recorded as a regulatory liability and are included in other liabilities. These
regulatory habilities are expected to be reflected as a reduction in future rates charged to customers in accordance with applicable
regulatory procedures.

The Company uses the deferral method of accounting for investment tax credits and amartizes the credits on electric and natural gas
distribution plant over various periods that conform to the ratemaking treatment prescribed by the applicable state public service commissians.

Foreign currency translation adjustment

The functional currency of the Company's investment in the Brazilian Transmission Lines and its former investment in the Termoceara
Generating Facility, as further discussed in Note 4, is the Brazilian Real, Translation from the Braziian Real to the U.S. dollar for assets and
liabilities is performed using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated on a year-to-date
basis using weighted average daily exchange rates. Adjustments resulting from such translations are reported as a separate component of
other comprehensive income (loss) in common stockholders' equity.

Transaction gains and losses resulting from the effect of exchange rate changes on transactions denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the reporting entity would be recorded in income.

Common stock split
On May 11, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a three-for-two common stock split. For more information on the common
stock split, see Note 13.

Earnings per common share

Basic earnings per common share were computed by dividing earnings on common stock by the weighted average number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per common share were computed by dividing earnings on comman stock by
the total of the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the year, plus the effect of outstanding stock
options, restricted stock grants and performance share awards. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, there were no shares excluded from the
calculation of diluted earnings per share. Common stock outstanding includes issued shares less shares held in treasury.
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Stock-based compensation

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised). This accounting standard revises SFAS No. 123 and requires entities to
recognize compensation expense in an amount equal to the grant-date fair value of share-based payments granted to employees. SFAS No.
123 (revised) was adopted using the modified prospective method, recognizing compensation expense for all awards granted after the date
of adoption of the standard and for the unvested portion of previously granted awards that remain outstanding at the date of adoption. In
accordance with the modified prospective method, the Company’s consolidated financial statements for prior periods have not been
restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS No. 123 (revised).

On January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recognition pravisions of SFAS No. 123 and began expensing the fair market value
of stock options for all awards granted on or after January 1, 2003. As permitted by SFAS No. 148, the Company accounted for stock
options granted prior to January 1, 2003, under APB Opinion No. 25 and no compensation expense was recognized as the options granted
had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of the grant.

The following table illustrates the effect on earnings and earnings per common share for the year ended December 31, 2005, as if the
Company had applied SFAS No. 123 and recognized compensation expense for all outstanding and unvested stock options based on the
fair value at the date of grant:

2005
(in thousands, except per share amounts}
Earnings on common stock, as reported $274,298
Stack-based compensation expense included in reported earnings,
net of related tax effects of $1 2
Total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value
method for all awards, net of related tax effects (471)
Pro forma earnings on common stock $273.929
Earnings per common share — basic — as reported $1.54
Earnings per common share — basic - pro forma $1.54
Earnings per common share — diluted — as reported $1.53
Earnings per common share — diluted — pro forma $1.53

For more information on the Company’s stock-based compensation, see Note 14,

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Estimates are used for items such as impairment testing of long-lived assets, goodwill and natural gas and ail properties; fair values
of acquired assets and liahilities under the purchase method of accounting; natural gas and oil reserves; aggregate reserves; property
depreciable lives; tax provisions; uncollectible accounts; environmental and other loss contingencies; accumulated provision for revenues
subject to refund; costs on construction contracts; unbilled revenues; actuarially determined benefit costs; asset retirement cbligations; the
valuation of stock-based compensation; and the fair value of derivative instruments. As additional information becomes available, or actual
amounts are determinable, the recorded estimates are revised. Consequently, operating results can be affected by revisions to prior
accounting estimates.

Cash flow information
Cash expenditures for interest and inceme taxes were as follows:

Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
{In thousands)

Interest, net of amount capitalized $ 74,404 $ 65,850 5 47,902

Income taxes $214,573 $105,317 $106,771

Income taxes paid for the year ended December 31, 2007, increased from the amount paid for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
20035, primarily due to higher estimated quarterly tax payments due in large part to the gain on the sale of the domestic independent power
production assets as discussed in Note 3.

New accounting standards

FIN 48 In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48. FIN 48 clarifies the application of SFAS MNo. 109 by defining a criterion that an individual tax
position must meet for any part of the benefit of that position to be recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements. The criterion aliows
for recognition in the financial statements of a tax position when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon
examination. FIN 48 was effective for the Company on January 1, 2007. The adoption of FIN 48 did not have a material effect on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations. For more infermation on the implementation of FIN 48, see Note 15.
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SFAS No. 157 In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements, The standard applies under cther accounting pronouncements that
require or permit fair value measurements with certain exceptions. SFAS No. 157 was effective for the Company on January 1, 2008, The
adoption of SFAS No. 157 did not have a material effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

SFAS No. 159 In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. The standard also establishes
presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between entities that choose different measurement attributes
for similar types of assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 159 was effective for the Company on January 1, 2008, and at adoption, the Company
elected to measure its investments in certain fixed-income and equity securities at fair value in accordance with SFAS No. 159. These
investments prior to January 1, 2008, were accounted for as available-for-sale investments and recorded at fair value with any unrealized
gains or losses, net of income taxes, recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) on the Consolidated Balance Sheets until
realized. Upon the adoption of SFAS No. 159, the unrealized gair on the available-for-sale investments of $405,000 (after tax) was recorded
as an increase to the January 1, 2008, balance of retained earnings. The adoption of SFAS No. 159 did not have a material effect on the
Company's financial position or results of operations.

SFAS No, 141 (revised) In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised). SFAS No. 141 (revised) requires an acquirer to
recognize and measure the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interests in the acguiree at the acquisition date,
measured at their fair values as of that date, with limited exception. In addition, SFAS No. 141 (revised} requires that acquisition-related
costs will be generally expensed as incurred. SFAS No. 141 (revised) also expands the disclosure requirements for business combinations,
SFAS No. 141 [revised) will be effective for the Company on January 1, 2009. The Company is evaluating the effects of the adoption of
SFAS No. 141 (revised).

SFAS No. 160 In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160. SFAS No. 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for the
noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS No. 160 will be effective for the Company on
January 1, 2009. The Company is evaluating the effects of the adoption of SFAS No. 160.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is the sum of net income as reported and other comprehensive income {loss). The Company’s other comprehensive
income (loss}) resulted from gains {losses) on derivative instruments qualifying as hedges, pension liability adjustments, foreign currency
translation adjustments and gains on available-for-sale investments. For more information on derivative instruments, see Note 7.

The compenents of other comprehensive income (loss), and their related tax effects for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
20035, were as follows:

2007 2006 2005
fir thousands)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Net unrealized gain (loss) on derivative insiruments qualifying as hedges:
Net unrealized gain {foss) on derivative instruments arising during the period,
net of tax of $3,989, $12,35% and ${16,391) in 2007, 2004 and 2005, respectively $ 6,508 319,743 $(26,167)
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gain (loss) on derivative instruments included in
net income, net of tax of $12,504, $(14,194) and $(2,734) in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively 20,013 (25,867) {4.367)
Net unrealized gain {loss} on derivative instruments qualifying as hedges (13,505) 45,610 {21,800)
Pension fiability adjustment, net of tax of $1,835, $1,122 and $353
in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively 3,012 1,761 574
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax of $3,606 in 2007 7177 (1,585) {1,099}
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale investments, net of tax of $270 in 2007 405 - -
Total cther comprehensive income (loss) $ (2,911) $ 45,786 $(22,325)

The after-tax components of accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, were as follows:

Net Unreafized Net
Gain {Loss) Unrealized Total
on Derivative Foreign Gain on Accumulated
Instruments Pension Currency Available- Other
Qualifying Liability Translation for-sale Comprehensive
as Hedges Adjustment Adjustment Investments Loss

{in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2005 $(26,167) § (7.651) 8 2 5 - $(33,8106)
Balance at December 31, 2006 $19,443 $(24,342) $(1,583) $ - § (6,482)

Balance at December 3t, 2007 $ 5,938 ${21,330) $5,594 $405 $(9,393)

a1
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NOTE 2 — ACQUISITIONS

In 2007, the Company acquired construction materials and contracting businesses in North Dakota, Texas and Wyoming, a construction
services business in Nevada, and Cascade, a natural gas distribution business, as discussed below. The total purchase consideration for
these businesses and properties and purchase price adjustments with respect to certain other acquisitions made prior to 2007, consisting
of the Company's common stock and cash and the cutstanding indebtedness of Cascade, was $526.3 million.

On July 2, 2007, the acquisition of Cascade was finalized and Cascade became an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The
acquisition of Cascade was funded with cash {largely proceeds from the sale of the domestic independent power production assets) and
debt. Cascade’s natural gas service areas are in Washington and Oregon.

In 2006, the Company acquired a construction services business in Nevada, natural gas and oil production properties in Wyoming, and
construction materials and contracting businesses in California and Washington, none of which was material. The total purchase
consideration for these businesses and properties and purchase price adjustments with respect to certain other acquisitions made prior to
2006, consisting of the Company’s common steck and cash, was $120.6 million.

In 2005, the Company acquired constructicn services businesses in Nevada, natural gas and oil production properties in scuthern Texas
and construction materials and contracting businesses in [daho, lowa and Oregon, none of which was material. The total purchase
consideration for these businesses and properties and purchase price adjustments with respect to certain other acquisitions acquired prior
to 2005, consisting of the Company's commion stock and cash, was $245.2 million.

The above acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase methed of accounting and, accordingly, the acquired assets and liabilities
assumed have been preliminarily recorded at their respective fair vatues as of the date of acquisition. Cn certain of the above acquisitions
made in 2007, final fair market values are pending the completion of the review of the relevant assets and liabilities as of the acquisition
date. The results of operations of the acquired businesses and properties are included in the financial statements since the date of each
acquisition. Pro forma financial amounts reflecting the effects of the above acquisitions are not presented, as such acquisitions were not
material to the Company's financial position or results of operations.

NOTE 3 — DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Innovatum, a component of the pipeline and energy services segment, specialized in cable and pipeline magnetization and location. During
the third guarter of 2006, the Company initiated a plan to sell Innovaturn because the Company determined that Inngvatum is a non-
strategic asset. During the fourth quarter of 2006, the stock and a portion of the assets of Innovatum were sold and the Company sold the
remaining assets of Innovatum on January 23, 2008. The loss on disposal of Innovatum was not material.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company initiated a plan to sell certain of the domestic assets of Centennial Resources. The plan to
sell was based on the increased market demand for independent power production assets, combined with the Company’s desire to
efficiently fund future capital needs. The results of operations of these assets were shown in continuing operations in the Company’s
financial statements in the Company’s 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K as the Company intended to have significant continuing
involverment with these assets in the form of continuing existing operation and maintenance agreements between CEM and these assets
after the sale.

The Company subsequently committed to a plan to sell CEM due to strong interest in the operations of CEM during the bidding process for
the domestic independent power production assets in the first quarter of 2007, As a result of the Company's commitment to a plan to sell
CEM, the Company would no longer have significant continuing involvernent in the operations of the other domestic independent power
production assets after the sale. Therefore, in accordance with SFAS No. 144, the results of operations of the domestic independent power
production assets, including CEM, are presented as discontinued operations.

On luly 10, 2007, Centennial Resources sold its domestic independent power production business consisting of Centennial Power and CEM
to Bicent Power LLC (formerly known as Montana Acquisition Company LLC). The transaction was valued at $636 miltion, which included
the assumption of approximately $36 million of project-related debt. The gain on the sale of the assets, excluding the gain on the sale of
Hartwell as discussed in Note 4, was approximately $85.4 million (after tax). A portion of the proceeds from the sale was used to pay a
dividend to the Company. This dividend was then used to prepay, in part, the outstanding term loan indebtedness that was incurred by the
Company to fund the Cascade acquisition. The remaining proceeds of the sale provided additional cash for growth opportunities.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the Company's consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes for prior periods have been
restated to present the results of operations of Innovatum and the domestic independent power production assets as discontinued
operations. In addition, the assets and liabilities of these operations were treated as hald for sale, and as a result, no depreciation, depletion
and amortization expense was recorded from the time each of the assets was classified as held for sale.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, at the time the Company committed to the plan to sell each of the assets, the Company was required io
test the respective assets for goodwill impairment. The fair value of Innovatum, a reporting unit for goodwill impairment testing, was
estimated using the expected proceeds from the sale, which was estimated to be the current book value of the assets of innovatum other
than its goodwill. As a result, a goodwill impairment of $4.3 million (before tax) was recognized and recorded as part of discontinued
operations, net of tax, in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the third quarter of 2006. There were nc gocdwill impairments
associated with the other assets held for sale.

,,,,,, o
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Operating results related to Innovatum for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, were as follows:

2007 2006 2005
{In thousands)
Operating revenues $1,748 $1,827 $2,.983
Loss from discontinued operations before income tax benefit (210} (5,994) (1,506}
Income tax benefit (316} (3,834} {731}
Income {loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax $ 106 $(2,160} $ (775)

The income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2006, is larger than the customary relationship between the income tax benefit
and the loss before tax due to a capital loss tax benefit {(which reflects the effect of the $4.3 million and $4.0 million goodwill impairments
in 2006 and 2004, respectively) resulting from the sale of the Innovatum stock.

Operating results related to the domestic independent power production assets for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,

were as follows:

2007 2006 2003
{in thousands)
Operating revenues $125,867 $66,145 $48,508
Income from discontinued operations (including gain
on disposal in 2007 of $142.4 million) before income tax
expense (benefit) 177,666 9,276 10,828
Income tax expense {benefit) 68,438 (863) 261
Income frem discontinued operations, net of tax $109,228 $10,139 $10,567

The income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2006, and the lower income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2005,
reflect a renewable electricity production tax credit of $4.4 millicn and $4.1 million, respectively.

Revenues at the former independent pawer production operations were recognized based on electricity delivered and capacity provided,
pursuant to contractual cemmitments and, where applicable, revenues were recognized under EITF No. 91-6 ratably over the terms of the
related contract. Arrangements with multiple revenue-generating activities were recognized under EITF No. 00-21 with the multiple
deliverables divided into separate units of accounting based on specific ¢riteria and revenues of the arrangements allocated to the separate

units based on their relative fair values.

The carrying amounts of the major assets and liabilities related to the domestic independent power production assets held for sale, as well
as the major assets and liabilities related to Innovatum, at December 31, 2007 and 2006, were as follows:

2007 2006

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net

Inventories

Prepayments and other current assets

{In thousands)
5 - $ 1,878
- 8,307
179 490
- 1,981

Total current assets held for sale

$179 $ 12,656

Net property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Other intangible assets, net

Other

$ - $390,679
- 1,167
- 7162
- 2,257

Total noncurrent assets held for sale

$ - $ 411,265

Accounts payable
Other accrued liabilities

- $ 11,557
- 3,343

Total current liabilities held for sale

$ - $ 14,900

Deferred income taxes
Qther liabilities

- $ 27956
- 2,577

Total noncurrent liabilities held for sale

5 - $ 30,533
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NOTE 4 — EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS .

Investments in companies in which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies are
accounted for using the equity method, The Company’s equity method investments at December 31, 2007, include the Brazilian
Transmissian Lines.

[n August 2006, MDU Brasil acquired cwnership interests in companies owning three electric transmission lines. The interests involve the
ENTE {13.3-percent ownership interest), ERTE {13.3-percent ownership interest} and ECTE (25-percent ownership interest) electric
transmission lines, which are primarily in northeastern and southern Brazil. The cantracts provide for revenues denominated in the Brazilian
Real, annuat inflation adjustments and change in tax law adjustments and have between 23 and 25 years remaining under the contracts.
Alusa, Brascan and CEMIG hold the remaining ownership interests, with CELESC also having an ownership interest in ECTE. The functional
currency for the Braziian Transmission Lines is the Brazilian Real.

In February 2004, Centennial International acquired 49.99 percent of Carib Power. Carib Power, through a wholly owned subsidiary, owns a
225-MW natural gas-ired electric generating facility in Trinidad and Tobago. On February 26, 2007, the Company sold its interest in Carib
Power. The sale did not have a significant effect on the Company’s resuits of operations.

In September 2004, Centennial Resources, through indirect wholly owned subsidiaries, acquired a 50 percent ownership interest in
Hartwell, which owns a 310-MW natural gas-fired electric generating facility near Hartwell, Georgia. On July 10, 2007, the Company sold its
ownership interest in Hartwell, and realized a gain of $10.1 million ($6.1 million after tax) from the sale which is recorded in earnings from
equity method investments on the Consolidated Statements of income.

In June 2005, the Company completed the sale of its 49 percent interest in MPX to Petrobras, the Brazilian state-controlied energy
company. The Company realized a gain of $15.6 million from the sale in 2005.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company's equity method investments had total assets of $398.4 million and $583.6 million,
respectively, and long-term debt of $211.2 million and $321.5 million, respectively. The Company’s investment in its equity method
investments was approximatety $59.0 million and $102.0 million, inclucing undistributed earnings of $4.9 million and $8.5 milfian, at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

NOTE 5 — GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2007, were as follows:

Balance Googwill Balance
as of Acquireg as of
January 1, During December 31,
2007 the Year® 2007

(in thousands}
Electric $ - $ - $ -
Natural gas distribution - 171,329 171,029
Construction services 86,942 4,443 91,385
Pipeline and energy services 1,159 - 1,159
Natural gas and oil preduction - ~ -
Construction materials and contracting 136,197 25,828 162,025
Other - - -
Total $224,298 $201,400 $425,698

*Includes purchase price adjustments that were not material related to acquisitions in & prior period.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2006, were as follows:

Balance Goodwill Balance
as of Acguired a5 of
January 1, During December 31,
2006 the Year* 2006

(in thousands)
Electric ] - 3 - 3 -
Natural gas distribution - - -
Construction services 80,970 5972 86,942
Pipeline and energy services 1,159 - 1,159
Natural gas and oil production - - -
Construction materials and contracting 133,264 2,933 136,197
Other - - -
Total $215,392 $8,905 $224,298

*Includes purchase price adjustments that were not material related to acquisitions in a prior period.

For mare information on the goadwill impairment related to the discontinued operations at Innavatum in 2006, see Note 3.
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Other amortizable intangible assets at December 31, 2007 and 2006, were as follows:

2007 2006
{in thousands)

Customer relationships $21,834 $13,030
Accumulated amortization (4,444) (1,890)
17,390 11,140

Noncompete agreements 10,655 12,8846
Accumulated amortization (3,654) (8,540)
7,001 4,346

Acquired contracts 2,539 8,307
Accumulated amertization (1,615) (4.6406)
924 3,661

Qther 3,404 5,062
Accumulated amortization {927) {1,407)
2,477 3,655

Total $27,792 $22,802

Amortization expense for intangible assets for the years ended Dacember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, was $4.4 million, $4.3 million and $3.5
million, respectively. Estimated amortization expense for intangible assets is $5.7 million in 2008, $4.4 million in 2009, $3.4 million in 2010,
$2.9 million in 2011, $2.7 miltion in 2012 and $8.7 million thereafter.

NOTE 6 — REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following table summarizes the individval components of unamertized regulatory assets and liabilities as of December 31:

2007 2006
{In thousands)
Regulatory assets:
Deferred income taxes $ 43,866 $ 35,978
Pension and postretirement benefits 21,613 19,075
Natural gas supply derivatives 16,324 -
Long-term debt refinancing costs 10,605 11,232
Plant costs 4,930 13,254
Other 15,812 7,230
Tetal regulatory assets 113,150 86,769
Regulatory liabilities:
Plant removal and decommissicning costs 89,9 85,087
Taxes refundable tc customers 22,580 14,229
Deferred income taxes 17,630 18,01%
Natural gas costs refundable through rate adjustments 11,568 7,516
Natural gas supply derivatives 5,631 -
Other 8,250 4,179
Total regutatory liabilities 155,650 129,030
Net regulatory position $(42,500) ${42,261)

As of Decemnber 31, 2007, a large portion of the Company's regulatory assets, other than gertain deferred income taxes, was being reflected
in rates charged te customers and is being recovered over the next 1 to 15 years. A portion of the Company's regulatory assets are not
earning a return; however, these regulatory assets are expected ta be recovered from customers in future rates.

If, for any reason, the Company’s regulated businesses cease to meet the criteria for application of SFAS No. 71 for all or part of their
operations, the regulatory assets and liabilities relating to those portions ceasing to meet such criteria would be removed from the balance
sheet and included in the statement of income as an extraordinary item in the period in which the discontinuance of SFAS No. 71 occurs.

NOTE 7 — DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, are required Lo be recorded on the balance
sheet as either an asset or liability measured at fair value. Changes in the derivative instrument’s fair value are recognized currently in
earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met, Accounting for qualifying hedges allows derivative gains and losses to offset the
related results on the hedged item in the income statement and requires that a company must formally document, designate and assess the
effectiveness of transactions that receive hedge accounting treatment.
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In the event a derivative instrument being accounted for as a cash flow hedge does not qualify for hedge accounting because it is no longer
highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of a hedged item; if the derivative instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised,
or if management determines that designation of the derivative instrument as a hedge instrument is no longer appropriate, hedge
accounting would be discontinued and the derivative instrument would continue to be carried at fair value with changes in its fair value
recognized in earnings. In these circumstances, the net gain or loss at the time of discontinuance of hedge accounting would remain in
accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) until the period or periods during which the hedged forecasted transaction affects
earnings, at which time the net gain or loss wouid be reclassified intc earnings. In the event a cash flow hedge is discontinued because it is
unlikely that a forecasted transaction will occur, the derivative instrument would continue to be carried on the balance sheet at its fair value,
and gains and losses that had accumulated in other comprehensive income (loss) would be recognized immediately in earnings. In the event
of a sale, termination or extinguishment of a foreign currency derivative, the resulting gain or loss would be recognized immediately in
earnings. The Company’s palicy requires approval to terminate a derivative instrument prior to its original maturity. As of December 31,
2007, the Company had no outstanding foreign currency or interest rate hedges.

Cascade core
At December 31, 2007, Cascade held natural gas swap agreements which were not designated as hedges.

Cascade utilizes natural gas swap agreements to manage a portion of the market risk associated with fluctuations in the price of natural
gas on its forecasted purchases of natural gas for core customers in accordance with authority granted by the WUTC and OPUC. Core
customars consist of residential, commerciat and smalter industrial customers. The fair value of the derivative instrument must be estimated
as of the end of each reporting pericd and is recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as an asset cr a liability. Cascade applies

SFAS Neo. 71 and records periodic changes in the fair market value of the derivative instruments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as

a regulatory asset or a regulatory liability, and settlements of these arrangements are expected to be recovered through the purchased gas
cost adjustment mechanism. Under the terms of these arrangements, Cascade will either pay or receive settlement payments based on

the difference between the fixed strike price and the monthly index price applicable to each contract.

Fidelity and Cascade non-core
At December 31, 2007, Fidelity held natural gas and oil swap and collar derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedging instruments.
Cascade held natural gas swap derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedging instruments.

Fidelity utilizes natural gas and oil price swap and collar agreemants to manage a portion of the market risk associated with fluctuations in
the price of natural gas and oil on its forecasted sales of natural gas and oil preduction. Cascade utilizes natural gas swap agreements to
manage a portion of the market risk associated with fluctuations in the price of natural gas on its forecasted purchases of natural gas for
non-core customers. Cascade’s non-core customers, who are not covered by the purchased gas cost adjustment mechanism, are generally
large industrial, electric generation and institutional customers. Each of the price swap and collar agreements was designated as a cash
flow hedge of the forecasted sale of the related production or as a cash flow hedge of the forecasted purchase of the related commodity.

The fair value of the hedging instruments must be estimated as of the end of each reporting period and is recorded on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets as an asset or a liability. Changes in the fair value attributable to the effective portion of hedging instruments, net of tax, are
recorded in stockholders' equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). At the date the natural gas or oil
quantities are settled, the amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income (loss) are reported in the Consolidated Statements of
Income, To the extent that the hedges are not effective, the ineffective portion of the changes in fair market value is recorded directly in
earnings. The proceeds received for natural gas and oil production and the amount paid for natural gas purchases are also generally based
on market prices.

For the years ended Decemnber 31, 2007 and 2005, the amount of hedge ineffectiveness was immaterial. In the second quarter of 2006,
Fideiity's oil collar agreements became ineffective and no longer qualified for hedge accounting. The il hedges became ineffective as the
physical price received no longer correlated to the hedge price due to the widening of regional basis differentials on the price of the physical
production received, The ineffectiveness related to these collar agreements resulted in a loss of approximately $138,000 (before tax) for the
year ended December 31, 2006, that was recorded in operation and maintenance expense. The ineffective collar agreements expired by
December 31, 2006. The amount of hedge ineffectiveness on Fidelity’s remaining hedges was immaterial for the year ended December 31,
2006.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, there were no components of the derivative instruments’ gain or loss excluded
from the assessment of hedge effectiveness. Gains and losses must be reclassified into earnings as a result of the discontinuance of cash
flow hedges if it is probable that the original forecasted transactions will not occur. There were no such reclassifications into earnings as a
result of the discontinuance of hedges.

Gains and losses on derivative instruments that are reclassified from accumulated ather comprehensive income (loss) to current-period
earnings are included in the line item in which the hedged item is recorded. As of Decemnber 31, 2007, the maximum term of the swap and
collar agreements, in which the exposure to the variability in future cash flows for forecasted iransactions is being hedged, is 12 months.
The Company estimates that over the next 12 months, net gains of approximately $6.2 million (after tax] will be reclassified from
accumulated other comprehensive loss into earnings, subject to changas in natural gas and oil market prices, as the hedged transactions
affect earnings.
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NOTE 8 — FAIR VALUE OF OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is based on quoted market prices of the same or similar issues. The estimated fair
values of the Company’s natural gas and ail price swap and collar agreements reflect the estimated amounts the Company would receive or
pay to terminate the contracts at the reporting date based upon quoted market prices of comparable contracts.

The estimated fair value of the Company’s long-term debt at December 31 was as follows:

2007 2006

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Valug Amount Value

{in thousands)

Long-term debt $1,308,463 $1,293,863 $1,254,582 $1,247,439
Commedity derivative agreements — current asset $ 12,740 $ 12,740 3 32108 $ 32,101
Commeodity derivative agreements — current liability $ (14,799} $ {14,799} 3 - 3 -
Commodity derivative agreements — noncurrent asset $ 3,419 $ 3,419 $ - S -
Commeodity derivative agreements — noncurrent liability $  (2,570) $ (2,570) $ - $ -

' The carrying ameunts of the Company’s remaining financial instruments included in current assets and current fiabilities approximate their
fair values.

Cascade has a revolving credit agreement with various banks totaling $50 million with certain provisions allowing for increased borrowings,
up to a maximum of $75 million. The $50 million credit agreement expiras on December 28, 2012, with provisions allowing for an extension
of up to two years upon consent of the banks. Cascade also has a $20 million uncommitted line of credit which may be terminated by the
bank or Cascade at any time. There was $1.7 million outstanding under the Cascade credit agreements at December 31, 2007. The
borrowings are classified as short-term borrowings as Cascade intends to repay the borrowings within one year. The weighted average
interest rate for borrowings outstanding at December 33, 2007, was 4.75 percent. As of December 31, 2007, there were outstanding letiers

NOTE 9 — SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
of credit, as discussed in Note 20, of which $1.9 million reduced amounts available under the $50 million credit agreement.

In order to borrow under Cascade’s $50 million credit agreemens, Cascade must be in compliance with the applicable covenants and
certain other conditions. This includes a covenant not to permit, at any time, the ratio of total debt to total capitalization to be greater than
45 percent. Cascade was in compliance with these covenanis and met the required conditions at December 31, 2007.

Cascade’s $50 million credit agreement contains cross-default provisions. These provisions state that if Cascade fails to make any
payment with respect to any indebtedness or contingent obligation, in excess of a specified amount, under any agreement that causes
such indebtedness to be due prior to its stated maturity or the ¢ontingent obligation to become payable, the agreement will be in default.
Certain of Cascade’s financing agreements and Cascade's practices limit the amount of subsidiary indebtedness.

NOTE 10 — LONG-TERM DEBT AND INDENTURE PROVISIONS
Long-term debt outstanding at December 31 was as follows:

2007 2006
{in thousandgs)
First mortgage bonds and notes:
Secured Medium-Term Notes, Series A, at a weighted average rate
of 6.48%, due on dates ranging from October 1, 2008 to Aprit 1, 2042 $ 20,500 $ 27000
Senior Notes, 5.98%, due December 15, 2033 30,000 30.000
Total first mortgage bonds and notes 50,500 57,000
Senior Notes at a weighted average rate of 5.64%, due on dates ranging
| from June 27, 2008 to March 8, 2037 1,064,000 1,064,500
Medium-Term Notes, at a weighted average rate of 7.72% due on dates
' ranging from September 4, 2012 to March 16, 2029 81,000 -
' Commercial paper at a weighted average rate of 4.95%,
supported by revolving credit agreements 61,000 122,850
Other notes, at a weighted average rate of 5.24% due on dates ranging from
September 1, 202C to February 1, 2035 43,679 -
Term credit agreements at a weighted average rate of 5.88%,
due on dates ranging from July 1, 2008 to August 31, 2015 8,286 10,290
Discount {2) (58)
Total long-term debt 1,308,463 i,254,582
Less current maturities 161,682 84,034

Net long-term debt $1,146,781 $1,170,548
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The amounts of scheduted long-term debt maturities for the five years and thereafter following December 31, 2007, aggregate $161.7 million
in 2008; $73.4 million in 2009; $7.3 millien in 2010; $128.0 million in 2011; $135.5 million in 2012 and $802.6 million thereafier,

Certain debt instruments of the Company and its subsidiaries, including those discussed below, contain restrictive covenants, all of which
the Company and its subsidiaries were in compliance with at December 31, 2007.

MDU Resources Group, Inc. The Company has a revolving credit agreement with various banks totaling $125 million {with provision for an
increase, at the option of the Company on stated conditions, up to a maximum of $150 million). There were no amounts outstanding under
the credit agreement at December 31, 2007 and 2006. The credit agreement supports the Company's $100 million commercial paper
program. Under the Company's commercial paper program, $61.0 millicn and $25.8 million were outstanding at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. The commercial paper borrowings are classified as long-term debt as they are intended to be refinanced on a fong-term
basis through continued commercial paper borrowings {supported by the credit agreement, which expires in June 2011),

In order to borrow under the Company's credit agreement, the Company must be in compliance with the applicable covenants and certain
other conditions, including covenants not to permit, as of the end of any fiscal quarter, {A) the ratio of funded debt to total capitalization
{determined on a consolidated basis} to be greater than 65 percent or (B} the ratio of funded debt to capitalization (determined with respect
to the Company alone, excluding its subsidiaries) to be greater than §5 percent. Also included is a covenant that does not permit the ratio
of the Company's earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization to interest expense (determined with respect to the
Company alone, excluding its subsidiaries), for the 12-month period ended each fiscal quarter, to be less than 2.5 to 1. Other covenants
include restrictions on the sale of certain assets and on the making of certain investments. The Company was in compliance with these
covenants and met the required conditions at December 31, 2007. In the event the Company does not comply with the applicable
covenants and other conditions, alternative sources of funding may need to be pursued.

There are no credit facilities that contain cross-default provisions between the Company and any of its subsidiaries.

The Company's issuance of first mortgage debt is subject to certain restrictions imposed under the terms and conditions of its Mortgage.
Generally, those restrictions require the Company to fund $1.43 of unfunded property or use $1.00 of refunded bonds for each dollar of
indebtedness incurred under the Mortgage and, in some cases, to certiiy to the trustee that annual earnings (pretax and before interest
charges), as defined in the Mortgage, equal at least two times its annualized first mortgage bond interest costs. Under the more restrictive
of the tests, as of December 31, 2007, the Company could have issued approximately $544 million of additional first mortgage bonds.

Approximately $549.8 million in net book value of the Company’s electric and natural gas distribution properties at December 31, 2007,
with certain exceptions, are subject to the lien of the Mortgage and to the junior lien of the indenture.

MDU Energy Capital, LLC On August 14, 2007, MDU Energy Capital entered into a $125 miilion master shelf agreement (dated as of
August 9, 2007). Under the terms of the master shelf agreement, $85.C million was outstanding at December 31, 2007.

The master shelf agreement containg customary covenants and provisions, including covenants of MDU Energy Capital not to permit {i) the
ratio of its total debt (on a consolidated basis) to adjusted totai capitalization to be greater than 70 percent, or (ji} the ratio of subsidiary
debt to subsidiary capitalization to be greater than 85 percent. The agreement also includes a covenant requiring the ratio of MDU Energy
Capital earnings before interest and taxes to interest expense {on a consolidated basis), for the 12-month period ended each fiscal quarter
{commencing with the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2007}, to be greater than 1.5 to 1. MDU Energy Capital was in compliance with
these covenants and met the required conditions at December 31, 2007. In addition, payment obligations under the master shelf agreement
may be accelerated upon the occurrence of an event of default {as described in the agreement). MDU Energy Capital may incur additional
indebtedness under the master shelf agreement, up to a total of $125 million, until the earlier of August 4, 2010, or such time as the
agreement is terminated by either of the parties thereto.

Centennial Energy Holdings, Inc. Centennial has a revolving credit agreement and an uncommitted line of credit with various banks and
institutions totafing $425 million with certain provisions allowing for increased borrowings. These credit agreements support Centennial’s
$400 million commercial paper program. There were no outstanding borrowings under the Centennial credit agreements at December 31,
2007 and 2006. Under the Centennial commercial paper program, there was no amount outstanding at December 31, 2007, and $97.1
miflion outstanding at December 31, 2006. Centennial commercial paper borrowings are classified as long-term debt as they are intended
to be refinanced on a long-term basis through continued Centennial commercial paper borrowings (supported by Centennial credit
agreements). The revolving credit agreement is for $400 million, which includes a provision for an ingrease, at the option of Centennial on
stated conditions, up to a maximum of $450 millien and expires on December 13, 2012. The uncommitted line of credit for $25 million may
be terminated by the bank at any time. As of December 31, 2007, $56.4 million of letters of credit were outstanding, as discussed in Note
20, of which $44.0 million reduced amounts available under these agreements.

Centennial has an uncommitted fong-term master shelf agreement that allows for borrowings of up to $550 million. Under the terms of the
master shelf agreement, $418.5 million and $539.5 million were outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The ability to
request additional borrowings under this master shelf agreement expires on May 8, 2009.
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In order to borrow under Centennial’s credit agreements and the Centennial uncommitted long-term master shelf agreement, Centennial
and certain of its subsidiaries must be in compliance with the applicable covenants and certain other conditions, including covenants not to
permit, as of the end of any fiscal quarter, the ratio of total debt to total capitalization to be greater than 65 percent (for the $400 million
credit agreement) and 60 percent {for the master shelf agreement). The master shelf agreement also includes a covenant that does not
permit the ratio of Centennial’s earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization to interest expense, for the 12-month period
ended each fiscal quarter, to be less than 1.75 to 1. Other covenants include minimum consolidated net worth, limitation on priority debt
and restrictions on the sale of certain assets and on the making of certain loans and investments. Centennial and such subsidiaries were in
compliance with these covenants and met the required conditions at December 31, 2007. In the event Centennial or such subsidiaries do
not comply with the applicable covenants and other conditions, alternative sources of funding may need to be pursued.

Certain of Centennial’s financing agreements contain cross-default provisions. These provisions state that if Centennial or any subsidiary of
Centennial fails to make any payment with respect to any indebtedness or contingent obligation, in excess of a specified amount, under any
agreement that causes such indebtedness to be due prior to its stated maturity or the contingent obligation to become payable, the
applicable agreements will be in default, Certain of Centennial’s financing agreements and Centennial's practices limit the amount of
subsidiary indebtedness.

Williston Basin Interstate Pipeline Gompany Williston Basin has an uncommitted long-term master shelf agreement that allows for
borrowings up to $100 miltion. Under the terms of the master shelf agreement, $80.0¢ million was outstanding at December 31, 2007 and
2006. The ability to request additional borrowings under this master shelf agreement expires on December 20, 2008.

in order to borrow under its uncommitted long-term master shell agreement, Williston Basin must be in compliance with the appilicable
covenants and certain other conditions, including covenants not to permit, as of the end of any fiscal quarter, the ratio of total debt to total
capitalization to be greater than 55 percent. Other covenants include limitation on priority debt and some restrictions on the sale of certain
assets and the making of certain investments. Williston Basin was in compliance with these covenants and met the required conditions at
December 31, 2007. In the event Williston Basin does not comply with the applicable covenants and other conditions, alternative sources of
funding may need to be pursued.

NOTE 11 — ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
The Cornpany records obligations related to the plugging and abandonment of natural gas and oil wells, decommissioning of certain electric
generating facilities, reclamation of certain aggregate properties and certain other obligations associated with leased properties.

A reconciliation of the Company’s liability, which is included in olher liabilities, for the years ended December 31 was as follows:

2007 2006
fin thousands)

Balance at beginning of year $56,179 342,857
Liabilities incurred 4,149 4,878
Liabilities acquired 652 1,118
Liabilities settled {5,896) (2,963)
Accretion expense 3,081 3,093
Revisions in estimates 6,100 6,321
Other 188 875
Balance at end of year $64,453 $56,179

The Company helieves that any expenses under SFAS No. 143 and FIN 47 as they relate to regulated operations will be recovered in rates
over time and, accordingly, defers such expenses as regulatory assets.

The fair value of assets that are legally restricted for purposes of settling asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2007 and 2006, was
$5.8 million and $5.5 million, respectively.
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NOTE 12 — PREFERRED STOCKS
Preferred stocks at December 31 were as follows:

2007 2008

(Dotlars in thousands)
Authorized:
Preferred —
500,000 shares, cumulative, par value $100, issuable in series
Preferred stock A —
1,000,000 shares, cumulative, without par value, issuable in series
{none outstanding)
Preference —
500,000 shares, cumulative, without par value, issuable in series
{nene outstanding)
Quistanding:
4.50% Series — 100,000 shares $10,000 $10,000
4.70% Series — 50,000 shares 5,000 5,000

Total preferred stocks $15,000 $15,000

The 4.50% Series and 4.70% Series preferred stocks outstanding are subject to redemption, in whole or in part, at the option of the
Company with certain limitations on 30 days notice on any quarterly dividend date at a redemption price, plus accrued dividends, of
$105 per share and $102 per share, respectively.

In the event of a voluntary or involuntary liguidation, all preferred stock series holders are entitled to $100 per share, plus
accrued dividends.

The affirmative vote of two-thirds of a series of the Company's outstanding preferred stock is necessary for amendments to the Company's
charter or bylaws that adversely affect that series; creation of or increase in the amount of authorized stock ranking senior to that series {or
an affirmative majority vote where the authorization relates to a new class of stock that ranks on parity with such series); a voluntary
liquidaticn or sale of substantially all of the Company's assets; a merger ¢or consolidation, with certain excepticons; or the partial retirement
of that series of preferred stock when all dividends on that series of preferred stock have not been paid. The consent of the holders of a
particular series is not required for such corporate actions if the equivalent vote of all cutstanding series of preferred stock voting together
has consented to the given action and no particular series is affected differently than any other series.

Subject to the foregoing, the holders of common stock exclusively possess afl voting power. However, if cumulative dividends on preferred
stock are in arrears, in whole or in part, for ane year, the holders of preferred stock would obtain the right to one vote per share until all
dividends in arrears have been paid and current dividends have been declared and set aside.

NOTE 13 ~ COMMON STOCK

On May 11, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a three-for-two common stock split to be effected in the form of a 50
percent common stock dividend. The additional shares of common stock were distributed on July 26, 2006, to common stockholders of
record on July 12, 2006, Certain common stock information appearing in the accompanying conselidated financial statements has been
restated in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America to give retroactive effect to the stock
split. Additionally, preference share purchase rights have been appropriately adjusted to reflect the effects of the split.

In 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors declared, pursuant io a stockholders’ rights plan, a dividend of one preference share purchase
right (right} for each outstanding share of the Company's common stock. Each right becomes exercisable, upen the occurrence of certain
events, for four-ninths of one one-thousandth of a share of Series B Preference Stock of the Company, without par value, at an exercise
price of $125, subject to certain adjustments. The rights are currently not exercisable and will be exercisable only if a person or group
{acquiring person} either acquires ownership of 15 percent or more of the Company’s common stock or commences a tender or exchange
offer that would result in ownership of 15 percent or more. In the event the Company is acquired in a merger or cther business combination
transaction or 50 percent or more of its consolidated assets or earnings power are sold, each right entitles the holder to receive, upon the
exercise thereof at the then current exercise price of the right multiplied by the number of four-ninths of one one-thousandth of a share of
Series B Preference Stock for which a right is then exercisable, in accordance with the terms of the rights agreement, such number of
shares of common stock of the acquiring person having a market value of twice the then current exercise price of the right. The rights,
which expire on December 31, 2008, are redeemable in whole, but not in part, for a price of $.00444 per right, at the Company’s option at
any time until any acquiring person has acquired 15 percent or more of the Company’s common stock.

The Stock Purchase Plan provides interested investors the opportunity to make optional cash investments and to reinvest all or 2
percentage of their cash dividends in shares of the Company’s common stock. The K-Plan is partially funded with the Company's common
stock. From July 2006 through March 2007, the Stock Purchase Plan and K-Plan, with respect to Company stock, were funded with shares
of authorized but unissued common stock. From January 2005 threugh Jung 2006, and April 2007 through December 2007, purchases of
shares of common stock on the open market were used to fund the Stack Purchase Plan and K-Pian. At December 31, 2007, there were
20.6 million shares of common stock reserved for original issuance under the Stock Purchase Plan and K-Plan.
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NOTE 14 — STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised) and on fanuary 1, 2003, adopted SFAS No. 123. For a discussion of the
adoption of SFAS No. 123 (revised) and SFAS No. 123, see Note 1.

The Company has several stock-based compensation plans and is autherized to grant options, restricted stock and stock for up ta 17.1 million
shares of common stock and has granted options, restricted stock and stock of 6.9 million shares through December 31, 2007. The Company
generally issues new shares of common stock to satisfy stock option exercises, restricted stock, stock and performance share awards.

Total stock-based compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2007, was $4.7 million, net of income taxes of $3.1 million. Total
stock-based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2006, was $3.5 miilion, net of income taxes of $2.2 million,

As of December 31, 2007, total remaining unrecognized compensation expense related to stock-based compensation was approximatety
$4.7 million (before income taxes) which will be amortized over a weighted average period of 1.5 years.

Stock options

The Company has stock option plans for directors, key employess and employees. The Company has not granted stock options since
2003. Options granted to key employees automatically vest after nine years, but the plan provides for accelerated vesting based on the
attainment of certain performance goals or upon a change in control of the Company, and expire 10 years after the date of grant. Options
granted to directors and employees vest at the date of grant and three years after the date of grant, respectively, and expire 10 years after
the date of grant.

The fair value of each option outstanding was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

A summary of the status of the stock option plans at December 31, 2007, and changes during the year then ended was as follows:

Weighted

Number of Average

Shares Exercise Price

Balance at beginning of year 2,311,546 $1an
Forfeited (39,352) 12.97
Exercised {776,286) 13.15
Balance at end of year 1,495,908 13.09
Exercisable at end of year 1,468,940 $13.08

Summarized information about stock options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2007, was as follows:

Options Ouistanding Options Exercisable
Remaining Weighted Aggregate Weighted Aggregate
Contractual Average Intrinsic Average Intrinsic
Range of Number Life Exercise Value Number Exercise Value
Exercisable Prices Outstanding in Years Price (C00’s) Exercisabie Price {000's)
$8.88-13.00 135,776 b $ 9.7 $ 243 135,776 $ 9.7 $ 2431
11.01 - 14.00 1,262,944 3.2 13.20 18,199 1,241,409 13.20 17,891
14.01 - 1713 97,188 3.2 16.39 1,090 91,755 16.40 ] 1,028
Balance at end of year 1,495,908 29 $13.09 $21,720 1,468,940 $13.08 $21,350

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding table represents the total intrinsic value (before income taxes), based on the Company's
stock price on December 31, 2007, which would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options as
of that date.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of options exercisable was 2.9 years at December 31, 2007.

The Company received cash of $10.2 million and $4.5 million from the exercise of stock options for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, was $11.2
million and $4.4 million, respectively.

Restricted stock awards

Prior to 2002, the Company granted restricted stock awards under a long-term incentive plan. The restricted stock awards granted vest at
various times ranging from one year to nine years from the date of issuance, but certain grants may vest early based upon the attainment of
certain performance goals or upon a change in control of the Company. The grant-date fair value is the market price of the Company’s
stock on the grant date.
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A summary of the status of the restricted stock awards for the year ended December 31, 2007, was as follows:

Weighted

Average

Number cf Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

Nonvested at beginning of period 3znz §13.22
Vested - -
Forfeited (5,384) 13.22
Nonvested at end of period 26,733 $13.22

The fair value of restricted stock awards that vested during the year ended Decernber 31, 2006, was $1.8 million.

Stock awards

Nonemployee directors may receive shares of common stock instead of cash in payment for directors” fees under the nonemployee director
stock compensation plan. There were 48,228 shares with a fair value of $1.5 million and 50,627 shares with a fair value of $1.3 miliion
issued under this plan during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Performance share awards
Since 2003, key employees of the Company have been awarded performance share awards each year. Entitlernent to performance shares
is based on the Company's total shareholder return over designated performance periods as measured against a selected peer group.

Target grants of performance shares outstanding at December 31, 2007, were as follows:

Target Grant

Grant Date Performance Period of Shares
February 2005 2005-2007 255,081
February 2006 2006-2008 184,000
February 2007 2007-2009 184,418

Participants may earn from zero to 200 percent of the target grant of shares based on the Company'’s total shareholder return relative to
that of the setected peer group. Compensation expense is based on the grant-date fair value. The grant-date fair value of performance
share awards granted during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, was $23.55, $25.22 and $18.36, per share,
respectively. The grant-date fair value for the performance shares granted in 2007 and 2006 was determined by Monte Carto simulation
using a blended volatility term structure comprised of 50 percent historical volatility and 50 percent implied volatility and a risk-free interest
rate term structure based on U.S. Treasury security rates in effect as of the grant date. In addition, the mean over all simulation paths of the
discounted dividends expected to be earned in the performance period used in the valuation was $1.25 and $1.37 per target share for the
2007 and 2006 awards, respectively. The grant-date fair value for the performance shares issued in 2005 was equat to the market value of
the common stock on the grant date. The fair value of performance share awards that vested during the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006, was $6.0 million and $2.2 miflion, respectively.

A summary of the status of the performance share awards for the year ended December 31, 2007, was as follows:

Weighted

Average

Number of Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

Nonvested at beginning of period 738,684 $19.27
Granted 200,395 23.55
Vested (228,452) 15.81
Forfeited (86,128) 19.26
Nonvested at end of period 624,499 3219

NOTE 15 — INCOME TAXES
The components of income befare income taxes for each of the years ended December 31 were as follows:

2007 2004 2005

{in thousands)
United States $508,210 $469,741 $397,703
Foreign 4,600 4,148 13,837

Income before income taxes $512,810 $473,889 $411,540
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Income tax expense for the years ended December 31 was as follows:

2007 2006 2005
{ln thousands)
Current:
Federal $106,399 $108,843 $102,736
State 15,135 18,487 20,449
Foreign 235 136 (93)
121,769 127,466 123,092
Deferred:
Income taxes —
Federal 58,030 34,693 19,278
State 9,656 4,357 4,379
Investment tax credit [414) (405) {500)
67,272 38,645 23,157
Change in uncertain tax benefits 869 - -
Change in accrued interest 114 - -
Total income tax expense $190,024 $1686,1M $146,249

Components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognized at December 31 were as follows:

2007 2008

{In thousands)
Deferred tax assets:

Accrued pension costs $ 44,002 $ 43,433
Regutatory matters 43,866 35,978
Asset retirement obligations 15,163 14,789
Deferred compensation 13,677 13,286
Other 45,335 43,818
Total deferred tax assets 162,043 153,304
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and basis differences on property, plant and egquipment 498,933 445,315
Basis differences on natural gas and oil producing properties 260,417 204,288
Regulatory matters 17,630 18,019
Matural gas and oil price swap and collar agreements 3,989 12,359
Other 42,044 23,894
Totat deferred tax liabilities . 823,013 703,875
Net deferred income tax liability $(660,970) ${552,571)

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, no valuation allowance has been recorded associated with the above deferred tax assets.

The following table reconciles the change in the net deferred income tax liability from December 31, 2006, to December 31, 2007, to
deferred income tax expense:

2007

{in thousands)

Change in net deferred income tax fiability from the preceding table $108,399
Deferred taxes associated with other comprehensive loss 2,804
Deferred taxes associated with acquisitions {46,229)
Other 2,298

Deferred income tax expense for the peried $ 67,272
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Total income tax expense differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to income before taxes. The
reasons for this difference were as follows:

Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Amount % Amount % Amount %
{Doiiars in thousands)
Computed tax at federal statutory rate $179,484 35.0 $165,861 35.0 $144,039 35.0
Increases (reductions) resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 17121 33 17,7B4 3.8 15,064 3.7
Deferred taxes associzted with unrepatriated
foreign earnings 9,368 1.8 - - - -
Domestic preduction activities deduction {4,787) {.9} (2,324) (.5} {2,219} {.5}
Depletion allowance (4,073) {.8) (4,784) (1.0% (4,381) (1.1}
Resclution of tax matters 208 - (3.660) {.8) - -
Foreign operations 235 - 136 - (4.225) (1.0}
Qther items (7,532) {1.3) (6,904) (1.4 (2,029} (.6}
Total income tax expense $190,024 37a $166,11 351 $146,24% 35.5

Prior to the sale of the domestic independent power production assets on July 10, 2007, as discussed in Note 3, the Company considered
earnings {including the gain from the sale of its foreign equity method investment in a natural gas-fired electric generating facility in Brazil in
2005) to be reinvested indefinitely outside of the United States and, accordingly, no U.S. deferred income taxes were recorded with respect
to such earnings. Following the sale of these assets, the Company reconsidered its long-term plans for future development and expansion
of its foreign investment and has determined that it has no immediate plans to explore or invest in additional foreign investments at this
time. Therefore, in accordance with SFAS No. 109, in the third quarter of 2007, deferred income taxes ware accrued with respect to the
temporary differences which had not heen previcusly recorded. The cumulative undistributed earnings at December 31, 2007, were
approximately $36 million. The amount of deferred tax liability, net of allowable foreign tax credits, associated with the undistributed
earnings and recognized during 2007 was approximately $9.4 million. Future earnings will also be subject to additional U.S. taxes, net of
allowable foreign tax credits.

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN 48 as discussed in Note 1. The Company and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the
U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various state, local and foreign jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S.
federal, state and local, or non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax authorities for years ending prior to 2004.

Upon the adoption of FIN 48, the Company recognized a decrease in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, which was not material and
was accounted for as an increase to the January 1, 2007, balance of retained earnings. At the date of adoption, the amount of unrecognized
tax benefits was $4.5 million.

A reconciliation of the unrecognized tax benefits (excluding interest} for the year ended December 31, 2007, was as follows:

2007

(In thousands)

Balance at beginning of year $ 4,201
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 373
Additions for tax positions of prior years 588
Lapse of statute of limitaticns {1,467)
Balance at end of year $3,735

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2007, were $1.6 million of tax positions for which the ultimate
deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty zbout the timing of such deductibility. Because of the impact of deferred tax
accounting, other than interest and penalties, the disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the annual effective tax
rate but would accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier pericd. The amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if
recognized, would affect the effective tax rate at December 31, 2007, was $2.6 million, including approximately $441,000 for the payment
of interest and penalties.

The Company does not anticipate the amount of unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase or decrease within the next 12 months.
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The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related (o unrecognized tax benefits in income taxes. For the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company recognized approximately $680,000, $7,100 and $7,300, respectively, in interest
expense. Penalties were not material in 2007, 2006 and 2005. The Company recognized interest incorne of approximately $480,000,
$1.5 miltion and $62,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company had accrued liabilities
of approximately $718,000 and $436,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, for the payment of interest.

NOTE 16 — BUSINESS SEGMENT DATA

The Company’s reportable segments are those that are based on the Company’s method of internal reporting, which generally segregates
the strategic business units due to differences in products, services and regulation. The vast majority of the Company's operations are
Iocated within the United States. The Company also has investments in foreign countries, which largely consist of the Company’s equity
method investment in the Brazilian Transmission Lines.

Prior to the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company reported seven business segments consisting of electric, natural gas distribution,
construction services, pipeline and energy services, natural gas and oil production, construction materials and contracting, and
independent power production. As discussed in Note 3, the domestic independent power production assets were sold in the third quarter
of 2007, and as a result, the remaining independent power production operations are no longer significant and do not meet the criteria to
be considered a reportable segment, Therefore, the remaining operations of the independent power production segment, including the
Company’s equity method investment in the Brazilian Transmission Lines, are reported in the Other categery. The other operations do not
meet the criteria to be considered a reportable segment. The Company's operations are now conducted through six repertable segments
and prior period information has been restated to reflect this change.

The electric segment generates, transmits and distributes electricity in Montana, North Daketa, Seuth Dakota and Wyoming, The natural
gas distribution segment distributes natural gas in those states as well as in Minnesota, Oregen and Washington. These operations also
supply related value-added products and services.

The construction services segment specializes in electric line construction, pipeline construction, utility excavation, inside electrical wiring,
cabling and mechanical work, fire protection and the manufacture and distribution of specialty equipment.

The pipeline and energy services segment provides natural gas transportation, underground storage and gathering services through
regulated and nonregulated pipeline systems primarily in the Rocky Mountain and northern Great Plains regions of the United States. The
pipetine and energy services segment also provides energy-related management services.

The natural gas and oil production segment is engaged in natural gas and oil acquisition, exploration, development and production activities
in the Rocky Mountain and Mid-Cantinent regions of the United States and in and around the Gulf of Mexico.

The construction materiats and contracting segment mines aggregates and markets crushed stone, sand, gravel and related construction
materials, including ready-mixed concrete, cement, asphalt, liquid asphalt and other value-added products. It also performs integrated
construction services. The construction materials and contracting segment operates in the central, southern and western United States and
Alaska and Hawait.

The Other category includes the activities of Centennial Capital, which insures various types of risks as a captive insurer for certain of the
Company's subsidiaries. The function of the captive insurer is to fund the deductible layers of the insured companies’ general liability and
automobile liability coverages. Centennial Capital also owns cerlain real and personal property. The Cther category also includes the
Company's equity investment in the Brazilian Transmission Lines.
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The information below follows the same accounting policies as described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Information on

the Company's businesses as of December 31 and for the years then ended was as follows:

2007 2004 2005
{in thousands)
External operating revenues:
Electric $ 193,367 $ 187301 $ 181,238
Natural gas distribution 532,997 351,988 384,199
Pipeline and energy services 369,345 349,997 384,887
1,095,709 889,286 950,324
Construction services 1,102,566 987079 686,734
Natural gas and oil production 288,148 251,153 163,539
Construction materials and contracting 1,761,473 1,877,021 1,603,326
Other - - -
3,152,187 3,115,253 2,453,509
Total external operating revenues $4,247,896 $4,004,53% $3,403,923
Intersegment operating revenues:
Etectric $ - $ - 3 -
Natural gas distribution - - -
Construction services 649 503 3N
Pipeline and energy services 77,718 93,723 92,424
Natural gas and ail production 226,706 232,79% 275,828
Construction materials and contracting - - 1,284
Other 10,061 8,1i7 6,038
Intersegment eliminations (315,134) [(335,142) (375,965)
Total intersegment operating revenues $ - $ - $ -
Depreciation, depletion and amortization:
Electric § 22,549 § 21,396 $ zo818
Natural gas distribution 19,054 9776 9,534
Construction services 14,314 15,449 13,459
Pipeline and energy services 21,631 13,288 12,913
Natural gas and oil production 127,408 106,768 84,754
Construction materials and contracting 95,732 88,723 77,988
Other 1,244 1,131 374
Total depreciation, depletion and amortization $ 301,932 $ 256,53 $ 219,440
interest expense:
Electric $ 6,737 $ 6,493 $ 7.553
Natural gas distribution 13,566 3,885 3,973
Construction services 4,878 6,295 4,177
Pipeline and energy services 8,769 8,094 8,132
Natural gas and oil production 8,394 9,864 7,550
Construction materials and contracting 23,997 25,943 21,365
Other 10,717 1,775 1,861
Intersegment eliminations (4,821} (254) (227)
Total interest expense $ 72,237 $ 72,095 $ 54,384
Income taxes:
Electric $ 8528 S 7,403 $ 8,308
Natural gas distribution 6,477 2,108 2,740
Construction services 26,829 16,497 9,693
Pipetine and energy services 18,524 18,938 13,735
Natural gas and oil production 78,348 78,960 82,428
Construction materials and contracting 39,045 46,245 29,244
Other 12,273 {4,040} L
Total income taxes $ 190,024 $ 166,11 3 146,249
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2007 2006 005
(in thousands)
Earnings on common stock:
Electric $ 17,700 $ 14401 $ 13940
Natural gas distribution 14,044 5,680 3,515
Construction services 43,843 27,851 14,558
Pipeline and energy services 31,408 32,126 22,867
Natural gas and oil production 142,485 145,657 141,625
Construction materials and contracting 77,001 85,702 55,040
Qther {4,380) (4,324) 13,061
Earnings on common stock before income from discontinued operations 322,101 307,093 264,606
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 109,334 7979 9,792
Total earnings on common stock $ 431,435 $ 315072 $ 274,398
Capitat expenditures:
Electric $ 91,548 $ 39,065 $ 27036
Natural gas distribution 500,178 15,398 17,224
Construction services 18,241 31,354 50,900
Pipeline and energy services 39,162 42,749 36,318
Natural gas and oil production 283,589 328,979 329,773
Construction materials and contracting 189,727 141,088 161,977
Other 1,621 2,052 14,722
Net proceeds from sale or disposition of property (24,983) {30,501} {40,460)
Net capital expenditures before discentinued operations 1,099,083 570,174 597,490
Discontinued operations (548,216) 33,090 132,956
Total net capital expenditures $ 550,867 $ 603,264 $ 730,446
Assets:
Electric* $ 428,200 $ 353593 $ 330,327
Natural gas distribution* 942,454 264,102 271,653
Construction services 456,564 401,832 351,654
Pipeline and energy services 500,755 474,424 466,961
Natural gas and oil production 1,299,406 1,173,797 898,883
Construction materials and contracting 1,642,729 1,562,868 1,498,338
Other** 322,326 672,858 605,746
Total assets $5,592,434 $4,903,474 $4,423,562
Property, plant and equipment:
Electric® $ 784,705 $ 703,838 $ 670,771
Natural gas distribution* 948,446 289,106 277,288
Construction services 101,935 94,754 20,110
Pipeline and energy services 600,712 562,596 521,495
Natural gas and oil predugtion 1,923,899 1,636,245 1,303,447
Construgtion materials and contracting 1,538,716 1,410,657 1,310,426
Other 31,833 30,529 28,467
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,270,691 1,735,302 1,523,887
Net property, plant and eguipment $3,659,555 $2,992,423 $ 267817

* Includes allocations of common utility property.

** Includes the domestic independent power production assets in 2006 and 2004 that were sold in 2007, and assets not directly assignable to a business (i.e. cash and cash

equivalents, certain accounts raceivable, certain investments and other miscelfaneous current and deferred assats).

The pipeline and energy services segment recognized income from discontinued operations, net of tax, of $106,000 for the year ended
Decernber 31, 2007, and a loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, of $2.1 million and $775,000 for the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively. The Other category reflects income from discontinued operations, net of tax, of $109.2 million, $10.1 million

and $10.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Excluding income {loss) from discontinued operations at pipeline and energy services, earnings from electric, natural gas distribution and
pipeline and energy services are substantially alt from regulatad operations. Earnings from construction services, natural gas and oil
production, construction materials and contracting, and other are alt from nonregulated operations.

Capital expenditures for 2007, 2006 and 2005 include noncash transactions, including the issuance of the Company's equity securities in
connection with acquisitions and the outstanding indebtedness related to the 2007 Cascade acquisition. The noncash transactions were

$217.3 miltion in 2007, immaterial in 2006 and $4 6.5 million in 2005,



98

MDU RESOURCES GROUP, INC. FORM 30-K
PART Il

NOTE 17 — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has noncontributory defined benefit pension plans and cther postretirement benefit plans for certain eligible emplayees.
Effective January 1, 2006, the Company discontinued defined pension plan benefits to all nonunion and certain union employees hired
after December 31, 2005. These employees that would have been eligible for defined pension plan benefits are eligible to receive
additional defined contribution plan benefits. The Company uses a measurement date of December 31 for all of its pension and
postretirement benefit plans.

Changes in benefit obligation and plan assets far the year ended December 31, 2007, and amounts recognized in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets at December 31, 2007, were as follows:

Other
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
{in thousands)

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $298,398 $303,393 $ 67,724 $ 69,81

Service cost 9,098 8,901 1,865 2,015

Interest cost 18,591 16,056 4,212 3,633

Plan participants’ contributions - - 1,790 1,533

Actuarial (gain) loss (8,079) (14,363) 482 (4,019)

Acquisition 63,556 - 11,734 -

Benefits paid {21,641) (15,589) (6,226) {5,249)
Benefit obligation at end of year 359,923 298,398 81,581 67,724
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 259,275 245,328 58,747 52,448

Actual gain on plan assets 28,393 27,047 2,357 6,440

Employer contribution 4,236 2,489 3,888 3,575

Plan participants’ contributions - - 1,790 1,633

Acquisition ’ 60,703 - 13,128 -

Benefits paid {21,641) {15.589) (6,226} {8,249)
Fair vatue of plan assets at end of year 330,966 259,275 73,684 58,747
Funded status — under § (28,957) $ (39,123 $ (7,897) $(8,977)
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31:

Prepaid benefit cost [noncurrent) $ 10,253 $ 4,368 $ 664 $ -

Accrued benefit liability (current) - - (408} {364)

Accrued benefit liability (noncurrent) {(39,210) (43.491) (8,153} (8,613)
Net amount recognized $ (28,957) $ (39,123) $ (7,897) $ (8,577)
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss consist of:

Actuariat {gain) loss $ 30,006 $ 30415 $ {2,466) $(13,718)

Prior service cost (credit) 3,350 5948 {10,524) 648

Transition cbligation - - 10,628 12,753
Tota! $ 33,356 $ 36,363 $ {2,362) § (317)

Employer contributions and benefits paid in the above table include only those amounts contributed directly to, or paid directly from,
plan assets.

Unrecognized pension actuarial losses in excess of 10 percent of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the market-related value
of assets is amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average remaining service lives of active participants. The market-related
value of assets is determined using a five-year average of assets. Unrecognized postretirement net transition obligation is amortized over a
20-year period ending 2012.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plans reflected above was $307.7 million and $245.6 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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The projected benefit obligation, accurmulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for the pension plans with accumulated benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets at December 31, 2007 and 2006, were as follows:

2007 2006

(in thousands)
Projecied benefit cbligation $106,236 $187,638
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 95,435 $151,850
Fair value of plan assets $ 94,845 $148,261

Components of net periodic benefit cost for the Company's pension and other postretirement benefit plans for the years ended December
31, 2007 and 2006, were as follows:

Other
Pension Benefits Postretizement Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in thousands)
Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost $ 9,098 5 890t $ 1,865 $2,005
Interest cost 18,591 16,056 4,212 3,633
Expected return on assets (22,524) {19,913} (4,776} (4.1}
Amertization of prior service cost (credit) 756 913 {1,300} 45
Recognized net actuarial {gain} loss . 1,605 1,699 73 (243)
Amertization of net transition obligation {asset} - (3) 2,125 2125
Net periodic benefit cost, including amount capitalized 7,526 7,653 2,199 3,457
Less amount capitalized X oM 689 373 261
Net periodic benefit cost 6,535 6,964 1,826 3,196
Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in
accumulated other comprehenigive loss:
Net (gain) loss {11,095} {22,983) 1,507 (6,343}
Acquisition-related actuarial loss 12,291 - 9,818 -
Acquisition-related prior service ¢redit {1,842} - (12,472) -
Amortization of actuarial gain (loss) (1,605} (1,699) {73} 243
Amortization of prior service cost {credit) (756) (913) 1,300 (46)
Amortization of net transition (obligation) asset - 3 (2,125) (2.125)
Total recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss {3,007) {25,592) (2,045) (8,208)
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and accumutated other
comprehensive loss i $ 3,528 $(18.628) $  (219) $(5,072)

Gomponents of net periodic benefit cost for the Company's pension and cther postretirement benefit plans for the year ended December
31, 2005, was as follows: :

Other
Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
2005 2005
{in thousands)

Components of net periedic benefit cost: .
Service cost $ 8,336 $ 1,719
Interest cost 16,617 3,784
Expected return on assets (19,947) (4,005)
Amortization of prior service cost 1,025 45
Recognized net actuarial {gain) loss 1,385 (549)
Amortization of net transition obligation (asset) {45) 2,126
Net periodic benefit cost, incleding amount capitalized 7.371 3,120
Less amount capitalized 730 3

Net periodic benefit gost £ 6,641 $ 2,807
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The estimated net loss and prior service cost for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost in 2008 are $367,000 and $665,000, respectively. The estimated net loss, prior service
credit and transition obligation for the other postretirement benefit plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss
into net periodic benefit cost in 2008 are $461,000, $2.8 milfion and $2.1 million, respectively.

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit abligations at December 31 were as follows:

Other
Pension Benefiis Postretirement Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2004
Discount rate 6.00% 5.75% 6.00% 5.75%
Rate of compensation increase 4.20% 4.30% 4.50% 4.50%
Weighted average assumptions used to determine net pericdic benefit cost for the years ended December 31 were as follows:
Giher
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
Discount rate 5.75% 5.50% 5.75% 5.50%
Expected return on plan assets 8.40% 8.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Rate of compensation increase 4.20% 4.30% 4.50% 4.50%

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the targeted asset allocation of 70 percent equity securities and 30 percent
fixed-income securities and the expected rate of return from these asset categories. The expected return on plan assets for other
postretirement benefits reflects insurance-related investment costs.

Health care rate assumptions for the Company's other postretirement benefit plans as of Decernber 31 were as follows:

2007 2006
Health care trend rate assumed for next year 6.0% -10.0% 6.0% - 9.0%
Health care cost trend rate — ultimate 5.0% - 6.0% 5.0% - 6.0%
Year in which ultimate trend rate achieved 1999 - 2017 1969 - 2014

The Company’s other pastretirement benefit plans include health care and life insurance benefits for certain employees. The ptans
underlying these benefits may require contributions by the employee depending on such employee’s age and years of service at retirement
or the date of retirement. The accounting for the health care plans anticipates future cost-sharing changes that are consistent with the
Company’s expressed intent to generally increase retiree contributions each year by the excess of the expected health care cost trend rate
over 6 percent,

Assumed health care cost trend rates may have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one percentage
point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates would have had the foltowing effects at December 31, 2007:

1 Percentage 1 Percentage
Point Increase Point Decrease

{in thousands)

Effect on totat of service and interest cost components $ (21 $ {930)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $1.335 $(9.796)

The Company's defined benefit pension plans’ asset allocation at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and weighted average targeted asset
allocations at December 31, 2007, were as follows:

Weighted Average

Percentage Targeted Asset

of Plan Allocation

Assets Percentage

Asset Category 2007 2006 2007
Equity securities 66% 69% 70%

FixedHncome securities 29 27 30

Other 5 4 -

Total 100% 100% 100%

* Includes targat for both fixed-income securities and cther.
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The Company’s pension assets are managed by 12 outside investment managers. The Company’s other postretirement assets are managed
by three outside investment managers. The Company's investment policy with respect to pension and other postretirement assets is to
make investments solely in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries of the plans and for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits
accrued and defraying the reasonable expenses of administration. The Company strives to maintain investment diversification to assist in
minimizing the risk of farge losses. The Company’s policy guidelines allow for investment of funds in cash equivalents, fixed-income
securities and equity securities. The guidelines prohibit investment in commeodities and future contracts, equity private placement, employer
securities, leveraged or derivative securities, options, direct real estate investments, precious metals, venture capital and limited
partnerships. The guidelines also prohibit short selling and margin transactions. The Company’s practice is to pericdically review and
rebalance asset categories based on its targeted asset allocation percentage policy.

Tne Company's other postretirement benefit plans’ asset allocation at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and weighted average targeted asset
allocation at Decernber 31, 2007, were as follows:

Weighted Average

Percentage Targeted Asset

of Plan Allocation

Assels Percentage

Asset Category 2007 2006 2007
Equity securities 70% 70% 70%

Fixed-income securities 7 27 30

Other ' 3 3 -

Total 100% 100% 100%

* Includes target for both fixed-income securities and other.

The Company expects to contribute approximately $5.6 million to its defined benefit pension plans and approximately $3.5 million to its
postretirement benefit plans in 2008.

The following benefit payments, which reflect future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Other

Pension Postretirement

Years Benefits Benefits

(In thousands)

2008 $ 18,199 $ 5229
2009 18,993 5,429
2010 20,44 5,630
20m 21,046 5,852
2012 22,388 6,067
2013 - 217 130,377 33,643

The following Medicare Part [ subsidies are expected: $736,000 in 2008; $786,000 in 2009; $841,000 in 2010; $88%,000 in 2011,
$948,000 in 2012; and $5.6 million during the years 2013 through 2017.

In addition to company-spensored plans, certain employees are covered under multi-employer pension pians administered by a union,
Amounts contributed to the multi-employer plans were $51.5 million, $57.6 million and $39.6 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

In addition to the qualified plan defined pension benefits reflected in the table at the beginning of this note, the Company also has an
urfunded, nonqualified benefit plan for executive officers and certain key management employees that generally provides for defined
benefit payments at age 65 following the employee's retirement or to their beneficiaries upon death for a 15-year peried. The Company

had investments of $55.0 million at December 31, 2007, consisting of equity securities of $26.4 million, life insurance carried on plan
participants (payabie upon the employee's death) of $20.8 million, fixed-income securities of $4.0 million, and other investments of

$3.8 million, which the Company anticipates using to satisfy obligations under this plan. The Company’s net periodic benefit cost for this
plan was $7.6 million, $7.5 miillion and $7.4 million in 2007, 200¢ and 2005, respectively. The total projected benefit obligation for this

plan was $80.6 million and $69.5 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The accumulated benefit obligation for this plan
was $69.3 million and $57.4 millicn at December 31, 2007 and 2004, respectively. A discount rate of 6.00 percent and 5.75 percent

at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and a rate of compensation increase of 4.25 percent at December 31, 2007 and 2006, were
used to determine benefit obligations. A discount rate of 5.75 percent and 5.50 percent at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and
a rate of compensation increase of 4.25 percent at December 31, 2007 and 2006, were used to determine net periodic benefit cost.

The amount of benefit payments for the unfunded, nonqualified benefit plan, as appropriate, are expected to aggregate $3.5 million in 2008;
$3.6 million in 2009; $4.1 mitlion in 2010; $4.4 million in 2011; $4.8 million in 2012; and $31.1 million for the years 2013 through 2017.
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The Company sponsors various defined contribution plans for eligible employees. Costs incurred by the Company under these plans were
$21.1 million in 2007, $17.3 million in 2006 and $17.0 million in 2005. The costs incurred in each year reflect additional participants as a
result of business acquisitions.

SFAS No. 158 became effective for the Company as of December 31, 2006. The adoption resulted in a negative transition effect on
accumulated other comprehensive loss of $18.5 million.

NOTE 18 — JOINTLY OWNED FACILITIES

The consolidated financial statements include the Company’s 22.7 percent and 25.0 percent ownership interests in the assets, liabilities
and expenses of the Big Stone Station and the Coyote Station, respectively. Each owner of the Big Stone and Coyote stations is responsible
for financing its investment in the jointly owned facilities.

The Company's share of the Big Sione Station and Coyote Station operating expenses was reflected in the appropriate categories of
operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

At December 31, the Company's share of the cost of utility plant in service and related accumulated depreciation for the stations was
as follows:

2007 2006
{in thousands)

Big Stone Station:
Utility plant in service $ 61,5068 S 35,659
Less accumulated depreciation 39,168 38,881
$ 22,400 $ 16,778

Coyote Station:

Utility plant in service $125,826 $125,950
Less accumulated depreciation 79,783 78,056
$ 46,043 $ 47894

NOTE 19 — REGULATORY MATTERS AND REVENUES SUBJECT TO REFUND

In August 2006, CMS, a competing gas marketer, filed a complaint against Cascade before the WUTC alleging Cascade had entered into
gas supply sales contracts with its non-core, transportation-only custorners in viclation of state law by not filing tariffs and copies of the gas
supply contracts with the WUTC, CMS’s complaint additionally raised claims of undue preference and discrimination. On lanuary 12, 2G07,
the WUTC entered an order allowing Cascade to continue to make gas supply sales to non-core, transportation-only customers but requiring
Cascade to file its tariffs and sales contracts with the WUTC. On February 12, 2007, Cascade filed revisions to its tariffs reflecting gas
supply service options available to non-core, transportation-only customers; however, on March 14, 2007, the WUTC suspended the tariff
filing. On March 30, 2007, due to the lack of approved tariffs, Cascade filed notice with the WUTC that it was reactivating a nonregulated
affiliate to make retail gas sales to non-core, transportation-only customers. The WUTC cansolidated the tariff proceeding with Cascade’s
filing to re-establish an affiliate to make non-core, transportation-only customer gas supply sales. On December 7, 2007, the WUTC filed

a complaint against Cascade alleging it is in violation of its most recent general rate case settlement by not sharing gas supply sales
margins with care customers. Cascade filed an answer to the complaint on December 27, 2007. On February 6, 2008, Cascade and the
ather participant parties entered into an agreement settling the issues in all of the above proceedings. Under the settiement, Cascade and
its subsidiaries will discontinue the unbundled retail sale of gas supply to non—core, transpartation-only customers by November 1, 2008.
Fifty percent of the net gas supply sales margins realized from non-core, transportation-only customers by Cascade and its subsidiaries
from April 1, 2007, through October 31, 2008, and fifty percent of the net gain, if any, from the sale of such business, will be credited 1o
Cascade’s core customers. Cascade will also revise its gas procurement strategy for core customers to enhance its ability to acquire gas
supply fram the Rocky Mountain regicn. The settlement is subject to approval by the WUTC. Cascade has reserved an amount for the
crediting of the net gas supply sales margins generated from April 1, 2007, through December 31, 2007. Cascade does not consider the
discontinuance of gas supply sales to non-core, transportation-only customers to have a material impact on its financial position or results
of operations.

On July 12, 2007, Montana-Daketa filed an application with the MTPSC for an electric rate increase. Montana-Dakota requested a total

of $7.8 millien annually or approximately 22 percent above current rates. Montana-Dakota requested a fuel and purchased power tracking
adjustment and an off-system sales margin sharing adjustment. Montana-Dakota also requested an interim increase of $3.9 million
annually, subject to refund. On December 5, 2007, the MTPSC granted an interim increase of $3.4 miflion annually. On February 8, 2008,
Montana-Dakota and the interveners reached a settiement stipulation (subject to MTPSC approval) applicable to this filing whereby the
£3.4 million of interim rate relief will become final upon approval of the stipulation and an additional annual rate increase of $730,000

will become effective January 1, 2009. As part of the settlement, Montana-Dakota will be aliowed to implement a fuel and purchased
power tracking mechanism on a shared basis, a margin sharing mecharism for off-system sales, and modify certain decommissioning and
net negative salvage cost accruals, Also, Montana-Dakota will agree to not implement new rates from any subsequent general rate filings
before January 1, 2010.
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In November 2006, Montana-Dakota filed an application with the NDPSC requesting an advance determination of prudence of Montana-
Dakota’s ownership interest in Big Stone Station II, which is expected to be completed in 2013. Hearings on the application were held in
June 2007. In September 2007, Montana-Dakota informed the NDPSC that certain of the other participants in the project had withdrawn,
that it was considering the impact of these withdrawals on the project and its options, and proposed that the NDPSC suspend the
procedural schedule. In October 2007, Montana-Dakota proposed to supplement the record with additional resource planning analysis
reflecting changes in plant configuration as a result of the participant withdrawals. On February 1, 2008, the NDPSC issued an order setting
supplemental hearings to commence April 28, 2008. The MNPUC is expected to rule on the issuance of the related transmission Certificate
of Need in Apri! 2008 and the NDPSC is expected to rule on the advance determination of prudence in June 2008.

In December 1999, Williston Basin filed a general natural gas rate change application with the FERC. Williston Basin began collecting such
rates effective June 1, 2000, subject to refund. Currently, the only remaining issue outstanding related to this rate change application is in
regard to certain service restrictions. In May 2004, the FERG remanded this issue to an ALJ for reselution. In Novernber 2005, the FERC
issued an Order on Initial Decision affirming the AL)'s Initial Decision regarding certain service and annuat demand quantity restrictions. In
April 20006, the FERC issued an Order on Rehearing denying Williston Basin's Request for Rehearing of the FERC’s Order on Initial Decision.
In April 2006, Williston Basin appealed to the D.C. Appeals Court certain issues addressed by the FERC’s Order on Initiat Decisicn and its
Order on Rehearing. The matter concerning the service restrictions is pending resolution by the [.C. Appeals Court.

NOTE 20 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

Coalbed Natural Gas Operations Fidelity has been named as a defendant in, and /or certain of its operations are or have been the
subject of, more than a dozen lawsuits filed in connection with its CBNG development in the Powder River Basin in Montana and Wyoming.
These lawsuits were filed in federal and state courts in Mentana between June 2000 and January 2007 by a number of environmental
organizations, including the NPRC and the Montana Environmental Information Center, as well as the TRWUA and the Northern Cheyenne
Tribe. Paortions of three of the lawsuits have been transferred to the Wyoming Federal District Court. The lawsuits involve allegations that
Fidelity and /or various government agencies are in violation of state and/or federal law, including the Clean Water Act, the NEPA, the
Federal Land Management Policy Act, the NHPA, the Montana State Constitution, the Moentana Envirenmental Policy Act and the Montana
Water Quality Act. The suits that remain extant include a variety of claims that state and federal government agencies viclated various
environmental laws that impose procedural and substantive requirements. The lawsuits seek injunctive relief, invalidation of various permits
and unspecified damages. In addition, Fidelity has intervened or moved to intervene in three lawsuits filed by other gas producers between
June and September 2006 that challenge rules adepted by the BER related to management of water associated with CBNG production. The
state of Wyoming has filed a similar suit in September 2006 and Fidelity moved to intervene in that action. Fidelity is partly funding the
Petroleum Association of Wyoming's intervention in two suits. The first was brought by two landowners against the Wyoming State Engineer
and the Wyoming Board of Control challenging the state's CBNG groundwater permitting practices. The second suit was brought by the
Wyoming Outdoor Council and Powder River Basin Resource Ceuncil appealing the Wyoming Environmental Quality Council's rules
establishing water quality standards relating to discharges of water associated with CBNG production.

In suits filed in the Montana Federal District Court, the NPRC and the Northern Cheyenne Tribe asserted that the BLM violated NEPA and
other federal laws when approving the 2003 EIS analyzing CBNG development in southeastern Montana. The Montana Federal District
Court, in February 2005, entered a ruling finding that the 2003 EIS was inadequate. The Montana Federal District Court later entered an
order that would have allowed limited CBNG development in the Montana Powder River Basin pending the BLM's preparation of a SEIS. The
plaintiffs appealed the decision to the Ninth Circuit because the Montana Federal District Court declined to enter an injunction enjoining all
development pending completion of the SEIS. The Montana Federal District Court also declined to enter an injunction pending the appeal.
In May 2005, the Ninth Circuit granted the request of the NPRC and the Northern Cheyenne Tribe and, pending appeal or further arder from
ihe Ninth Circuit, enjoined the BLM from approving any new CBNG development on federal lands in the Montana Powder River Basin. The
Ninth Circuit also enjoined Fidelity from drilling any additional federally permitted wells associated with its Montana Coal Creek Project and
from constructing infrastructure to produce and transport CBNG from the Coal Creek Project’s existing federal wells. The matter was
briefed and argued to the Ninth Circuit in September 2005. On September 11, 2007, the Ninth Circuit affirmed the Montana Federal District
Court and ruled it had correctly issued an injunction allowing up to 500 CBNG wells to be drilled each year on private, state and federal land
in the Montana Powder River Basin. On October 29, 2007, in response to a motion filed by Fidelity, the Ninth Circuit lifted the 2005
injunction it had earlier issued pending the appeal. On the same date, the Ninth Circuit ordered Fidelity to respond within 21 days to the
Northern Cheyenne Tribe and the NPRC's Octaber 16, 2007, petition to the Ninth Circuit to rehear the case. On lanuary 15, 2008, the Ninth
Circuit denied the petition for rehearing.

In December 2006, the BLM issued a draft SEIS that endorses a phased-development approach to CENG production in the Montana
Powder River Basin, whereby future projects would be reviewed against four screens or filters (refating to water quality, wildlife, Native
American concerns and air quality). Fidefity filed written comments on the draft SEIS asking the BLM to reconsider its proposed phased-
development approach and to make numerous other changes to the draft SEIS. The public comment period on the draft SEIS concluded on
May 2, 2007, In response to comments, the BLM published an Air Quality Supplement to the draft SEIS with the public comment period
ending March 13, 2008. The final SEIS is scheduled for release in Juiy 2008 with a Record of Decision expected in December 2008. Fidelity
cannot predict what the final terms of the SEIS will be.
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In related actions in the Montana Federal District Court, the NPRC and the Northern Cheyenne Tribe asserted, among other things, that the
actions of the BLM in approving Fidelity's applications for permits and the plan of development for the Badger Hills Project in Montana did
not comply with applicable federal laws, including the NHPA and the NEPA. In June 2005, the Montana Federal District Court issued orders
in these cases enjoining operations on Fidelity's Badger Hills Project pending the BLM's consultation with the Northern Cheyenne Tribe as
to satisfaction of the applicable requirements of the NHPA and a further environmental analysis under the NEPA. Fidelity sought and
obtained stays of the injunctive relief from the Montana Federal District Court and production from Fidelity's Badger Hills Project continues.
in September 2005, the Mantana Federal District Court entered an Order based on a stipulation between the parties to the NPRC action
that production from existing wells in Fidelity’s Badger Hills Project may continue pending preparation of a revised environmental analysis.
In November 2005, the Montana Federal District Court entered an Order dismissing the Northern Cheyenne Tribe lawsuit based on the
parties’ stipulation that production from existing wells in Fidelity's Badger Hills Project could continue pending consultation with the
Northern Cheyenne Tribe under the NHPA, In Decernber 2005, Fidelity filed a Notice of Appeal of the NPRC lawsuit to the Ninth Circuit in
connection with the Montana Federal District Court’s decision insofar as it found the BLM's approval of Fidelity's applications did not
comply with applicable law.

In May 2005, the NPRC and other petitioners filed a petition with the BER to promulgate rules related to the management of water produced
in association with CBNG operations. Thereafter, the BER initiated related rulemaking proceedings to consider rules that would, if
premulgated, require re-injection of water produced in connection with CENG operations, treatment of such water in the event re-injection
is not feasible and amend the non-degradation policy in connection with CBNG development to include additional limitations on factors
deemed harmful, thereby restricting discharges even further than under the previous standards. In March 2006, the BER issued its decision
on the rulemaking petition. The BER rejected the proposed requirement of re-injection of water produced in connection with CBNG and
deferred action on the proposed treatment requirement, The BER adoptec the proposed amendment to the non-degradation policy. While it
is possible the BER's ruling could have an adverse impact on Fidelity’s operations, Fidelity believes that two five-year water discharge
permits issued by the Montana DEQ in February 2006 should, assuming normal operating conditions, allow Fidelity to continue its existing
CBNG operations at least through the expiration of the permits in March 2011. However, these permits are now under challenge in Monzana
state court by the Northern Cheyenne Tribe. Specifically, in April 2006, the Northern Cheyenne Tribe filed a complaint in the District Court
of Big Horn County against the Montana DEQ seeking to set aside the two permits. The Northern Cheyenne Tribe asserted the Montana
DEQ issued the permits in violation of various federal and state environmental laws. In particular, the Northern Cheyenne Tribe claimed the
agency violated the Clean Water Act and the Montana Water Guality Act by failing to include in the permits conditions requiring application
of the best practicable control technology currently available and by failing to impose a non-degradation policy like the one the BER adopted
socn after the permit was issued. In addition, the Northern Cheyenne Tribe claimed that the actions of the Montana DEQ violated the
Montana State Constitution’s guarantee of a ¢lean and healthful environment, that the Montana DEQ's related environmental assessment
was invalid, that the Montana DEQ was required, but failed, to prepare an EIS and that the Montana DEC failed to consider other
alternatives to the issuance of the permits. Fidelity, the NPRC and the TRWUA have been granted leave to intervene in this proceeding, The
parties have submitted cross motions for summary judgment. The mations were argued to the District Court of Big Horn County on
February 28, 2007. Fidelity's discharge of water pursuant to its two permits is its primary means for managing CBNG produced water. If its
permits are set aside, Fidelity’s CBNG operations in Montana could be significantly and adversely affected.

In a related proceeding, in July 20046, Fidelity filed & motion to intervene in a lawsuit filed in the District Court of Big Horn County by other
producers. The lawsuit challenges the BER's 2006 rulernaking, which amended the non-degradation policy, 2s well as the BER's 2003
rulemaking procedure which first set numeric limits for certain parameters contained in water produced in connection with CBNG
operations. Fidelity's motion for intervention was granted in August 2006. The parties have briefed cross motions for summary judgment
and the District Court of Big Horn Couniy heard oral argument on those mations on July 2, 2007. On October 17, 2007, the District Court
of Big Horn County entered an order granting the motions filed by the BER and others and denying the motions filed by Fidelity and other
producers. The other producers appealed the order an December 26, 2007. Fidelity is not participating in the appeal.

Similarly, industry members have filed two lawsuits, and the state of Wyoming has filed one lawsuit, in Wyoming Federal District Court.
These lawsuits challenge the EPA's failure to timely disapprove the 2006 rules. All three Wyoming lawsuits were consolidated in September
2006. Fidelity has moved to intervene in these consolidated cases.

Fidelity has afso intervened in a Wyoming State District Court case in support of the Governor of Wyoming's decision not to promulgate
rules which were proposed by the Powder River Basin Resource Counci! that would have granted Wyoming's DEQ authority to regulate water
quantity issues that are currently regulated by the Wyoming State Engineer. In Novamber 2007, the Wyoming State District Court dismissed
the suit. The Powder River Basin Resource Council did not appeal.
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Fidelity is partly funding the Petroleum Association of Wyoming's intervention in two suits. In the first case, in which the Petroleum
Association of Wyoming's motion to intervene has been conditionally granted, the Powder River Basin Resource Council is funding litigation
on behalf of two surface owners against the Wyoming State Engineer and the Wyoming Board of Cantrol. The plaintiffs in the action, filed in
Wyoming State District Court on June 14, 2007, seek a declaratory judgment that current ground water permitiing practices are unlawful;
that would mandate that the state adopt rules and procedures to ensure that coalbed groundwater is managed in accardance with the
Wyoming Constitution and other laws; and that would prohibit the Wyoming State Engineer from issuing permits to produce coalbed
groundwater and permits to store coalbed groundwater in reservcirs until the Wyoming State Engineer adopts such rules. In the second
case, the Wyoming Qutdoor Council and Powder River Basin Rescurce Council filed a petition an May 25, 2007, in the Wyoming State
District Court seeking to invalidate the Environmental Quality Council’s approval of amendments to Chapter 1 of the Wyoming Water Quality
Rules and Regulations that subject certain discharges of water produced in connection with CBNG development to stricter water quality
standards. The plaintiffs contend that the Wyoming DEQY's actions were arbitrary and capricious and that the rules are not in accordance
with the Clean Water Act.

Fidelity will continue to vigorously defend its interests in all CBNG-related lawsuits and related actions in which it is involved, including the
proceedings challenging its water permits. In those cases where dlamage claims have been asserted, Fidelity is unable to quantify the
damages sought and will be unable to do so until after the completion of giscavery. If the plaintiffs are successful in these lawsuits, the
ultimate outcome of the actions could have a material adverse efiect on Fidelity’s existing CBNG operations and/or the future development
of this resource in the affected regions.

Electric Operations Montana-Dakota joined with two electric generators in appealing a September 2003 finding by the ND Health
Department that it may unilaterally revise operating permits previously issued to electric generating plants. Although it is doubtful that any
revision of Montana-Dakota's operating permits by the ND Health Department would reduce the amount of electricity its plants could
generate, the finding, if allowed to stand, could increase costs for sulfur dioxide removal and/or limit Montana-Dakota's ability to modify or
expand operations at its North Dakota generation sites. Montana-Dakota and the cther electric generators filed their appeal of the order in
October 2003 in the Burleigh County District Court in Bismarck, North Dakota. Proceedings were stayed pending conclusion of the periodic
review of sulfur dioxide emissions in the state.

In September 2005, the ND Health Department issued its final periodic review decision based on its August 2005 final air quality modeling
report. The ND Health Department concluded there were no violations of the sulfur dioxide increment in North Dakota. In March 2006, the
DRC filed a complaint in Colorado Federal District Court seeking o force the EPA to declare that the increment had been violated based on
earlier modeling conducted by the EPA. The EPA defended against the DRC claim and filed a motion to dismiss the case. The Colorado
Federal District Court has dismissed the case.

On June 6, 2007, the EPA noticed for public comment a proposed rule that would, among other things, adopt PSD increment modeling
refinements that, if adopted, would operate to formally ratify the meodeling techniques and conclusions contained in the Septernber 2005
ND Health Depariment decision and the August 2005 final report. The public comment periad on the proposed rule closed September 28,
2007. The dismissal of the case in Burleigh County District Court referenced above is dependant upon the outcome of the proposed rule.

In November 2006, the Sierra Club sent a notice of intent to file a citizen suit in federal court under the Clean Air Act to the co-owners,
including Montana-Cakota, of the Big Stone Station. The suit would seek injunctive relief and monetary penalties based on the Sierra Club’s
claim that three projects conducted at the Big Stone Station between 1995 and 2005 were modifications of a major source and that the
Big Stone Station failed to cbtain a PSD permit, conduct best available control technology analyses, and comply with other regulatory
requirements for those projects. The South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources reviewed and approved the three
projects and the co-owners of the Big Stone Station believe the Sierra Club’s clalms are without merit. The Big Stone Station co-owners
intend to vigerously defend their interests if the suit is filed.

Natural Gas Storage Based on reservair and well pressure data and other information, Williston Basin believes that reservoir pressure

{and therefore the amount of gas) in the EBSR, one of its natural gas storage reservoirs, has decreased as a result of Howell and Anadarko's
drilling and production activities in areas within and near the boundaries of the EBSR. As of December 31, 2007, Williston Basin estimated
that between 2.5 and 10 Bef of storage gas had been diverted from the EBSR as a result of Howell and Anadarko’s drilling and production.

Williston Basin filed suit in Montana Federal District Court in January 2006, seeking to recover unspecified damages from Howell and
Anadarko, and to enjoin Howell and Anadarko’s present and futura production from specified wells in and near the EBSR. The Montana
Federal District Court entered an Order in July 2006, dismissing the case for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. Williston Basin filed a Notice
of Appeal to the Ninth Circuit in July 2006. The parties have briefed the issues. Oral argument was held on February 5, 2008.

In related litigation, Howell filed suit in Wyoming State District Court against Williston Basin in February 2006 asserting that it is entitled to
produce any gas that might escape from the EBSR. In August 2004, Williston Basin moved for a preliminary injunction to halt Howell and
Anadarko's production in and near the EBSR. A district court-appointed special master conducted a hearing on the motion in December
2006, and recommended denial of the motion on February 15, 2007. The Wyoming State District Court adopted the special master’s report
on July 25, 2007, and denied Williston Basin’s motion for a preliminary injunction. On June 25, 2007, the Wyoming State District Court filed
a motion with the Wyoming Supreme Court requesting it to answer questions of law concerning the production of Williston Basin’s storage
gas by Howell and Anadarko. On July 10, 2007, the Wyoming Supreme Court issued an Order declining to answer those questiens. The
Wyoming State District Court has set the case for trial beginning September 29, 2008. On December 12, 2007, motions were argued to the
special master concerning the application of certain legal principles to the production of Williston Basin's storage gas by Howell and
Anadarko. The parties await a decision.
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As noted above, Williston Basin estimates that as of December 31, 20G7, Howell and Anadarko had diverted between 9.5 and 10 Bcf

from the EBSR. Willisten Basin believes Howell and Anadarka continue to divert gas from the EBSR and Williston Basin continues to
manitor and analyze the situation. At trial, Williston Basin will seek recovery based on the amount of gas that has been and continues tc be
diverted as well as on the amount of gas that must be recovered as a result of the equalization of the pressures of various interconnected
geological formations.

In expert reports filed with the Wyoming State District Court in January 2008, Williston Basin's experts are of the opinion that all of

the gas produced by Howell and Anadarke is Williston Basin’s gas and will have to be replaced. Williston Basin’s experts estimate that

the replacement cost of the gas produced by Howell and Anadarko through October 2007 is approximately $106 million if injection is
completed by the end of the 2010 injection season. Williston Basin's experts also estimate that Williston Basin will expend $8.7 million

to mitigate the damages that Williston Basin suffered during the period of Howell and Anadarko’s production if the replacement gas is
injected by the end of the 2010 injection season. Williston Basin believes that its experts’ opinions are based on sound law, economics,
reservair engineering, geology and geochemistry. The expert reperts filed by Howell and Anadarko claim that sterage gas owned by
Willisten Basin has migrated outside the EBSR into areas in which Howell and Anadarko have oil and gas rights. They theorize that
Willisten Basin is accountable to Howell and Anadarko for the migration of such gas. Although Howell and Anadarko have not specified the
amount of damages they seek to recover, Williston Basin believes Howefl and Anadarko’s proposed methodology for valuing their alleged
injury, if any, is flawed, inconsistent and lacking in factual and legal support. Willistcn Basin continues o evaluate the Howel! and Anadarko
reports. The parties have until May 14, 2008, to file rebuttal reports with the Wyoming State District Court.

Williston Basin intends to vigorously defend its rights and interests in these proceedings, to assess further avenues for recovery through the
regulatory process at the FERC, and to pursue the recovery of any and all economic losses it may have suffered. Williston Basin cannct
predict the ultimate cutcome of these proceedings.

In light of the actions of Howell and Anadarke, Williston Basin installed temporary compression at the site in 2004 in order to maintain
deliverability into the transmission system. Williston Basin has leased working gas for the 2007 - 2008 heating season to supplement its
cushion gas. While installation of the additional compression has provided temporary relief and the addition of leased working gas is
expected to provide additional temporary relief, Williston Basin believes that the adverse physical and operational effects occasioned by
the continued loss of storage gas, if left unchecked, could threaten the operation and viability of the EBSR, impair Williston Basin's ability
to comply with the EBSR certificated operating requirements mandated by the FERC and adversely affect Williston Basin’s ability to meet
its contractual storage and transportation service commitments to customers.

The Cempany also is involved in other legal actions in the ordinary course of its business. Although the cutcames of any such legal actions
cannot be predicted, management believes that the outcomes with respect to these other legal proceedings will not have a material adverse
effect upon the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Environmental matters

Portland Harbor Site In December 2000, MBI was named by the EPA as a Potentially Responsibie Party in connection with the cleanup of
a riverbed site adjacent to a commercial property site, acquired by MBI in 1999. The rivarbed site is part of the Portland, Oregon, Harbor
Superfund Site. Sixty-eight other parties were also named in this administrative action. The EPA wants responsible parties to share in the
cleanup of sediment contamination in the Willamette River. To date, costs of the overall remedial investigation of the harbor site for both the
EPA and the Oregon DEQ are being recorded, and initially paid, through an administrative consent order by the EWG, a group of 10 entities,
which does not include MBI or Georgia-Pacific West, Inc., the seller of the commercial property to MBi. Although the LWG originally
estimated the averall remedial investigation and feasibility study would cost approximately $10 million, it is now anticipated, on the basis of
costs incurred to date and delays attributable to an additional round of sampling and potential further investigative work, that such cost
ceuld increase to a total in excess of $60 million. It is not possible to estimate the cost of a corrective action plan until the remedial
investigation and feasibility study has been completed, the EPA has decided on a strategy and a record of decision has been pubiished.
While the remedial investigation and feasibility study for the harbor site has commenced, it is expected to take several more years to
complete. The development of a preposed plan and record of decision on the harbor site is not anticipated to occur until 2010, after which
a cleanup plan will be undertaken. MBI also received notice in fanuary 2008 that the Portland Harber Natural Resource Trustee Council
intends to perferm an injury assessment to natural resources resulting from the release of hazardous substances at the Harbor Superfund
Site. The Trustee Council indicates the injury determination is appropriate to facilitate early settlement of damages and restoration for
natural resource injuries,

Based upon a review of the Portland Harbor sediment contamination evaluation by the Oregon DEQ and other information available, MBI
does not believe it is 2 Responsible Party. In addition, MBI has notified Georgia-Pacific West, Inc., that it intends to seek indemnity for any
and all liabilities incurred in relation to the above matters, pursuant to the terms of their sale agreement. MBI has entered into an agreement
tolling the statute of limitation in connection with the LWG's potential ¢laim for contribution to the costs of the remedial investigation and
feasibility study.

The Company believes it is not probable that it will incur any material environmental remediation costs or damages in relation to the above
referenced administrative action.




MDU RESOURCES GROUP, INC. FORM 10-K 107

Manufactured Gas Plant Sites There are two claims against Cascade for cleanup of environmental contamination at manufactured gas
plant sites operated by Cascade’s predecessors.

The first ctaim is for s0il and groundwater contamination at a site in Oregon and was received in 1995. There are potentially responsible
parties in addition to Cascade that are potentially liable for cleanup of the contamination. Scme of these other parties have shared in the
investigation costs. It is expected that these and other potentially responsible parties will share in the cleanup costs, Several alternatives for
cleanup have been identified, with preliminary cost estimates ranging from approximately $500,000 to $11.0 millicn. It is not known at this
time what share of the cleanup costs will actually be borne by Cascade. in November 2007, the Oregon Department of Environmental
Quality provided notice that additional ecological risk assessment of the site was necessary. Completion of the assessment is anticipated
by the end of 2008.

The second claim is for contamination at a site in Washington and was received in 1997. Although a preliminary investigation has concluded
the site is contaminated, it appears that other property owners may have contributed to the contamination. There is currently not enough
information available to estimate the potential liability associated with this claim and no formal investigation plan has been communicated
to Cascade.

The Company believes that both these claims are covered by insurance. To the extent not covered by insurance, Cascade will seek recovery
of contamination remediation costs through its rates.

Operating leases

The Company leases certain equipment, facilities and land under operating lease agreements. The amounts of annual minimum lease
payments due under these leases as of December 31, 2007, were $20.3 million in 2008, $16.0 million in 200%, $13.7 million in 2010, $10.3
million in 2011, $8.4 million in 2012 and $48.8 million thereafter. Rent expense was $35.6 million, $23.1 million and $33.3 million for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Purchase commitments

The Company has entered into various commitments, largely natural gas and coal supply, purchased power, natural gas transportation and
construction materials supply contracts. These commitments range from one to 53 years. The commitments under these contracts as of
December 31, 2007, were $479.2 million in 2008, $340.0 million in 2009, $233.4 million in 2010, $163.7 miltion in 2011, $105.6 million in
2012 and $323.1 million thereafter. Amounts purchased under various commitments for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005, were approximately $857.0 million (including the acquisition of Cascade as discussed in Note 2), $265.8 million and $318.1 million,
respectively. These commitments are not reflected in the Company’s consalidated financial statements.

Guarantees

In connection with the sale of MPX in June 2005 to Petrobras, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company has agreed to indemnify
Petrobras for 4% percent of any losses which Petrobras may incur from certain contingent liabilities specified in the purchase agreement.
Centennial has agreed to unconditionally guarantee payment of the indemnity obligations to Petrobras for periods ranging up to five and

a half years from the date of sale. The guarantee was required by Petrobras as a condition to closing the sale of MPX.

Centennial continues to guarantee CEM’s obligations under a construction contract for a 550-MW combined-cycle electric generating
facility near Hobbs, New Mexico. As described in Note 3, Centannial Resources sold CEM in July 2007 to Bicent Power LLC, which has
provided a $10 million bank letter of credit to Centennial in support of that guarantee obligation. The guarantee, which has no fixed
maximum, expires when CEM has completed its obligations under the construction contract. Construction is expected to be completed in
2008, and the warranty period associated with this project will expire one year after the date of substantial completion of the construction.

In addition, WBI Holdings has guaranteed certain of Fidelity's natural gas and oil price swap and collar agreement obligatiens. There is no
fixed maximum amount guaranteed in relation to the natural gas and oil price swap and collar agreements, as the amount of the obligation
is dependent upon natural gas and oil commodity prices. The emount of hedging activity entered into by the subsidiary is limited by
corperate policy. The guarantees of the natural gas and oil price swap and collar agreements at December 31, 2007, expire in 2008;
however, Fidelity continues to enter into additional hedging activities and, as a result, WBI Heldings from time to time may issue additional
guarantees on these hedging obligations. The amount outstanding by Fidelity was $1.4 million and was reflected on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007. In the event Fidelity defaults under its obligations, WBI Holdings would be required to make payments
under its guarantees.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company have outstanding guarantees to third parties that guarantee the performance of other subsidiaries

of the Company. These guarantees are related to construction contracts, natural gas transportation and sales agreements, gathering
contracts, a conditional purchase agreement and certain other guarantees. At December 31, 2007, the fixed maximum amounts guaranteed
under these agreements aggregated $472.9 millian. The amounts of scheduled expiration of the maximum ameounts guaranteed under these
agreements aggregate $86.3 million in 2008; $355.8 million in 200%; $400,000 in 2010; $23.0 millien in 2011; $1.2 million in 2012;

$1.2 million in 2017; $1.0 million which is subject to expiration 30 days after the receipt of written notice; and $4.0 million, which has no
scheduled maturity date. The amount outstanding by subsidiaries of the Company under the above guarantees was $1.9 million and was
reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007. In the event of default under these guarantee obligations, the
subsidiary issuing the guarantee for that particular obligation would be required to make payments under its guarantee.
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Certain subsidiaries have outstanding letters of credit to third parties related to insurance policies, naturat gas transportation agreements
and other agreements that guarantee the performance of other subsidiaries of the Company. At December 31, 2007, the fixed maximum
amounts guaranteed under these letters of credit, which expire in 2008, aggregated $58.4 million. There were no amounts outstanding
under the above letters of credit at December 31, 2007.

Fidelity and WBI Holdings have outstanding guarantees to Williston Basin. These guarantees are refated to natural gas transportation and
storage agreements that guarantee the performance of Prairielands. At December 31, 2007, the fixed maximum amounts guaranteed under
these agreements aggregated $22.9 million. Scheduled expiration of the maximum amounts guaranteed under these agreements aggregate
$2.9 million in 2008 and $20.0 million in 2009. In the event of Prairielands’ default in its payment obligations, the subsidiary issuing the
guarantee for that particular obligation would be required to make payments under its guarantee. The amount outstanding by Prairielands
under the above guarantees was $1.9 millicn, which was not reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007, because
these intercompany transactions are eliminated in congolidation.

In addition, Centennial and Knife River have issued guarantees to third parties related to the Company’s routine purchase of maintenance
itemns, materials and lease obligations for which no fixed maximum amaounts have been specified. These guarantees have no scheduled
maturity date. In the event a subsidiary of the Company defaults under its obligation in relation to the purchase of certain maintenance
itemns or lease obligations, Centennial or Knife River would be required to make payments under these guarantees. Any amounts outstanding
by subsidiaries of the Company for these maintenance items and materials were reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December
31, 2007.

In the normal course of business, Centennial has purchased surety bends related to construction contracts and reclamation obligations of
its subsidiaries. In the event a subsidiary of Centennia!l does not fulfill a bonded obligation, Centennial wouid be responsible to the surety
bond company for completion of the bonded contract or obligation. A large portion of the surety bonds is expected to expire within the next
12 months; however, Centennial will fikely continue {0 enter into surety bonds for its subsidiaries in the future. As of December 31, 2007,
approximately $455 million of surety bonds were outstanding, which were not reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

NOTE 21 — SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 31, 2008, Fidelity completed the acquisition of natural gas properties located in Rusk County in eastern Texas, with a January 1, 2008,
effective date. The acquisition includes the purchase of 97 Befe of proven reserves. The purchase price for these properties was
approximately $235 million, subject to accounting and purchase price adjustments customary with acguisitions of this type.
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Quarterly Data (Unaudited)
The following unaudited information shows selected items by quarter for the years 2007 and 2006:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(in thousands, sxcept per share amounts)

2007
Operating revenues $787,491 $982,365 $1,245,310 $1,232,730
QOperating expenses 708,522 839,580 1,066,154 1,076,520
Operating income 78,969 142,785 179,156 156,210
Income from continuing operations 41,407 82,036 104,497 94,846
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax 5,255 7,439 96,765 {125)
Net income 46,662 89,475 201,262 94,721
Earnings per common share — basic:

Earnings before discontinued operations .23 A5 57 .52

Discontinued operations, net of tax .03 .04 .53 -

Earnings per common share — basic .26 49 1.10 .52
Earnings per comman share — diluted:

Earnings before discontinued operations .23 45 57 .52

Discentinued operations, net of tax .02 04 53 -

Earnings per common share — diluted .25 49 1.10 52
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 181,341 181,847 182,192 182,391

Diluted 182,337 182,746 183,171 183,342
2006
Operating revenues $ 803,519 $ 961,435 $ 1,173,678 $ 1065907
Operating expenses 712,451 839,205 992,249 937,559
Cperating income 91,068 122,230 181,429 128,348
Income from continuing eperations 52,445 68,451 192,110 79,772
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 801 2,991 1,377 2,810
Net income 53,246 71,442 108,487 82,582
Earnings per common share — basic:

Earnings before discontinued operations .29 .38 59 A4

Discontinued operations, net of tax Ryl .02 .04 .02

Earnings per common share — basic .30 40 .60 46
Earnings per common share — diluted:

Earnings before discontinued operations .29 38 .59 44

Discontinued operations, net of tax - .01 .01 .0

Earnings per common share — diluted .29 .39 .60 45
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 179,823 179911 180,291 180,900

Diluted 180,915 181,107 181,307 182,094

Certain Company operations are highly seasonal and revenues from and certain expenses for such operations may fluctuate significantly
amaong quarterly periods. Accordingly, guarterly financial information may not be indicative of results for a full year,

Natural Gas and Oil Activities (Unaudited)

Fidelity is involved in the acquisition, exploration, development and production of natural gas and oil rescurces. Fidelity's activities include
the acquisition of producing properties with potentiat development opporiunities, exploratery drilling and the operation and development of
production properties. Fidelity shares revenues and expenses from the development of specified properties located in the Rocky Mountain
and Mid-Continent regions of the United States and in and around the Gulf of Mexico in proportion to its ownership interests.

Fidelity owns in fee or holds natural gas leases for the properties it operates in Colorado, Montana, North Dakota, Texas, Utah and
Wyoming. These rights are in the Bonny Field located in eastern Colorado, the Baker Field in southeastern Montana and southwestern
North Dakota, the Bowdoin area located in north-central Montana, the Powder River Basin of Montana and Wyoming, the Bakken formation
in North Dakota, the Paradox Basin of Utah, the Tabasco and Texan Gardens fields in Texas, and the Big Horn Basin in Wyoming.

The information that follows includes Fidelity’s proportionate share of all its natural gas and oil interests.
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The following table sets forth capitalized costs and accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization related to natural gas and oil
producing activities at December 3t:

2007 2006 2005

{in thousands)
Subject to amortization $1,750,233 $1,442,533 $1,198,669
Not subject to amortization 142,524 163,975 82,7291
Total capitalized costs 1,892,757 1,606,508 1,280,960
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization 681,101 558,980 456,554
Net capitalized costs $ 1,211,656 $1,047,528 $ 824,406

Capital expenditures, including those not subject to amortization, related to natural gas and oil producing activities were as follows:

Years ended December 31, 2007 2006* 2005~
(i thousands)
Acquisiticns:
Proved properiies $ 426 $ 75,520 $149,253
Unproved properties 17,731 27,383 16,920
Exploration 48,744 24,970 24,385
Development* * 214,433 196,423 125,633
Total capital expenditures $281,334 $324,296 $ 316,191

* Excludes net additions to property, plant and equipment related to the recognition of future liabilities associated with the plugging
and abandonment of natural gas and oil wells in accerdance with SFAS No. 143, as discussed in Note 11, of $5.4 million, $8.7 million
and 2.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectiveily.

* * includes expenditires for proved undeveloped reserves of $74.6 million, $44.7 million and $37.0 million for the years ented
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The following summary reflects incorne resulting from the Company’s operations of natural gas and oil producing activities,
excluding corporate overhead and financing costs:

Years ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
{in thousands)
Revenues:
Sales to affiliates $226,706 $232,799 $275,828
Sales to external customers 287,557 244,499 159,3%0
Produetion costs 123,924 106,387 88,068
Depreciation, depletion and amortization® 124,599 104,741 84,099
Pretax income 265,740 266,170 263,051
Income tax expense 98,729 100,584 99,071
Results of operations for producing activities $ 167,011 $165,586 $163,980

* Includes accretion of discount for asset retirement obiigations of $2.5 million, $2.3 mittion and $ 1,5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, in accordance with SFAS No. 143, as discussed in Note 11,
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The following table summarizes the Company’s estimated quantities of proved natural gas and oil reserves at December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, and reconciles the changes between these dates. Estimates of economically recoverable natural gas and oil reserves and future

recoverable reserves and future net revenues may vary from actual results.

net revenues therefrom are based upon a number of variable factors and assumptions. For these reasons, estimates of economically
2007 2006 2005
Natural Natural Natural
Gas Qil Gas ail Gas Qil
{MMef,/MBbIs)
Proved developed and undeveloped reserves:

Balance at beginning of year 538,100 27,100 489,100 21,200 453,200 17,100
| Production (62,798) (2,365) (62,100} (2,100) {59,400) (1,700)
. Extensions and discoveries 77,701 3,772 123,600 2,800 74,400 500
i Improved recovery 444 1,614 - - - 2,600

Purchases of proved reserves 2 6 21,700 4,800 57,400 3,700
| Sales of reserves in place {8) (42) - - {1,300) {100)
| Revisions of previous estimates (29,706) 527 {34,200) 400 {356,200) {300)
; Balance at end of year 523,737 30,612 538,100 27,500 489,100 2i,200
|
i Proved developed reserves:

January 1, 2005 376,400 16,400

December 31, 2005 416,700 20,400
| December 31, 2006 412,900 22,400
: December 31, 2007 420,137 25,658
!

The Company’s interests in natural gas and oil reserves are located in the United States and in and around the Gulf of Mexico.

The standardized measure of the Company’s estimated discounted future net cash flows of total proved reserves associated with its various
natural gas and oil interests at December 31 was as follows:

2007 2006 2005
{in thousands)

Future cash inflows $5,302,300 $3,831,000 $4,778,700

Future production costs 1,415,700 1,084,000 1,095,400

| Future development costs 237,600 240,600 106,400
| Future net cash flows before income taxes 3,649,000 2,506,400 3,576,900
Future income tax expense 1,179,900 759,300 1,205,700

Future net cash flows 2,469,100 1,747,100 2,371,200

10% annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows 1,107,200 743,600 950,400

Discounted future net cash flows relating to proved natural gas and oil reserves $ 1,361,900 $1,003,500 $1,420,800

The following are the sources of change in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows by year:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands}

Beginning of year $1,003,500 $1,420,800 $ 821,500
Net revenues from production {354,100) (348,400) {402,900
Change in net realization 527,900 (860,700) 777,700
Extensions and discoveries, net of future production-related costs 310,300 293,300 294,800
Improved recovery, net of future production-related costs 38,100 - 81,600
Purchases of proved reserves, net of future production-related costs 200 99,800 258,300
Sales of reserves in place {1,300} - (12,500
Changes in estimated future development costs (22,600) (25,600) {13,400:
Development costs incurred during the current year 103,000 60,900 40,900
Accretion of discount 133,700 193,800 106,900
Net change in income taxes (212,500) 295,700 {339,700)
Revisions of previous estimates (163,700) {123,200} {200,500}
Other {600) {2,900} {1,900)
Net change 358,400 {417,300} 599,300

End of year $ 1,361,900 $1,003,500 $1,420,800
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The estimated discounted future cash inflows from estimated future production of proved reserves were computed using year-end natural
gas and oil prices. Future development and production costs attributable to proved reserves were computed by applying year-end costs
ta be incurred in producing and further developing the proved reserves. Future development costs estimated to be spent in each of the
next three years to develop proved undeveloped reserves as of December 31, 2007, are $94.5 million in 2008, $48.0 million in 2009 and
$19.2 million in 2010. Future incorme tax expenses were computed by applying statutory tax rates, adjusted for permanent differences
and tax credits, to estimated net future pretax cash flows.

The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows does not purport to represent the fair market value of natural gas and oil
properties. There are significant uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves and in projecting rates of production
and the timing and amount of future costs. In addition, future realization of natural gas and oil prices over the remaining reserve lives
may vary significantly from current prices.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

[tem 9A. Controls and Procedures

The following information includes the evaluation of disclasure controls and procedures by the Cormpany’s chief executive officer and the
chief financial officer, along with any significant changes in internal controls of the Company.

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The term “disclosure controls and procedures” is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act. These rules refer to the
controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the
reports that it files under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within required time periods. The Company’s
chief executive officer and chief financial officer have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure centrols and procedures
and they have congluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, such controls and procedures were effective.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company maintains a system of internal accounting controls that is designed to provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s
transactions are properly authorized, the Company's assets are safegrarded against unauthorized or improper use, and the Company’s
transactions are properly recorded and reported to permit preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. There were no changes in the Company's internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2007, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

MANAGEMENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
The information required by this item is included in this Form 10-K at Item 8 - Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting.

ATTESTATION REPORT OF THE REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The information required by this item is included in this Form 10-K at Item 8 - Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

None.
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The infermation required by this item is included under the capticns “item 1. Election of Directars — Director Naminees for One Year Term,”
“Continuing Incumbent Girectors,” “Information Concerning Executive Officers,” the first paragraph, the second sentence of the second
paragraph and third paragraph under “Corporate Governance — Audit Committee,” “Corporate Governance — Code of Conduct,” the tast
paragraph under “Corporate Governance — Board Meetings and Committees” and “Section 16{a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” in the Proxy Statement, which information is incorporatec herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is included under the caption “Executive Compensation” in the Proxy Statement, which information
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
and Related Stockholder Matters

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
The following table includes information as of December 31, 2007, with respect to the Company's equity compensation plans;

(e

{a) Number of securities
Number of (b} remaining available for
securities to be issued Weighted average future issuance under
upon exercise of exercise price of equity compensation plans
outstanding options, outstanding options, |excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders (! 1,568,549 & $16.88 7.816,197 4
Equity compensation plans not approved by stockhotders 613,319 12.99 2,323,915
Total 2,181,868 $15.76 10,140,112

(1) Consists of the 1992 Key Employee Stock Option Pian, the 1997 Non-Employee Lirector Long-Term Incentive Plan, the Long-Term Performance-Based Incentive Plan {formerly known
a3 the 1997 Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan) and the Non-Employee Director Stock Compensation Plan.

(2) Includes 685,960 performance shares.

{3) In addition to being available for future issuance upan exercise of options, 357, 757 shares under the 1997 Non-Employee Director Long-Term Incentive Plan may instead be issued in
connection with stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, performance units, performance shares or other equity-based awards, and 6,320,232 shares under the Long-Term
Performance-Based Incentive Plan may instead be issued in connection with stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, performance units, performance shares or other equity-based
awards.

(4) This amount aiso includes 459,952 shares available for issuance under the Non-Employee Director Stock Compensation Pian. Under this plan, in addition to a cash retainer,
nanemployes Directors are awarded 4,050 (adjusted for the three-for-two stock split in July 2004) shares foflowing the Company's annual maeting of stockholders. Additionally, a
nonemployes Director may acquire additional sharas under the pfan in iieu of racaiving the cash portion of the Director’s retainer or fees.

(5) Consists of the 1998 Option Award Program and the Group Genius innovation Plen.

{6} In addition to being available for future issuance upon exercise of options, 220,030 shares under the Group Genius Innovation Plan may instead be issued in connection with stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance units, performance stock or Other equity-based awargs.

The following equity compensation plans have not been approved by the Company’s stockholders.

The 1998 Option Award Program

The 1998 Option Award Program is a broad-based plan adopted by the Board of Directors, effective February 12, 1998. The plan
permits the grant of nonqualified stock options to employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. The maximum number of shares
that may be issued under the plan is 3,795,330. Shares granted may be authorized but unissued shares, treasury shares, or shares
purchased on the open market. Option exercise prices are equal to the market vatue of the Company's shares on the date of the option
grant. Optionees receive dividend equivalents on their options, with any credited dividends paid in cash to the optionee if the option
vests, or forfeited if the option is forfeited. Vested options remain exercisable for one year following termination of employment due

to death or disability and for three months folfowing termination of employment for any other reason.
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Unvested options are forfeited upon termination of employment. Subject to the terms and conditions of the plan, the plan’s administrative
committee determines the number of shares subject to options granted to each participant and the other terms and conditions pertaining
to such options, including vesting provisions. All options become immediately exercisable in the event of a change in control of the Company.

In 1998, 337 options {adjusted for the three-for-two stock splits in July 1998, October 2003 and July 2006) were granted to each of
approximately 2,200 employees. No officers received grants. These options vested on March 2, 2001. In 2001, 450 options (adjusted for
the three-for-two stock splits in October 2003 and July 2008) were granted to each of approxirately 5,900 employees. No officers received
grants. These options vested on February 13, 2004. As of December 31, 2007, options covering 613,319 shares of common stock were
cutstanding under the plan and 2,103,865 shares remained available for future grant. Options covering 1,078,146 shares had been exercised.,

The Group Genius Innovation Plan

The Group Genius Innovation Plan was adopted by the Board of Directors, effective May 17, 2001, to encourage employees to share ideas
for new business directions for the Company and to reward them when the idea becomes profitable. Employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries who are selected by the plan's administrative committee are eligible to participate in the plan. Officers and Directors are not
eligible to participate. The plan permits the granting of nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted
stock units, performance units, performance stock and other awards, The maximum number of shares that may be issued under the plan is
223,150, Shares granted under the plan may be authorized but unissued shares, treasury shares or shares purchased on the open market.
Restricted stockholders have voting rights and, unless determined otherwise by the plan's administrative committee, receive dividends paid
on the restricted stock. Dividend equivalents payable in cash may be granted with respect to options and performance shares. The plan's
administrative committee determines the number of shares or units subject to awards, and the other terms and conditions of the awards,
including vesting provisions and the effect of employment termination. Upon a ¢hange in control of the Company, all options and stock
appreciation rights become immediately vested and exercisable, all restricted stock becomes immediately vested, all restricted stock units
become immediately vested and are paid out in cash, and target payout opportunities under all performance units, performance stock, and
other awards are deemed to be fully earned, with awards denominated in stock paid out in shares and awards denominated in units paid out
in cash. As of December 31, 2007, 3,100 shares of stock had been granted to 56 employees.

The remaining information required by this item is included under the caption “Security Ownership” of the Proxy Statement, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
The information required by this item is included under the captions “Related Person Disclosure™ ang “Corporate Governance — Director
Independence” in the Proxy Statement, which information 15 incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is included under the ¢caption “Accounting and Auditing Matters” of the Proxy Statement, which
infermation is incorporated herein by reference.




PART IV

Itemn 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

MOU RESOURCES GRQUP, INC.

(a) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND EXHIBITS

Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules

1. Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements required under this item are included under
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Item 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. Page
Consclidated Statements of Income for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 72
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2007 and 2006 73
Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2007 74
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 75
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 76
2. Financial Statement Schedules
MDU Resources Group, Inc.
Schedule Il — Consolidated Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Additions
Balance at Charged to Balance
Beginning Costs and at End
Description of Year Expenses Other* Deductions** of Year
{In thousands)

Allowance for doubtful accounts:

2007 $7,725 $8,799 $5,533 $7422 $14,635

2006 8,031 5,470 1,576 7,352 7725

2005 6,801 4,870 1,675 5315 8,031

* Allowance for doubtful accounts for companies acquired and recoveries.
** Uncolfectible accounts written off.

All other schedules are omitted because of the absence of the cenditions under which they are required, or because the information
required is included in the Company's Consclidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto,
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3. Exhibits

2

3(a)

3{b)
3(c)

4(a)

4{b)
4(c}
44d)

4(e)

4ff)

4(g)

4(h)

400

40)
4(k)
4()
4(m)

4(n)

4{o)

4{p)

+10a)
+10(b)
+10(c)
+10(d)

+10{e)

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and ameng MDU Resources Group, Inc., Firemoen Acquisition, Inc. and Cascade Natural Gas
Corporation dated as of July 8, 2006, filed by Cascade Natural Gas Corporation as Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K dated July 10, 2006,
in File No. 1-7196* (1)

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as amended, filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-A/A, as amended,

filed on June 27, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*

Company Bylaws, as amended, filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K dated November 16, 2006, filed on November 22, 2006, in File No. 1-3480*

Certificate of Designations of Series B Preference Stock of the Company, as amended, filed as Exhibit 3(a) to Form 10-G for the
quarter ended September 30, 2002, filed on November 14, 2002, in File No. 1-3480*

Indenture of Mortgage, dated as of May 1, 1939, as restated in the Forty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 21, 1992,
and the Forty-Sixth through Forty-Ninth Suppiements thereto between the Company and the New York Trust Company (The Bank

of New York, successor Corporate Trustee) and A. C. Downing (Douglas ). Macinnes, successor Co-Trusteg), filed as Exhibit 4(a) 10
Form S-3, in Registration Ne. 33-66682; and Exhibits 4(e), 4(f) and 4(g) to Form S-8, in Registration No. 33-53896; and Exhibit 4{c){i)
to Form 8-3, in Registration No. 333-49472*

Fiftieth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 15, 2003, filed as Exhibit 4(e) to Form $-8 on January 21, 2004,
in Registration No, 333-112035*

Rights Agreement, dated as of November 12, 1998, between the Company and Wells Farge Bank Minnescta, N.A, (formerly known
as Norwest Bank Minnesota, N.A.), Rights Agent, filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-A on November 12, 1998, in File No. 1-3480*

Indenture, dated as of December 15, 2003, between the Company and The Bank of New York, as trustee, fited as Exhibit 4{f)
to Form S-8 on January 21, 2004, in Registration No. 333-112035*

Certificate of Adjustment to Purchase Price and Redemption Price, as amended and restated, pursuant to the Rights Agreement,
dated as of Novemnber 12, 1998, filed as Exhibit 4(¢) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006, filed on August 4, 2006,

in File No. 1-3480°

Centennial Energy Holdings, Inc. Master Shelf Agreement, dated April 29, 2005, among Centennial Energy Holdings, Inc.

and the Prudential Insurance Company of America, filed as Exhibit 4{a) to Ferm 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005,

filed on August 3, 2003, in File No. 1-3480*

Letter Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Master Shelf Agreement, dated May 17, 2006, among Centennial Energy Holdings,
Inc., The Prudential Insurance Company of America, and certain investars described in the Letter Amendment filed as Exhibit 4{a)

to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006, filed on August 4, 2006, in File No. 1-3480~

MDU Resources Group, Inc. Credit Agreement, dated June 21, 2005, among MDU Resources Group, Inc., Wells Fargo Banx,

National Association, as Administrative Agent, and The Other Financial Institutions Party thereto, filed as Exhibit 4(b) to Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2005, filed on August 3, 2005, in File No. 1-3480*

First Amendment, dated June 30, 2006, to Credit Agreement, dated June 21, 2005, among MDU Resources Group, Inc.,

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, and certain lenders described in the credit agreement,

filed as Exhibit 4(b) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006, filed an August 4, 2006, in File No. 1-3480*

Centennial Energy Holdings, Inc. Credit Agreement, dated December 13, 2007, among Centennial Energy Holdings, Inc.,

U.S. Bank National Association, as Administrative Agent, and The Other Financial Institutions party thereto**

MDU Resources Group, Inc. Term Loan Agreement, dated June 29, 2007, amang MDU Resources Group, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as Administrative Agent, and The Other Financial Institutions party thereto, filed as Exhibit 4 to Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended June 30, 2007, fited on August 8, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*

MDU Energy Capital, LLC Master Shelf Agreement, dated as of August 9, 2007, among MDU Energy Capital, LLC and the Prudential
Insurance Company of America, filed as Exhibit 4 to Form B-K dated August 16, 2007, filed on August 16, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*
Indenture dated as of August 1, 1992, between Cascade Natural Gas Corporation and The Bank of New York relating to Medium-Term
Notes, filed by Cascade Natural Gas Corporation as Exhibit 4 to Form 8-K dated August 12, 1992, in File No. 1-71%6*

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 25, 1993, between Cascade Natural Gas Corporation and The Bank of New York
refating to Medium-Term Notes and the 7.5% Notes due November 15, 2031, filed by Cascade Natural Gas Corporation as Exhibit 4 to
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1993, in File No. 1-7196~

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated January 25, 2005, between Cascade Natural Gas Corperation and The Bank of New York,

as trustee, filed by Cascade Natural Gas Corporation as Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K dated January 25, 2005, filed on January 26, 2005, in
File No. 1-7196*

Third Supplemental indenture dated as of March 8, 2007, between Cascade Natural Gas Corporation and The Bank of New York Trust
Company, N.A., ag Successor Trustee, filed by Cascade Natura! Gas Carporation as Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K dated March 8, 2007,
filed on March 8, 2007, in File No. 1-7196*

1992 Key Employee Stock Option Plan, as revised, filed as Exhibit 10{a) to Form 10-X for the year ended December 31, 2006,

filed on February 21, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*

Supplemental Income Security Plan, as amended and restated, effective November 16, 2006, filed as Exhibit $0{b) to Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31, 2006, filed on February 21, 2007, in File No, 1-3480*

Directors’ Compensation Policy, as amended February 15, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10(c) to Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2004, filed on February 21, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*

Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors, as amended, filed as Exhibit 10(e) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002,
filed on February 28, 2003, in File No. 1-3480*

Non-Emplayee Director Stock Compensation Plan, as revised, filed as Exhibit 10{e) to Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2006, filed on February 21, 2007, in File No. +-3480*




MDU RESOURCES GROUP, INC. FORM 10-K 117

+10(f} 1997 Non-Employee Director Long-Term Incentive Plan, as revised, filed as Exhibit 10{f} to Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006, filed on February 23, 2007, in Fite No. 1-3480*

+10(g) Change of Control Employment Agreement between the Company and Terry D. Hildestad, filed as Exhibit 10(c) to Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2002, filed on November 14, 2002, in File No. 1-3480*

+10(h} Change of Control Employment Agreement between the Company and Bruce T. Imsdahl, filed as Exhibit 10{¢)
to Form 10-Qx for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, filed on August 6, 2004, in File No. 1-3480*

+10()) Change of Control Empioyment Agreement between the Company and Vernon A. Raile, filed as Exhibit i0(f)
to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002, filed on November 14, 2002, in File No. 1-3480*

+10(j) Change of Control Employment Agreement between the Company and Paul K. Sandness, filed as Exhibit 10(g)
to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, filed on August &, 2004, in File No. 1-3480*

+10(k} Change of Control Employment Agreement between the Company and William E. Schneider, filed as Exhibit 10(h}
to Ferm 10-0 for the quarter encded September 30, 2602, filed on Navember 14, 2602, in File No. 1-3480*

+10(l} Change of Control Empioyment Agreement between the Company and John G. Harp, filed as Exhibit 10{p)
to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, filed on February 21, 2007, in File No. 1-3480~

+10(m) 1998 Option Award Program, as revised, filed as Exhibit 10{q) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006,
fited on February 21, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*
+10[n} Group Genius Innovation Plan, as revised, filed as Exhibit 10(r) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006,
filed on February 21, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*
10(o} Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated January 4, 2008, between Fidelity and EnerVest Energy Institutional Fund I, L.P.,
EnerVest Energy Institutional Fund IX-Wi, L.P., and Everstar Energy, LLC**

+10{p) WHBI Holdings, Inc. Executive Incentive Compensation Plan and Rules and Regulations, as amended February 26, 2007,
filed as Exhibit 10(d} to Ferm 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007, filed on May 8, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*

+10{g} Knife River Corporation Executive Incentive Compensaticn Plan and Rules and Regulations, as amended February 26, 2007,
filed as Exhibit 10(e) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007, filed on May 8, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*
+10(r} Long-Term Performance-Based Incentive Plan, as revised, filed as Exhibit 13{y) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006,
filed on February 21, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*
+10{s} MDU Resources Group, Inc. Executive Incentive Compensation Plan and Rutes and Regulations, as amended November 15, 2007**
+10(t} Montana-Daketa Utilities Co. Executive Incentive Compensation Plan and Rules and Regulations, as amended November 13, 2007+
+10{u} Change of Contrel Employment Agreement between the Company and Steven L. Bietz, filed as Exhibit 10(ai}
to Farm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, filed on February 22, 2006, in File No. 1-3480*
+10{v) Change of Control Employment Agreement between the Company and Nicole A. Kivisto, filed as Exhibit 10(aj)
to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, filed on February 22, 2006, in File No. 1-3480*
+10(w) Change of Control Emplayment Agreement between the Company and Daran N. Schwartz, filed as Exhibit 10{ak}
to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, filed on February 22, 2006, in File No. 1-3480*
+i0(x) Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for John G. Harp, dated December 4, 2004, filed as Exhibit 10{ag)
to Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2006, fited on February 21, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*
+10{y) Employment Letter for John G. Harp, dated July 20, 2005, filed as Exhibit 10{ah) to Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006, filed on February 21, 2007, in File Mo. 1-3480*
+10(z) Form of Performance Share Award Agreement under the Long-Term Perfermance-Based Incentive Plan, as amended November 15, 2007+ *

10(aa) Centennial Power, Inc. and Colorado Energy Management, LLC Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between
Centennial Energy Resources LLC, as Seller, and Montana Acquisition Company LLC, as Buyer, dated April 25, 2007,
filed as Exhibit 10(a) to Form 10-Q far the quarter ended March 31, 2007, filed on May 8, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*
+10{ab) MDU Censtruction Services Group, Inc. Executive Incentive Compensation Plan and Rules and Regulations, as adopted May 2, 2006,
filed as Exhibit 10(f} to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007, filed on May 8, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*
+10{ac) Consulting Agreement, dated July 2, 2007, by and between Williston Basin Interstate Pipeline Company and John K. Castleberry,
filed as Exhibit 1¢ to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007, filed on August 8, 2007, in File No. 1-3480*
12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends™* *
21 Subsidiaries of MOU Rescurces Group, Ing.**
23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm* *
31{a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002~ ~
31{n) Certification of Chief Financial Officer file¢ pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002**
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002**
99{a) Sales Agency Financing Agreement, dated as of July 27, 2006, between the Company and We!ls Fargo Securities, LLC,
filed as Exhibit 1 to Form 8-K dated July 27, 2006, filed on July 27, 2006, in Fite No. 1-3480*
99{b} Amendment to Sales Agency Financing Agreement, dated as of June 25, 2007, between the Company and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC,
filed as Exhibit 1 to Form 8-K dated June 25, 2007, filed on June 28, 2007, in File No. 1-3480~

* Incorporated herein by reference as indicated.
" * Filed herewith.
+Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement.
(1) Schadulas have been omitted pursuant to ltem 601(b)(2) of Regulation 5-K. MDL! Resources Group, Inc. heraby undertakes to furnish supplementally
copias of any of the omitted schedules upon request by the SEC.
MDU Rasources Group, Inc. agrees to furnish to the SEC upon request any instrumznt with respect to fong-term debit that MDU Resources Group, inc.
has not filed as an exhibit pursuant to the exemption provided by ftem 601 (b)(4)(i)/A) of Regulation 5-K.
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PART 1V

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

MDU Resources Group, Inc.

Date: February 20, 2008 By: /s/ Terry D. Hildestad

Terry D. Hildestad
(President and Chief Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant in the capacities and on the date indicated.

‘ Signature Title Date

/s/ Terry D. Hildestad Chief Executive Officer and Director February 20, 2008

Terry D. Hildestad
(President and Chief Executive Officer)

| /s/ Vemon A. Raile Chief Financial Officer February 20, 2008

Vernon A, Raile
(Executive Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer)

/s/ Daran N. Schwartz Chief Accounting Officer February 20, 2008

Doran N, Schwartz
(Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer)

/s/ Harry ). Pearce Director February 20, 2008

Harry ). Pearce
{Chairman of the Board)

/s/ Thomas Everist Director February 20, 2008
Thomas Everist

/s/ Karen B. Fagg Director February. 20, 2008
Karen B. Fagg
| /s/ Dennis W. Johnson Director February 20, 2008

' Dennis W. Johnson

/s/ Richard H. Lewis Director February 20, 2008
Richard H. Lewis

/s/ Patricia L. Moss Director February 20, 2008
Patricia L. Moss

/s/ John L. Olson Director February 20, 2008
John L. Qlson
/s/ Sister Thomas Welder Director February 20, 2008

Sister Thomas Welder

/s/ John K, Wilson Director February 20, 2008
John K. Wilson




Stockholder Information

Corporate Headquarters

MDU Resources Group, Inc.

Street Address: 1200 W. Century Ave,
Bismarck, ND 58503

Maifing Address: P.O. Box 5650
Bismarck, ND 58506-5650

Telephone: {701) 530-1000
Toll-Free Telephone: {800) 437-8000
www.mdu.com

The company has filed as exhibits to its Annual Repart ocl
Form 10-K the CED and CFO certifications as required b
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act.

The company also submitted the required annual CEQ
certification to the New York Stock Exchange.

Common Stock
MDU Resources’ common stock is listed on the NYSE,unlder
the symbol MDU. The stock began trading on the NYSE in 1948
and is included in the Standard & Poor’s MidCap 400 index.

Average daily trading volume in 2007 was 621,423 shares.
Comman Stock Prices

High Low Clase
2007
First Quarter $29.00 $24.39 $28.74
Second Quarter 379 27.40 78.04
Third Quarter 30.40 24.64 27.84
Fourth Cuarter 28.69 25.89 27.6%
2006
First Quarter $24.53 $21.85 $22.30
Second Querter 24.99 22.53 4.4
Third Quarter 25.40 22.25 22.34
Fourth Quarter 27.04 22.29 25.64
The above prices have been adjusted for the stock spiit effected in July 2006.

Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan
The company’s nlan pravides interested investors the opp'lortunity
to purchase shares of the company's common stock and to
reinvest dividends without incurring brokerage commissions.

For complete details, including an enrcliment form, contact
the stock transfer agent. Plan information also is avaiiable on
the Wells Fargo Shareowner Services Web site:
www.wellsfargo.com /shareownerservices,

2008 Key Dividend Dates

Ex-Dividend Date  Record Date Payment Date
First Quarter March 11 March 13 April 1
Second Quarter  June 10 June 12 Jaty 1
Third Quarter September 9 September 11 Octoberjl
Fourth Quarter  December 9 December 11 January 1, 2009

Key dividend dates are subjsct to the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Annual Meeting

Tuesday, April 22, 2008

11 a.m. COT

Maontana-Dakota Utilities Co. Service Center
909 Airport Road -

Bismargk, North Dakota

Shareholder Information and Inguiries
Registered shareholders have electronic access to their accounts|
by visiting www.sharecwneroniine.com. Shareowner Online allows
shareholders to view their account balance, dividend information,
reinvestment details and more. The transfer agent maintains
stockholder account information.

Communications regarding stock transfer requirements, lost
certificates, dividends or change of address should be directed
to the stock transfer agent.

Company information, including financial reports, is available at
www,mdu.com.

Shareholder Contact

Arlene Stillwell

Teiephone: {800} 437-3000, ext. 1020
E-Mail: investor@mduresources.com

Analyst Contact

Phyllis A. Rittenbach

Director of Investor Relations

Telephone: (701) 530-1057

E-Mail: phytlis.rittenbach@mduresources.com

Vernon A. Raile
Executive Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
Telephone: (701) 530-1003

Transfer Agent and Registrar for all Classes

of Stock and Dividend Reinvestment Plan Agent
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A,

Stock Transfer Department

P.O. Box 64856

St. Paul, MN 55164-0856

Telephone: (651) 450-4064

Toll-Free Telephone: (877).536-3553
www.wellsfargo.com/shareownerservices

Transfer Agent and Registrar for

First Mortgage Bonds and Senior Notes
The Bank of New York

Corporate Trust Department

101 Barclay St. — 12W

New York, NY 10286

Independent Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP

400 Cne Financial Plaza

120 S. Sixth St.

Minneapolis, MN 55402-1844

Note: This information is not given in connection with any sale
or offer for sale or offer t¢ buy any security.
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